Supplemental Listing Document

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this document, you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other
professional adviser.

Application has been made to the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-
ST”) for permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates (as defined below). The SGX-ST
takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document. Admission to the Official
List of the SGX-ST is not to be taken as an indication of the merits of UBS AG, acting through its
London branch, the Certificates, or the Company (as defined below).

8,000,000 European Style Cash Settled Short Certificates relating to
the ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited

with a Daily Leverage of -5x

UBS AG
(Incorporated with limited liability in Switzerland)
acting through its London Branch

Issue Price: S$0.55 per Certificate

This document is published for the purpose of obtaining a listing of all the above certificates
(the “Certificates”) to be issued by UBS AG (the “Issuer”) acting through its London branch, and is
supplemental to and should be read in conjunction with a base listing document dated 28 June 2021
(the “Base Listing Document”), including its supplements and addenda as executed from time to
time, for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer and the Certificates. Information
relating to the Company (as defined below) is contained in this document.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer, or invitation, to subscribe for or to
sell, or solicitation of any offer to subscribe for or to purchase, Certificates or other securities of the
Issuer, nor is it calculated to invite, nor does it permit the making of, offers by the public to subscribe
for or purchase for cash or other consideration the Certificates or other securities of the Issuer.
Restrictions have been imposed on offers and sales of the Certificates and on distributions of
documents relating thereto in the United States, the United Kingdom, the European Economic Area,
Singapore and Hong Kong (see “Placing and Sale” contained herein).

The Certificates are complex products. You should exercise caution in relation to them.
Investors are warned that the price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as it may rise and
holders may sustain a total loss of their investment. The price of the Certificates also depends on the
supply and demand for the Certificates in the market and the price at which the Certificates is trading
at any time may differ from the underlying valuation of the Certificates because of market
inefficiencies. It is not possible to predict the secondary market for the Certificates. Although the
Issuer and/or any of its affiliates may from time to time purchase the Certificates or sell additional



Certificates on the market, the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates are not obliged to do so. Investors
should also note that there are leveraged risks because the Certificates integrate an inverse leverage
mechanism and the Certificates will amplify the movements in the increase, and in the decrease, of
the value of the Underlying Stock (as defined below) and if the investment results in a loss, any such
loss will be increased by the leverage factor of the Certificates. As such, investors could lose more
than they would if they had invested directly in the Underlying Stock.

For the purpose of section 309B(1) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289 of
Singapore) (the "SFA"), the Issuer has determined, and hereby notifies all relevant persons (as
defined in section 309A of the SFA) that the Certificates are classified as capital markets products
other than prescribed capital markets products' and Specified Investment Products (SIPs)?2, and may
only be sold to retail investors with enhanced safeguards, including an assessment of such investors’
investment knowledge or experience.

Prospective purchasers should therefore ensure that they understand the nature of the
Certificates and carefully study the risk factors set out in the Base Listing Document and pages 5 to
10 of this document before they invest in the Certificates.

Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and for quotation of the
Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle to grant permission to deal in and for quotation of
the Certificates. It is expected that dealings in the Certificates will commence on or about 15 June
2022.

As at the date hereof, the Issuer’s long term credit rating by Standard & Poor’s Credit Market
Services Europe Limited is A+, by Moody’s Deutschland GmbH is Aa3 and by Fitch Ratings Limited is
AA-.

The Issuer is regulated by, among others, the Swiss Federal Banking Commission. In the
United Kingdom, it is authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authority and subject to regulation by
the Financial Conduct Authority and limited regulation by the Prudential Regulatory Authority.

14 June 2022

1 As defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018.
2 As defined in the MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on
Recommendations on Investment Products.



Subject as set out below, the Issuer accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information contained in this document and the Base Listing Document in relation to itself and the
Certificates. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuer (which has taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this document and the Base Listing
Document for which it accepts responsibility (subject as set out below in respect of the information
contained herein with regard to the Company) is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect the import of such information. The information with regard to the Company as
set out herein is extracted from publicly available information. The Issuer accepts responsibility only
for the accurate reproduction of such information. No further or other responsibility or liability in
respect of such information is accepted by the Issuer.

No persons have been authorised to give any information or to make any representation save
as contained in this document or otherwise authorised by the Issuer in connection with the Certificates
and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorised by the Issuer. Neither the delivery of this document nor any sale made hereunder shall
under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates since the date hereof.

This document does not constitute an offer or solicitation by or on behalf of the Issuer to
purchase or subscribe for any of the Certificates. The distribution of this document and the offering of
the Certificates may, in certain jurisdictions, be restricted by law. The Issuer requires persons into
whose possession this document comes to inform themselves of and observe all such restrictions. In
particular, the Certificates have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act’). Subject to certain exceptions,
Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold or delivered, directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person (as defined in
Regulation S under the Securities Act) or to others for offering, sale or resale in the United States or
to any such U.S. person. Offers and sales of Certificates, or interests therein, in the United States or
to U.S. persons would constitute a violation of United States securities laws unless made in
compliance with registration requirements of the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption
therefrom. A further description of certain restrictions on offering and sale of the Certificates and
distribution of this document is given in the section headed “Placing and Sale” contained herein.

The SGX-ST has made no assessment of, nor taken any responsibility for, the financial
soundness of the Issuer or the merits of investing in the Certificates, nor have they verified the
accuracy or the truthfulness of statements made or opinions expressed in this document.

The Issuer and/or any of its affiliates may repurchase Certificates at any time on or after the
date of issue and any Certificates so repurchased may be offered from time to time in one or more
transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at prevailing market prices or in negotiated
transactions, at the discretion of the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates. Investors should not therefore
make any assumption as to the number of Certificates in issue at any time.

References in this document to the “Conditions” shall mean references to the Terms and
Conditions of the European Style Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities contained in
the Base Listing Document. Terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Conditions.
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RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors are relevant to the Certificates:-

(@)

(f)

investment in Certificates involves substantial risks including market risk, liquidity risk, and the
risk that the Issuer will be unable to satisfy its obligations under the Certificates. Investors
should ensure that they understand the nature of all these risks before making a decision to
invest in the Certificates. You should consider carefully whether Certificates are suitable for
you in light of your experience, objectives, financial position and other relevant circumstances.
Certificates are not suitable for inexperienced investors;

the Certificates constitute direct, general and unsecured contractual obligations of the Issuer
and if you purchase the Certificates you are relying upon the creditworthiness of the Issuer
and have no rights under the Certificates against any other person. In particular, it should be
noted that the Issuer issues a large number of financial instruments, including Certificates, on
a global basis and, at any given time, the financial instruments outstanding may be
substantial. If you purchase the Certificates you are relying upon the creditworthiness of the
Issuer and have no rights under the Certificates against the Company which has issued the
Underlying Stock (as defined below). The Issuer has substantially no obligation to a
Certificate Holder (as defined in the Conditions) other than to pay amounts in accordance with
the terms thereof as set forth herein and in the Base Listing Document. The Issuer does not in
any respect underwrite or guarantee the performance of any Certificate. Any profit or loss
realised by a Certificate Holder in respect of a Certificate upon exercise or otherwise due to
changes in the value of such Certificate or the Underlying Stock is solely for the account of
such Certificate Holder. In addition, the Issuer shall have the absolute discretion to put in
place any hedging transaction or arrangement which it deems appropriate in connection with
any Certificate or the Underlying Stock. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to
outstanding debt securities of the Issuer by any one of its rating agencies could result in a
reduction in the trading value of the Certificates;

since the Certificates relate to the price of the Underlying Stock, certain events relating to the
Underlying Stock may cause adverse movements in the value and the price of the Underlying
Stock, as a result of which, the Certificate Holders may, in extreme circumstances, sustain a
significant loss of their investment if the price of the Underlying Stock has risen sharply;

due to their nature, the Certificates can be volatile instruments and may be subject to
considerable fluctuations in value. The price of the Certificates may fall in value as rapidly as
it may rise due to, including but not limited to, variations in the frequency and magnitude of
the changes in the price of the Underlying Stock, the time remaining to expiry and the
creditworthiness of the Issuer;

fluctuations in the price of the Underlying Stock will affect the price of the Certificates but not
necessarily in the same magnitude and direction, therefore, prospective investors intending to
purchase Certificates to hedge their market risk associated with investing in the Underlying
Stock which may be specified herein, should recognise the complexities of utilising the
Certificates in this manner;

a Certificate Holder must tender a specified number of Certificates at any one time in order to
exercise. Thus, Certificate Holders with fewer than the specified minimum number of
Certificates in a particular series will either have to sell their Certificates or purchase
additional Certificates, incurring transactions costs in each case, in order to realise their
investment;



(m)

if, whilst any of the Certificates remain unexercised, trading in the Underlying Stock is
suspended or halted on the relevant stock exchange, trading in the Certificates may be
suspended for a similar period;

investors should note that the Issuer’s obligations to pay amounts in accordance with the
terms thereof as set forth herein shall be discharged by delivery of the aggregate Cash
Settlement Amount (if positive) to all Certificate Holders in accordance with the agreement
with the Warrant Agent;

investors should note that in the event of there being a Market Disruption Event (as defined in
the Conditions) determination or payment of the Cash Settlement Amount (as defined in the
Conditions) may be delayed, all as more fully described in the Conditions;

certain events relating to the Underlying Stock require or, as the case may be, permit the
Issuer to make certain adjustments or amendments to the Conditions;

the Certificates are only exercisable on the expiry date and may not be exercised by
Certificate Holders prior to such expiry date. Accordingly, if on such expiry date the Cash
Settlement Amount is zero, a Certificate Holder will lose the value of his investment;

the total return on an investment in any Certificate may be affected by the Hedging Fee
Factor (as defined below), Management Fee (as defined below) and Gap Premium (as
defined below);

investors holding their position overnight should note that they would be required to bear the
annualised cost which consists of the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are
calculated daily and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs
embedded within the Leverage Inverse Strategy (as described below) including the Stock
Borrowing Cost (as defined below) and the Rebalancing Cost (as defined below);

investors should note that there may be an exchange rate risk where the Cash Settlement
Amount may be converted from a foreign currency into Singapore dollars. Exchange rates
between currencies are determined by forces of supply and demand in the foreign exchange
markets. These forces are, in turn, affected by factors such as international balances of
payments and other economic and financial conditions, government intervention in currency
markets and currency trading speculation. Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, foreign
political and economic developments, and the imposition of exchange controls or other
foreign governmental laws or restrictions applicable to such investments may affect the
foreign currency market price and the exchange rate-adjusted equivalent price of the
Certificates. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of any one currency may be offset by
fluctuations in the exchange rate of other relevant currencies;

investors should note that there are leveraged risks because the Certificates integrate an
inverse leverage mechanism and the Certificates will amplify the movements in the increase,
and in the decrease, of the value of the Underlying Stock and if the investment results in a
loss, any such loss will be increased by the leverage factor of the Certificates. As such,
investors could lose more than they would if they had invested directly in the Underlying
Stock;

when held for longer than a day, the performance of the Certificates could be more or less
than the leverage factor that is embedded within the Certificates. The performance of the
Certificates each day is locked in, and any subsequent returns are based on what was
achieved the previous day. This process, referred to as compounding, may lead to a
performance difference from 5 times the inverse performance of the Underlying Stock over a



period longer than one day. This difference may be amplified in a volatile market with a
sideway trend, where market movements are not clear in direction, whereby investors may
sustain substantial losses;

the Air Bag Mechanism (as defined below) is triggered only when the Underlying Stock is
calculated or traded, which may not be during the trading hours of the Relevant Stock
Exchange for the Certificates (as defined below);

investors should note that the Air Bag Mechanism reduces the impact on the Leverage
Inverse Strategy if the Underlying Stock rises further, but will also maintain a reduced
exposure to the Underlying Stock in the event the Underlying Stock starts to fall after the Air
Bag Mechanism is triggered, thereby reducing its ability to recoup losses;

there is no assurance that the Air Bag Mechanism will prevent investors from losing the entire
value of their investment, in the event of (i) an overnight rise in the Underlying Stock, where
there is a 20% or greater gap between the previous day closing price and the opening price of
the Underlying Stock the following day, as the Air Bag Mechanism will only be triggered when
market opens the following day or (ii) a sharp intraday rise in the Underlying Stock of 20% or
greater during the observation period compared to the reference price, being: (a) if air bag
event has not been previously triggered on the same day, the previous closing price of the
Underlying Stock, or (b) if one or more air bag events have been previously triggered on the
same day, the latest new observed price. Investors may refer to pages 42 to 43 of this
document for more information;

certain events may, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Certificates, trigger (A) the
implementation of methods of adjustment or (B) the early termination of the Certificates. The
Issuer will give the investors reasonable notice of any early termination. If the Issuer
terminates the Certificates early, then the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by
applicable law, pay an amount to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate held by
such holder equal to the fair market value of the Certificate less the cost to the Issuer of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its
sole and absolute discretion. The performance of this commitment shall depend on (A)
general market conditions and (B) the liquidity conditions of the underlying instrument(s) and,
as the case may be, of any other hedging transactions. Investors should note that the amount
repaid by the Issuer may be less than the amount initially invested. Investors may refer to
Condition 13 on pages 29 to 30 of this document for more information;

investors should note that it is not possible to predict the price at which the Certificates will
trade in the secondary market or whether such market will be liquid or illiquid. To the extent
Certificates of a particular issue are exercised, the number of Certificates of such issue
outstanding will decrease, resulting in a diminished liquidity for the remaining Certificates of
such issue. A decrease in the liquidity of an issue of Certificates may cause, in turn, an
increase in the volatility associated with the price of such issue of Certificates. The Issuer
may, but is not obligated to, at any time, purchase Certificates at any price in the open market
or by tender or private agreement. Any Certificates so purchased may be held or resold or
surrendered for cancellation. To the extent that an issue of Certificates becomes illiquid, an
investor may have to exercise such Certificates to realise value;

two or more risk factors may simultaneously have an effect on the value of a Certificate such
that the effect of any individual risk factor may not be predicted. No assurance can be given
as to the effect any combination of risk factors may have on the value of a Certificate;

investors should note that they may be required to pay stamp taxes or other documentary
charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the country where the Certificates are



transferred. Investors who are in any doubt as to their tax position should consult their own
independent tax advisers. In addition, investors should be aware that tax regulations and their
application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to time. Accordingly, it is not
possible to predict the precise tax treatment which will apply at any given time. Investors
should refer to the Taxation Section in the Base Listing Document;

investors should note that the Issuer may enter into discount, commission or fee
arrangements with brokers and/or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates with respect to the
primary or secondary market in the Certificates. The arrangements may result in the benefit
to investors in Certificates buying and selling Certificates through nominated brokers by
reducing or eliminating the commission payable by such Certificate Holders. In the event that
the commission payable by Certificate Holders is eliminated, fee arrangements between the
Issuer and brokers and/or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates will continue to apply. Investors
in the Certificates should note that any brokers with whom the Issuer has a commission
arrangement does not, and cannot be expected to, deal exclusively in the Certificates,
therefore any broker and/or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates may from time to time engage
in transactions involving the Underlying Stock and/or structured products of other issuers over
the Underlying Stock as the Certificates for their proprietary accounts and/or accounts of their
clients. The fact that the same broker may deal simultaneously for different clients in
competing products in the market place may affect the value of the Certificates and present
certain conflicts of interests;

various potential and actual conflicts of interest may arise from the overall activities of the
Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates.

The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates are diversified financial institutions with
relationships in countries around the world. These entities engage in a wide range of
commercial and investment banking, brokerage, funds management, hedging transactions
and investment and other activities for their own account or the account of others. In addition,
the Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates, in connection with their other business
activities, may possess or acquire material information about the Underlying Stock. Such
activities and information may involve or otherwise affect issuers of the Underlying Stock in a
manner that may cause consequences adverse to the Certificate Holders or otherwise create
conflicts of interests in connection with the issue of Certificates by the Issuer. Such actions
and conflicts may include, without limitation, the exercise of voting power, the purchase and
sale of securities, financial advisory relationships and exercise of creditor rights. The Issuer
and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates have no obligation to disclose such information about
the Underlying Stock or such activities. The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries and affiliates
and their officers and directors may engage in any such activities without regard to the issue
of Certificates by the Issuer or the effect that such activities may directly or indirectly have on
any Certificate;

in the ordinary course of their business, including without limitation in connection with the
Issuer or its appointed designated market maker’s market making activities, the Issuer and
any of its respective subsidiaries and affiliates may effect transactions for their own account
or for the account of their customers and hold long or short positions in the Underlying Stock
and/or related derivatives. In addition, in connection with the offering of any Certificates, the
Issuer and any of its respective subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into one or more hedging
transactions with respect to the Underlying Stock and/or related derivatives. In connection
with such hedging or market-making activities or with respect to proprietary or other trading
activities by the Issuer and any of its respective subsidiaries and its affiliates, the Issuer and
any of its respective subsidiaries and affiliates may enter into transactions in the Underlying



(bb)

(cc)

Stock and/or related derivatives which may affect the market price, liquidity or value of the
Certificates and which may affect the interests of Certificate Holders;

the value of the Certificates depends on the Leverage Inverse Strategy performance built in
the Certificate. The Calculation Agent will make the Leverage Inverse Strategy last closing
level and a calculation tool available to the investors on a website;

certain risks relating to the Issuer’s operating environment and strategy, including those as
set out in Appendix 2 of the Base Listing Document, may impact the Issuer’s ability to execute
its strategy and directly affect its business activities, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects. As a broad-based international financial services firm, the Issuer is inherently
exposed to risks that become apparent only with the benefit of hindsight, risks of which it is
not presently aware or which it currently does not consider to be material could also materially
affect its business activities, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. The
sequence in which the risk factors are set out in Appendix 2 of the Base Listing Document is
not indicative of their likehood of occurrence or the potential magnitude of their financial
consequences;

as the Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate which will be deposited with
The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”):-

(i) investors should note that no definitive certificate will be issued in relation to the
Certificates;
(ii) there will be no register of Certificate Holders and each person who is for the time

being shown in the records maintained by CDP as entitled to a particular number of
Certificates by way of interest (to the extent of such number) in the global warrant
certificate in respect of those Certificates represented thereby shall be treated as the
holder of such number of Certificates;

(iii) investors will need to rely on any statements received from their brokers/custodians
as evidence of their interest in the Certificates; and

(iv) notices to such Certificate Holders will be published on the website of the SGX-ST.
Investors will need to check the website of the SGX-ST regularly and/or rely on their
brokers/custodians to obtain such notices;

Generally, investing in the Certificates may involve risks related to the discontinuance,
changes or adjustments to benchmarks generally

Discontinuance of, or changes to, benchmarks may require adjustments to the Issuer's
agreements, systems and processes. The interbank offered rate(s) (“IBOR”) and other
interest rate, equity, commodity, foreign exchange and other types of indices which are
deemed to be "benchmarks", are the subject of national, international and other regulatory
guidance and proposals for reform. Some of these reforms are already effective whilst others
are still to be or may be implemented. These reforms may cause such benchmarks to perform
differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot
be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on any Certificates
referencing such a benchmark. Investors should consult their own independent advisers and
make their own assessment about the potential risks or any of the international or national
reforms in making any investment decision with respect to any Certificates referencing a
benchmark; and



(ee)
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Specifically, the reform of HIBOR may adversely affect the value of the Certificates

The Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) benchmark is referenced in the Leverage
Inverse Strategy.

It is not possible to predict with certainty whether, and to what extent, HIBOR will continue to
be supported going forwards. This may cause HIBOR to perform differently than they have
done in the past, and may have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Such factors
may have (without limitation) the following effects: (i) discouraging market participants from
continuing to administer or contribute to a benchmark; (ii) triggering changes in the rules or
methodologies used in the benchmark and/or (iii) leading to the disappearance of the
benchmark. Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes as a result of
international or national reforms or other initiatives or investigations, could have a material
adverse effect on the value of and return on the Certificates.

In addition, the occurrence of a modification or cessation of HIBOR may cause adjustment of
the Certificates which may include selecting one or more successor benchmarks and making
related adjustments to the Certificates, including if applicable to reflect increased costs.

The Calculation Agent may make adjustments as it may determine appropriate if any of the
following circumstances occurs or may occur: (1) HIBOR is materially changed or cancelled
or (2)(i) the relevant authorisation, registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence
decision or approval in respect of the benchmark or the administrator or sponsor of the
benchmark is not obtained, (ii) an application for authorisation, registration, recognition,
endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or inclusion in any official register is rejected or
(iii) any authorisation, registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision or
approval is suspended or inclusion in any official register is withdrawn.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment
about the potential risks imposed by any of the international or national reforms in making any
investment decision with respect to any Certificate.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CERTIFICATES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Certificates and should be read in
conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, the other information set out in this document and

the Base Listing Document.

The Conditions are set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European
Style Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document. For the
purposes of the Conditions, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

Certificates:

ISIN:

Company:

Underlying Price® and Source:
Calculation Agent:
Strike Level:

Daily Leverage:

Notional Amount per Certificate:

Management Fee (p.a.)*:

Gap Premium (p.a.)®:

Stock Borrowing Costé:

Rebalancing Cost®:

Launch Date:

8,000,000 European Style Cash Settled Short Certificates relating to
the ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company
Limited (the “Underlying Stock” or the “Underlying”)

CH1169124026

Sunny Optical
2382.HK)

Technology (Group) Company Limited (RIC:

HK$114.70 (Bloomberg)

UBS AG acting through its London Branch

Zero

-5x (within the Leverage Inverse Strategy as described below)
SGD 0.55

0.40%

6.90%, is a hedging cost against extreme market movements
overnight.

The annualised costs for borrowing stocks in order to take an
inverse exposure on the Underlying Stock.

The transaction costs (if applicable), computed as a function of
leverage and daily inverse performance of the Underlying Stock.

7 June 2022

3 These figures are calculated as at, and based on information available to the Issuer on or about 14 June 2022. The Issuer is
not obliged, and undertakes no responsibility to any person, to update or inform any person of any changes to the figures after
14 June 2022.

“Please note that the Management Fee is calculated on a 360-day basis and may be increased up to a maximum of 3% p.a. on
giving one month’s notice to investors. Any increase in the Management Fee will be announced on the SGXNET. Please refer
to “Fees and Charges” below for further details of the fees and charges payable and the maximum of such fees as well as other
ongoing expenses that may be borne by the Certificates.

5 Please note that the Gap Premium is calculated on a 360-day basis.

8 These costs are embedded within the Leverage Inverse Strategy. Please note that the Stock Borrowing Cost may be changed
on giving 5 Business Days’ notice to investors. Any change in the Stock Borrowing Cost will be announced on the SGXNET.



Closing Date:
Expected Listing Date:

Last Trading Date:

Expiry Date:

Board Lot:

Valuation Date:

Exercise:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Hedging Fee Factor:

12

14 June 2022
15 June 2022

The date falling 5 Business Days immediately preceding the Expiry
Date, currently being 23 April 2025

30 April 2025 (if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, then the
Expiry Date shall fall on the preceding Business Day and subject to
adjustment of the Valuation Date upon the occurrence of Market
Disruption Events as set out in the Conditions of the Certificates)

100 Certificates

29 April 2025 or if such day is not an Exchange Business Day, the
immediately preceding Exchange Business Day.

The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day, in a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate
Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise notice. Exercise
of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash
Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all
Certificates shall be deemed to have been automatically exercised
at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry
Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business
Day. The Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses in
respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in
Condition 4(c) of the Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall
be deemed to have expired at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the
Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the
immediately preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall
not be entitled to receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of
the Certificates.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount (if positive)
payable in the Settlement Currency equal to:

Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Short Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 34 to
48 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation
of the Cash Settlement Amount.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount calculated as:
Product (for t from Expected Listing Date to Valuation Date) of (1 —
Management Fee x (ACT (t-1;t) + 360)) x (1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x
(ACT (t-1;t) = 360)), where:



Closing Level:

Initial Reference Level:

Final Reference Level:

Initial Exchange Rate3:

Final Exchange Rate:

Air Bag Mechanism:

13

“t” refers to “Observation Date” which means each Underlying
Stock Business Day (subject to Market Disruption Event) from (and
including) the Underlying Stock Business Day immediately
preceding the Expected Listing Date to the Valuation Date; and

ACT (t-1;t) means the number of calendar days between the
Underlying Stock Business Day immediately preceding the
Observation Date (which is “t-1") (included) and the Observation
Date (which is “t”) (excluded).

An “Underlying Stock Business Day” is a day on which The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”) is open for dealings in
Hong Kong during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Hong Kong.

Please refer to the “Information relating to the European Style Cash
Settled Short Certificates on Single Equities” section on pages 34 to
48 of this document for examples and illustrations of the calculation
of the Hedging Fee Factor.

In respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Final Reference Level X Final Exchange Rate . .
( g - Strike Level) X Hedging Fee Factor

Initial Reference Level XInitial Exchange Rate
1,000

The closing level of the Leverage Inverse Strategy (as described
below) on the Valuation Date

The calculation of the closing level of the Leverage Inverse Strategy
is set out in the “Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Inverse
Strategy” section on pages 16 to 20 below.

0.1770393442

The rate for the conversion of HKD to SGD as at 5:00pm (Singapore
Time) on the Valuation Date as shown on Reuters, provided that if
the Reuters service ceases to display such information, as
determined by the Issuer by reference to such source(s) as the
Issuer may reasonably determine to be appropriate at such a time.

The “Air Bag Mechanism” refers to the mechanism built in the
Leverage Inverse Strategy and which is designed to reduce the
Leverage Inverse Strategy exposure to the Underlying Stock during
extreme market conditions. If the Underlying Stock rises by 15% or
more (“Air Bag Trigger Price”) during the trading day (which
represents approximately 75% loss after a 5 times inverse leverage),
the Air Bag Mechanism is triggered and the Leverage Inverse



Adjustments and Extraordinary
Events:

Underlying Stock Currency:
Settlement Currency:

Exercise Expenses:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Certificates:

Relevant Stock Exchange for
the Underlying Stock:

Business Day and Exchange
Business Day:
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Strategy is adjusted intra-day. The Air Bag Mechanism reduces the
impact on the Leverage Inverse Strategy if the Underlying Stock
rises further, but will also maintain a reduced exposure to the
Underlying Stock in the event the Underlying Stock starts to fall after
the Air Bag Mechanism is triggered, thereby reducing its ability to
recoup losses.

Trading of Certificates is suspended for at least 30 minutes of
continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered. The resumption of
trading is subject further to SGX-ST’s requirements, including at
least 30 minutes from the time of publication of an announcement on
the exchange in respect of the Air Bag Mechanism being triggered,
and at least 15 minutes after the SGX-ST grants an approval to
resume trading, whichever is later, rounded to the next quarter of an
hour.

The Leverage Inverse Strategy is floored at 0 and the Certificates
cannot be valued below zero.

Please refer to the “Air Bag Mechanism” section on pages 19 to 20
below and the “Description of Air Bag Mechanism” section on pages
40 to 41 of this document for further information of the Air Bag
Mechanism.

The Issuer has the right to make adjustments to the terms of the
Certificates if certain events, including any capitalisation issue, rights
issue, extraordinary distributions, merger, delisting, insolvency (as
more specifically set out in the terms and conditions of the
Certificates) occur in respect of the Underlying Stock. For the
avoidance of doubt, no notice will be given if the Issuer determines
that adjustments will not be made.

Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”)
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”)

Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates.

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)

HKEX

A “Business Day” is a day (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays) on which the SGX-ST is open for dealings in
Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Singapore.



Warrant Agent:

Clearing System:

Fees and Charges:

Further Information:
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An “Exchange Business Day” is a day on which the SGX-ST and
the HKEX are open for dealings in Singapore and Hong Kong
respectively during its normal trading hours and banks are open for
business in Singapore and Hong Kong.

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”)
CDP

Normal transaction and brokerage fees shall apply to the trading of
the Certificates on the SGX-ST. Investors should note that they may
be required to pay stamp taxes or other documentary charges in
accordance with the laws and practices of the country where the
Certificates are transferred. Investors who are in any doubt as to
their tax position should consult their own independent tax advisers.
In addition, investors should be aware that tax regulations and their
application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to
time. Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax
treatment which will apply at any given time.

Investors holding position overnight would also be required to bear
the Management Fee and Gap Premium, which are calculated daily
and applied to the value of the Certificates, as well as certain costs
embedded within the Leverage Inverse Strategy including the Stock
Borrowing Cost and the Rebalancing Cost. The Management Fee
may be increased up to a maximum of 3% p.a. on giving one
month’s notice to investors in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Certificates. Any increase in the Management Fee
will be announced on the SGXNET.

Please refer to the website at http://dic.ubs.com for more information
on the theoretical closing price of the Certificates on the previous
trading day, the closing price of the Underlying Stock on the
previous trading day, the Air Bag Trigger Price for each trading day
and the Management Fee and Gap Premium.

In addition, the Conditions have been modified as follows:

1.

Condition 1(a)(i) is deleted and replaced with the following:

“(i) a master instrument by way of deed poll (the "Master Instrument") dated 7 January
2022, made by UBS AG (the “Issuer”) acting through its London Branch; and”

All references to “Instrument” appearing therein are deleted and substituted with the word

“Master Instrument”.


http://dlc.ubs.com/
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Specific Definitions relating to the Leverage Inverse Strateqy

Description of the Leverage Inverse Strateqy

The Leverage Inverse Strategy is designed to track a 5 times daily leveraged inverse exposure to the
Underlying Stock.

At the end of each trading day of the Underlying Stock, the exposure of the Leverage Inverse Strategy
to the Underlying Stock is reset within the Leverage Inverse Strategy in order to retain a daily
leverage of 5 times the inverse performance of the Underlying Stock (excluding costs) regardless of
the performance of the Underlying Stock on the preceding day. This mechanism is referred to as the
Daily Reset.

The Leverage Inverse Strategy incorporates an air bag mechanism which is designed to reduce
exposure to the Underlying Stock during extreme market conditions, as further described below.

Leverage Inverse Strateqy Formula

LSL, means the Leverage Inverse Strategy Level as of the Leverage Reset
Time (t), calculated in accordance with the following formulae:

On Leverage Reset Time(1):
LSL, = 1000
On each subsequent Leverage Reset Time(t):

LSL, = Max|LSL,q % (1 + LRy, = FCyx = SBrwx — RCioe)s 0]

Leverage Reset Time (t) means

1) the scheduled closing time for the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto) on any Observation Date;
and

2) end of any Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period.
Leverage Reset Time (1) is the scheduled close for the Relevant Stock

Exchange for the Underlying Stock on Issue Date.

Leverage Reset Time r(t) means the Leverage Reset Time immediately preceding the Leverage
Reset Time (t).

LR, (1) means the Leveraged Return of the Underlying Stock between Leverage
Reset Time r(t) and Leverage Reset Time (t), calculated as follows:
S
LR, = Leverage X Sr(t)xR—Jt%wwn -1
FCro)c means, the Funding Cost between the Leverage Reset Time r(t)
(included) and the Leverage Reset Time (t) (excluded) calculated as

follows:

If the Leverage Reset Time r(t) is at the scheduled closing time for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor
thereto) on any Observation Date,

Rate,) X ACT(r(t),t)
DayCountBasisRate

FCipr = (Leverage — 1) X



SBro,t

CB

RC )¢

TC

Leverage

St

Rfactor;
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Otherwise, FCyp= 0

means the Stock Borrowing Cost between the Leverage Reset Time r(t)
(included) and the Leverage Reset Time (t) (excluded) calculated as
follows:

If the Leverage Reset Time r(t) is at the scheduled closing time for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor
thereto) on any Observation Date,

CB x ACT(r(t),t)
DayCountBasisRate

SBy(p,c = —Leverage X
Otherwise, SB,)¢ = 0
means the Cost of Borrowing applicable that is equal to: 2.00%

means the Rebalancing Cost of the Leverage Inverse Strategy as at
Leverage Reset Time (t), calculated as follows :

St

RCy(y),c = Leverage X (Leverage — 1) X ( Sro xR actor;

—1|>><TC

means the Transaction Costs applicable as determined by the
Calculation Agent (including Stamp Duty and any other applicable taxes,
levies and costs which may be levied on the stock transactions on the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock by the applicable
regulatory authorities from time to time) that are currently equal to :

0.13%

“Stamp Duty” refers to the applicable rate of stamp duty on the stock
transactions in the jurisdiction of the Relevant Stock Exchange for the
Underlying Stock, which may be changed by the applicable regulatory
authorities from time to time.

-5

means the Underlying Stock Price as of Leverage Reset Time (1)
computed as follows, subject to the adjustments and provisions of the
Conditions:

If the Leverage Reset Time (1) is at the scheduled closing time for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor
thereto) on any Observation Date,

S; is the Closing Price of the Underlying Stock as of such Observation
Date.

Otherwise,

S; is the highest price of the Underlying Stock during the respective
Intraday Restrike Observation Period.

means an amount determined by the Calculation Agent, according to
the following formula, subject to the adjustments and provisions of the
Conditions:

If in respect of the Leverage Reset Time (t), the immediately preceding
Leverage Reset Time r(t) is at the scheduled closing time for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor



Rate,

Benchmark Event
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thereto) on any Observation Date,
Div,

r(t)

Rfactor,= 1-

Otherwise,
Rfactor,=1
where

Div, is the dividend to be paid out in respect of the Underlying Stock on
the Observation Date of the Leverage Reset Time (t) if such
Observation Date is an ex-dividend date, otherwise is zero. The
dividend shall be considered gross of any applicable withholding taxes.

means, in respect of the Observation Date of Leverage Reset Time (t),
the Overnight HKD Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) Fixing,
as published on Reuters RIC HIHKDOND= or any successor page,
being the rate as of day (t), provided that if such rate is not available,
then the rate shall be determined by reference to the latest available
rate that was published on the relevant Reuters page. Upon the
occurrence or likely occurrence, as determined by the Calculation
Agent, of a Benchmark Event, the Calculation Agent may make
adjustments as it may determine appropriate to account for the relevant
event or circumstance, including but not limited to using any alternative
rates from such date, with or without retroactive effect as the Calculation
Agent may in its sole and absolute discretion determine.

means:

(a) the relevant reference rate has ceased to be published on the
relevant screen page as a result of such benchmark ceasing to be
calculated or administered; or

(b) a public statement by the administrator of the relevant reference
rate that (in circumstances where no successor administrator has
been or will be appointed that will continue publication of such
reference rate) it has ceased publishing such reference rate
permanently or indefinitely or that it will cease to do so by a
specified future date (the "Specified Future Date"); or

(c) a public statement by the supervisor of the administrator of the
relevant reference rate that such reference rate has been or will, by
a specified future date (the "Specified Future Date"), be
permanently or indefinitely discontinued; or

(d) a public statement by the supervisor of the administrator of the
relevant reference rate as a consequence of which Reference Rate
will, by a specified future date (the "Specified Future Date"), be
prohibited from being used, or that its use will be subject to
restrictions or adverse consequences, either generally or in respect
of the Certificates; or



ACT(r(t),t)

DayCountBasisRate

Air Bag Mechanism

Intraday Restrike
Event

Calculation Time

TimeReferenceOpenin
9

TimeReferenceClosing

Intraday Restrike Event
Observation Period
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(e) a public statement by the supervisor of the administrator of the
relevant reference rate that, in the view of such supervisor, such
reference rate is or will, by a specified future date (the "Specified
Future Date"), be no longer representative of an underlying market
or the methodology to calculate such reference rate has materially
changed; or

(f) it has or will, by a specified date within the following six months,
become unlawful for the Calculation Agent or the Issuer to calculate
any payments due to be made to any holder of the Certificates
using the relevant reference rate (including, without limitation,
under the Benchmarks Regulation (EU) 2016/1011, if applicable).

Notwithstanding the subparagraphs above, where the relevant
Benchmark Event is a public statement within subparagraphs (b), (c), (d)
or (e) above and the Specified Future Date in the public statement is
more than six months after the date of that public statement, the
Benchmark Event shall not be deemed occur until the date falling six
months prior to such Specified Future Date.

ACT (r(t),t) means the number of calendar days between the
Observation Date of the Leverage Reset Time r(t) (included) and the
Observation Date of the Leverage Reset Time (t) (excluded).

365

means in respect of an Observation Date, the increase at any Calculation
Time of the Underlying Stock price by 15% or more compared with the
amount of S, X Rfactor, where r(t) means the immediately preceding
Leverage Reset Time prior to such Calculation Time.

means any time between the TimeReferenceOpening and the
TimeReferenceClosing, provided that the relevant data is available to
enable the Calculation Agent to determine the Leverage Inverse Strategy
Level.

means the scheduled opening time (including pre-opening session) for the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor
thereto).

means the scheduled closing time (including closing auction session) for
the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock (or any successor
thereto).

means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the period starting on and
excluding the Intraday Restrike Event Time and finishing on and including
the sooner between (1) the time falling 15 minutes of continuous trading
after the Intraday Restrike Event Time and (2) the TimeReferenceClosing.

Where, during such period, the Calculation Agent determines that (1) the
trading in the Underlying Stock is disrupted or subject to suspension or
limitation or (2) the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock is not
open for continuous trading, the Intraday Restrike Event Observation Period
will be extended to the extent necessary until (1) the trading in the
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Underlying Stock is no longer disrupted, suspended or limited and (2) the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock is open for continuous
trading.

Intraday Restrike Event means in respect of an Intraday Restrike Event, the Calculation Time on
Time which such event occurs.
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The Conditions set out in the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style Cash
Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” in the Base Listing Document are set out below.
This section is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information appearing elsewhere in
this document which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the relevant
Conditions set out below, replace or modify the relevant Conditions for the purpose of the Cetrtificates.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF

THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED LONG/SHORT CERTIFICATES ON SINGLE EQUITIES

1.

Form, Status, Transfer and Title

(a)

Form. The Certificates (which expression shall, unless the context otherwise
requires, include any further certificates issued pursuant to Condition 11) are issued
subject to and with the benefit of:-

(i) an instrument by way of deed poll (the "Instrument") dated the Closing Date,
made by UBS AG (the "Issuer") acting through its London Branch; and

(i) a warrant agent agreement (the "Master Warrant Agent Agreement" or
"Warrant Agent Agreement") dated any time on or before the Closing Date,
made between the Issuer and the Warrant Agent for the Certificates.

Copies of the Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement are available for inspection at the specified office of the Warrant Agent.

The Certificate Holders (as defined below) are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by
and are deemed to have notice of all the provisions of the Instrument and the Master
Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

Status. The Certificates constitute direct, general and unsecured contractual
obligations of the Issuer and rank, and will rank, equally among themselves and pari
passu with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer (save for statutorily preferred exceptions). The Certificates provide for
cash settlement on exercise and, in particular, the Certificates will not be secured by
any underlying assets. The Certificates do not entitle Certificate Holders to the
delivery of any Underlying Stock, are not secured by the Underlying Stock and do not
entitle Certificate Holders to any interest in any Underlying Stock.

Transfer. The Certificates are represented by a global warrant certificate (“Global
Warrant”) which will be deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited ("CDP").
Certificates in definitive form will not be issued. Transfers of Certificates may be
effected only in Board Lots or integral multiples thereof. All transactions in (including
transfers of) Certificates, in the open market or otherwise, must be effected through a
securities account with CDP. Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in the
records maintained by CDP.

Title. Each person who is for the time being shown in the records maintained by CDP
as entitled to a particular number of Certificates shall be treated by the Issuer and the
Warrant Agent as the holder and absolute owner of such number of Certificates,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary. The expression "Certificate Holder" shall
be construed accordingly.
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Certificate Rights and Exercise Expenses

(a)

Certificate Rights. Every Certificate entitles each Certificate Holder, upon due
exercise and on compliance with Condition 4, to payment by the Issuer of the Cash
Settlement Amount (as defined below) (if any) in the manner set out in Condition 4.

The "Cash Settlement Amount”, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount
(if positive) payable in the Settlement Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied
by the Notional Amount per Certificate.

The “Closing Level’, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to:

Final Reference Level X Final Exchange Rate . .
( — — - Strike Level) X Hedging Fee Factor
Initial Reference Level x Initial Exchange Rate

If the Issuer determines, in its sole discretion, that on the Valuation Date or any
Observation Date a Market Disruption Event has occurred, then that Valuation Date
or Observation Date shall be postponed until the first succeeding Exchange Business
Day or Underlying Stock Business Day, as the case may be, on which there is no
Market Disruption Event, unless there is a Market Disruption Event on each of the five
Exchange Business Days or Underlying Stock Business Days, as the case may be,
immediately following the original date that, but for the Market Disruption Event,
would have been a Valuation Date or an Observation Date. In that case:-

(i) that fifth Exchange Business Day or Underlying Stock Business Day, as the
case may be, shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date or the Observation Date
notwithstanding the Market Disruption Event; and

(i) the Issuer shall determine the Final Reference Level or the relevant closing
level on the basis of its good faith estimate of the Final Reference Level or the
relevant closing level that would have prevailed on that fifth Exchange Business Day
or Underlying Stock Business Day, as the case may be, but for the Market Disruption
Event provided that the Issuer, if applicable, may, but shall not be obliged to,
determine such Final Reference Level or the relevant closing level by having regard
to the manner in which futures contracts relating to the Underlying Stock are
calculated.

“Market Disruption Event" means the occurrence or existence of (i) any suspension
of trading on the Relevant Stock Exchange of the Underlying Stock requested by the
Company if that suspension is, in the determination of the Issuer, material, (ii) any
suspension of or limitation imposed on trading (including but not limited to unforeseen
circumstances such as by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted
by the Relevant Stock Exchange or any act of God, war, riot, public disorder,
explosion, terrorism or otherwise) on the Relevant Stock Exchange in the Underlying
Stock if that suspension or limitation is, in the determination of the Issuer, material, or
(iii) the closing of the Relevant Stock Exchange or a disruption to trading on the
Relevant Stock Exchange, if that disruption is, in the determination of the Issuer,
material as a result of the occurrence of any act of God, war, riot, public disorder,
explosion or terrorism.

Exercise Expenses. Certificate Holders will be required to pay all charges which are
incurred in respect of the exercise of the Certificates (the "Exercise Expenses"). An
amount equivalent to the Exercise Expenses will be deducted by the Issuer from the
Cash Settlement Amount in accordance with Condition 4. Notwithstanding the
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foregoing, the Certificate Holders shall account to the Issuer on demand for any
Exercise Expenses to the extent that they were not or could not be deducted from the
Cash Settlement Amount prior to the date of payment of the Cash Settlement Amount
to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 4.

No Rights. The purchase of Certificates does not confer on the Certificate Holders
any right (whether in respect of voting, dividend or other distributions in respect of the
Underlying Stock or otherwise) which the holder of an Underlying Stock may have.

3. Expiry Date

Unless automatically exercised in accordance with Condition 4(b), the Certificates shall be
deemed to expire at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date is not a
Business Day (as defined below), the immediately preceding Business Day.

4. Exercise of Certificates

(@)

Exercise. Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry Date
is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in accordance with
Condition 4(b).

Automatic Exercise. Certificate Holders shall not be required to deliver an exercise
notice. Exercise of Certificates shall be determined by whether the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive. If the Cash Settlement Amount
(less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be deemed to have
been automatically exercised at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if
the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day. The
Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses in respect of the Certificates
shall be paid in the manner set out in Condition 4(c) below. In the event the Cash
Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be
deemed to have expired at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry Date or if the
Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, and
Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to receive any payment from the Issuer in
respect of the Certificates.

Settlement.  In respect of Certificates which are automatically exercised in
accordance with Condition 4(b), the Issuer will pay to the Warrant Agent who will then
pay to the relevant Certificate Holder the Cash Settlement Amount (if any) in the
Settlement Currency. The aggregate Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise
Expenses) shall be dispatched by the Warrant Agent as soon as practicable and no
later than five Business Days following the Expiry Date (subject to extension upon the
occurrence of a Market Disruption Event (as defined above) by way of crossed
cheque or other payment in immediately available funds drawn in favour of the
Certificate Holder only (or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, the first-named
Certificate Holder) appearing in the records maintained by CDP. Any payment made
pursuant to this Condition 4(c) shall be delivered at the risk and expense of the
Certificate Holder and posted to the Certificate Holder's address appearing in the
records maintained by CDP (or, in the case of joint Certificate Holders, to the address
of the first-named Certificate Holder appearing in the records maintained by CDP). If
the Cash Settlement Amount is equal to or less than the determined Exercise
Expenses, no amount is payable.

The Issuer’s obligations to pay the Cash Settlement Amount shall be discharged by
payment to the Warrant Agent in accordance with the Master Warrant Agent
Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.
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CDP not liable. CDP shall not be liable to any Certificate Holder with respect to any
action taken or omitted to be taken by the Issuer or the Warrant Agent in connection
with the exercise of the Certificates or otherwise pursuant to or in connection with
these Conditions.

Business Day. In these Conditions, a "Business Day" shall be a day (excluding
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) on which the SGX-ST is open for dealings
in Singapore during its normal trading hours and banks are open for business in
Singapore.

Warrant Agent

(@)

Warrant Agent. The lIssuer reserves the right, subject to the appointment of a
successor, at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Warrant Agent and
to appoint another Warrant Agent provided that it will at all times maintain a Warrant
Agent which, so long as the Certificates are listed on the SGX-ST, shall be in
Singapore. Notice of any such termination or appointment and of any change in the
specified office of the Warrant Agent will be given to the Certificate Holders in
accordance with Condition 9.

Agent of Issuer. The Warrant Agent will be acting as agent of the Issuer and will not
assume any obligation or duty to or any relationship of agency or trust for the
Certificate Holders. All determinations and calculations by the Warrant Agent under
these Conditions shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final and binding on the
Issuer and the Certificate Holders.

Adjustments

(@)

Potential Adjustment Event. Following the declaration by a Company of the terms of
any Potential Adjustment Event (as defined below), the Issuer will determine whether
such Potential Adjustment Event has a dilutive or concentrative or other effect on the
theoretical value of the Underlying Stock and, if so, will (i) make the corresponding
adjustment, if any, to any one or more of the Conditions as the Issuer determines
appropriate to account for that dilutive or concentrative or other effect, and (ii)
determine the effective date of that adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not,
determine the appropriate adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of
such Potential Adjustment Event made by an exchange on which options or futures
contracts on the Underlying Stock are traded.

Definitions. “Potential Adjustment Event” means any of the following:

(i) a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification or other restructuring of the
Underlying Stock (excluding a Merger Event) or a free distribution or dividend
of any such Underlying Stock to existing holders by way of bonus,
capitalisation or similar issue;

(i) a distribution or dividend to existing holders of the Underlying Stock of (1)
such Underlying Stock, or (2) other share capital or securities granting the
right to payment of dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the
Company equally or proportionately with such payments to holders of such
Underlying Stock, or (3) share capital or other securities of another issuer
acquired by the Company as a result of a “spin-off’ or other similar
transaction, or (4) any other type of securities, rights or warrants or other



(vi)

(vii)
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assets, in any case for payment (in cash or otherwise) at less than the
prevailing market price as determined by the Issuer;

an extraordinary dividend;
a call by the Company in respect of the Underlying Stock that is not fully paid;

a repurchase by the Company of the Underlying Stock whether out of profits
or capital and whether the consideration for such repurchase is cash,
securities or otherwise;

with respect to a Company an event that results in any shareholder rights
pursuant to a shareholder rights agreement or other plan or arrangement of
the type commonly referred to as a “poison pill” being distributed, or
becoming separated from shares of common stock or other shares of the
capital stock of such Company (provided that any adjustment effected as a
result of such an event shall be readjusted upon any redemption of such
rights); or

any other event that may have, in the opinion of the Issuer, a dilutive or
concentrative or other effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock.

Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation and Insolvency. If a Merger Event,
Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency occurs in relation to the Underlying Stock,
the Issuer may take any action described below:

(i)

(i)

determine the appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more of
the Conditions to account for the Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or
Insolvency, as the case may be, and determine the effective date of that
adjustment. The Issuer may, but need not, determine the appropriate adjustment
by reference to the adjustment in respect of the Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency made by an options exchange to options on the
Underlying Stock traded on that options exchange;

cancel the Certificates by giving notice to the Certificate Holders in accordance
with Condition 9. If the Certificates are so cancelled, the Issuer will pay an
amount to each Certificate Holder in respect of each Certificate held by such
Certificate Holder which amount shall be the fair market value of a Certificate
taking into account the Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or
Insolvency, as the case may be, less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its
affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as
determined by the Issuer in its reasonable discretion. Payment will be made in
such manner as shall be notified to the Certificate Holders in accordance with
Condition 9; or

following any adjustment to the settlement terms of options on the Underlying
Stock on such exchange(s) or trading system(s) or quotation system(s) as the
Issuer in its reasonable discretion shall select (the “Option Reference Source”)
make a corresponding adjustment to any one or more of the Conditions, which
adjustment will be effective as of the date determined by the Issuer to be the
effective date of the corresponding adjustment made by the Option Reference
Source. If options on the Underlying Stock are not traded on the Option
Reference Source, the Issuer will make such adjustment, if any, to any one or
more of the Conditions as the Issuer determines appropriate, with reference to
the rules and precedents (if any) set by the Option Reference Source, to account
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for the Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case
may be, that in the determination of the Issuer would have given rise to an
adjustment by the Option Reference Source if such options were so traded.

Once the Issuer determines that its proposed course of action in connection with a
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, it shall give notice to the
Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9 stating the occurrence of the
Merger Event, Tender Offer, Nationalisation or Insolvency, as the case may be, giving
details thereof and the action proposed to be taken in relation thereto. Certificate
Holders should be aware that due to the nature of such events, the Issuer will not
make an immediate determination of its proposed course of action or adjustment
upon the announcement or occurrence of a Merger Event, Tender Offer,
Nationalisation or Insolvency.

Definitions. “Insolvency” means that by reason of the voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution or winding-up of or any analogous
proceeding affecting a Company (i) all the Underlying Stock of that Company is
required to be transferred to a trustee, liquidator or other similar official or (ii) holders
of the Underlying Stock of that Company become legally prohibited from transferring
them. “Merger Date” means the closing date of a Merger Event or, where a closing
date cannot be determined under the local law applicable to such Merger Event, such
other date as determined by the Issuer. “Merger Event” means, in respect of the
Underlying Stock, any (i) reclassification or change of such Underlying Stock that
results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all of such Underlying
Stock outstanding to another entity or person, (ii) consolidation, amalgamation,
merger or binding share exchange of a Company with or into another entity or person
(other than a consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in
which such Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in
reclassification or change of all of such Underlying Stock outstanding), (iii) takeover
offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other event by any entity or person to
purchase or otherwise obtain 100 per cent. of the outstanding Underlying Stock of the
Company that results in a transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transfer all
such Underlying Stock (other than such Underlying Stock owned or controlled by
such other entity or person), or (iv) consolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding
share exchange of the Company or its subsidiaries with or into another entity in which
the Company is the continuing entity and which does not result in a reclassification or
change of all such Underlying Stock outstanding but results in the outstanding
Underlying Stock (other than Underlying Stock owned or controlled by such other
entity) immediately prior to such event collectively representing less than 50 per cent.
of the outstanding Underlying Stock immediately following such event, in each case if
the Merger Date is on or before the Valuation Date. “Nationalisation” means that all
the Underlying Stock or all or substantially all of the assets of a Company are
nationalised, expropriated or are otherwise required to be transferred to any
governmental agency, authority, entity or instrumentality thereof. “Tender Offer’
means a takeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation, proposal or other
event by any entity or person that results in such entity or person purchasing, or
otherwise obtaining or having the right to obtain, by conversion or other means,
greater than 10 per cent. and less than 100 per cent. of the outstanding voting shares
of the Company, as determined by the Issuer, based upon the making of filings with
governmental or self-regulatory agencies or such other information as the Issuer
deems relevant.

Subdivision or Consolidation of the Certificates. The Issuer reserves the right to
subdivide or consolidate the Certificates, provided that such adjustment is considered
by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial to the Certificate Holders generally
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(without considering the circumstances of any individual Certificate Holder or the tax
or other consequences of such adjustment or amendment in any particular
jurisdiction).

Other Adjustments. Except as provided in this Condition 6 and Conditions 10 and 12,
adjustments will not be made in any other circumstances, subject to the right
reserved by the Issuer (such right to be exercised in the Issuer's sole and unfettered
discretion and without any obligation whatsoever) to make such adjustments and
amendments as it believes appropriate in circumstances where an event or events
(including the events as contemplated in Conditions 6(a) to 6(e)) occur which it
believes in its sole discretion (and notwithstanding any prior adjustment made
pursuant to the above) and irrespective of, in substitution for, or in addition to the
provisions contemplated in Conditions 6(a) to 6(e) should, in the context of the issue
of the Certificates and the obligations of the Issuer, give rise to such adjustment or as
the case may be, amendment provided that such adjustment or as the case may be,
amendment is considered by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial to the
Certificate Holders generally (without considering the circumstances of any individual
Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of such adjustment or
amendment in any particular jurisdiction).

Notice of Adjustments. All determinations made by the Issuer pursuant hereto will be
conclusive and binding on the Certificate Holders. The Issuer will give, or procure
that there is given notice as soon as practicable of any adjustment and of the date
from which such adjustment is effective in accordance with Condition 9. For the
avoidance of doubt, no notice will be given if the Issuer determines that adjustments
will not be made.

7. Purchases

The Issuer or its related corporations may at any time purchase Certificates at any price in the
open market or by tender or by private treaty. Any Certificates so purchased may be held or resold or
surrendered for cancellation.

8. Meetings of Certificate Holders; Modification

(@)

Meetings of Certificate Holders. The Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant
Agent Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the Certificate
Holders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by
Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or
Warrant Agent Agreement) of a modification of the provisions of the Certificates or of
the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement.

At least 21 days' notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of the
day on which the meeting is held) specifying the date, time and place of the meeting
shall be given to the Certificate Holders.

Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer or by Certificate Holders holding not
less than ten per cent. of the Certificates for the time being remaining unexercised.
The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be two
or more persons holding or representing not less than 25 per cent. of the Certificates
for the time being remaining unexercised, or at any adjourned meeting two or more
persons being or representing Certificate Holders whatever the number of Certificates
so held or represented.
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A resolution will be an Extraordinary Resolution when it has been passed at a duly
convened meeting by not less than three-quarters of the votes cast by such
Certificate Holders who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Certificate Holders shall be
binding on all the Certificate Holders whether or not they are present at the meeting.
Resolutions can be passed in writing if passed unanimously.

(b) Modification. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Certificate Holders, effect (i)
any modification of the provisions of the Certificates or the Instrument which is not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Certificate Holders or (ii) any modification
of the provisions of the Certificates or the Instrument which is of a formal, minor or
technical nature, which is made to correct an obvious error or which is necessary in
order to comply with mandatory provisions of Singapore law. Any such modification
shall be binding on the Certificate Holders and shall be notified to them by the
Warrant Agent before the date such modification becomes effective or as soon as
practicable thereafter in accordance with Condition 9.

9. Notices

(a) Documents. All cheques and other documents required or permitted by these
Conditions to be sent to a Certificate Holder or to which a Certificate Holder is entitled
or which the Issuer shall have agreed to deliver to a Certificate Holder may be
delivered by hand or sent by post addressed to the Certificate Holder at his address
appearing in the records maintained by CDP or, in the case of joint Certificate
Holders, addressed to the joint holder first named at his address appearing in the
records maintained by CDP, and airmail post shall be used if that address is not in
Singapore. All documents delivered or sent in accordance with this paragraph shall
be delivered or sent at the risk of the relevant Certificate Holder.

(b) Notices. All notices to Certificate Holders will be validly given if published in English
on the website of the SGX-ST. Such notices shall be deemed to have been given on
the date of the first such publication. If publication on the website of the SGX-ST is
not practicable, notice will be given in such other manner as the Issuer may
determine. The Issuer shall, at least one month prior to the expiry of any Certificate,
give notice of the date of expiry of such Certificate in the manner prescribed above.

10. Liquidation

In the event of a liquidation or dissolution of the Company or the appointment of a liquidator
(including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or judicial manager or trustee or administrator or
analogous person under Singapore or other applicable law in respect of the whole or substantially the
whole of its undertaking, property or assets, all unexercised Certificates will lapse and shall cease to
be valid for any purpose, in the case of voluntary liquidation, on the effective date of the relevant
resolution and, in the case of an involuntary liquidation or dissolution, on the date of the relevant court
order or, in the case of the appointment of a liquidator (including a provisional liquidator) or receiver or
judicial manager or trustee or administrator or analogous person under Singapore or other applicable
law in respect of the whole or substantially the whole of its undertaking, property or assets, on the
date when such appointment is effective but subject (in any such case) to any contrary mandatory
requirement of law. In the event of the voluntary liquidation of the Company, the Issuer shall make
such adjustments or amendments as it reasonably believes are appropriate in the circumstances.
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Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time, without the consent of the Certificate Holders,
to create and issue further certificates so as to form a single series with the Certificates.

Delisting

(@)

Delisting. If at any time, the Underlying Stock ceases to be listed on the Relevant
Stock Exchange, the Issuer shall give effect to these Conditions in such manner and
make such adjustments and amendments to the rights attaching to the Certificates as
it shall, in its absolute discretion, consider appropriate to ensure, so far as it is
reasonably able to do so, that the interests of the Certificate Holders generally are not
materially prejudiced as a consequence of such delisting (without considering the
individual circumstances of any Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences
that may result in any particular jurisdiction).

Issuer's Determination. The Issuer shall determine, in its absolute discretion, any
adjustment or amendment and its determination shall be conclusive and binding on
the Certificate Holders save in the case of manifest error. Notice of any adjustments
or amendments shall be given to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition
9 as soon as practicable after they are determined.

Early Termination

(@)

Early Termination for lllegality etc. The Issuer shall have the right to terminate the
Certificates if it shall have determined in its absolute discretion that a Regulatory Event
(as defined below) has occurred and, for reasons beyond its control its performance
thereunder shall have become unlawful in whole or in part under any applicable present
or future law, rule, regulation, judgment, order or directive of any governmental,
administrative, legislative or judicial authority or power ("Applicable Law").

For the purposes of this Condition:

“‘Regulatory Event” means, following the occurrence of a Change in Law (as defined
below) with respect to the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates involved in the issue of the
Certificates (hereafter the “Relevant Affiliates” and each of the Issuer and the Relevant
Affiliates, a “Relevant Entity”) that, after the Certificates have been issued, (i) any
Relevant Entity would incur a materially increased (as compared with circumstances
existing prior to such event) amount of tax, duty, liability, penalty, expense, fee, cost or
regulatory capital charge however defined or collateral requirements for performing its
obligations under the Certificates or hedging the Issuer's obligations under the
Certificates, including, without limitation, due to clearing requirements of, or the absence
of, clearing of the transactions entered into in connection with the issue of, or hedging the
Issuer’s obligation under, the Certificates, (ii) it is or will become for any Relevant Entity
impracticable, impossible (in each case, after using commercially reasonable efforts),
unlawful, illegal or otherwise prohibited or contrary, in whole or in part, under any law,
regulation, rule, judgement, order or directive of any governmental, administrative or
judicial authority, or power, applicable to such Relevant Entity (a) to hold, acquire, issue,
reissue, substitute, maintain, settle, or as the case may be, guarantee, the Certificates,
(b) to acquire, hold, sponsor or dispose of any asset(s) (or any interest thereof) of any
other transaction(s) such Relevant Entity may use in connection with the issue of the
Certificates or to hedge the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates, (c) to perform
obligations in connection with, the Certificates or any contractual arrangement entered
into between the Issuer and any Relevant Affiliate (including without limitation to hedge
the Issuer’s obligations under the Certificates) or (d) to hold, acquire, maintain, increase,
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substitute or redeem all or a substantial part of its direct or indirect shareholding in the
Issuer’s capital or the capital of any Relevant Affiliate or to directly or indirectly sponsor
the Issuer or any Relevant Affiliate, or (iii) there is or may be a material adverse effect on
a Relevant Entity in connection with the issue of the Certificates.

“Change in Law” means (i) the adoption, enactment, promulgation, execution or
ratification of any applicable new law, regulation or rule (including, without limitation, any
applicable tax law, regulation or rule) after the Certificates have been issued, (ii) the
implementation or application of any applicable law, regulation or rule (including, without
limitation, any applicable tax law, regulation or rule) already in force when the Certificates
have been issued but in respect of which the manner of its implementation or application
was not known or unclear at the time, or (iii) the change of any applicable law, regulation
or rule existing when the Certificates are issued, or the change in the interpretation or
application or practice relating thereto, existing when the Certificates are issued of any
applicable law, regulation or rule, by any competent court, tribunal, regulatory authority or
any other entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or
administrative powers or functions of or pertaining to government (including any additional
or alternative court, tribunal, authority or entity, to that existing when the Certificates are
issued).

(b) Early Termination for other reasons. The Issuer reserves the right (such right to be
exercised in the Issuer's sole and unfettered discretion and without any obligation
whatsoever) to terminate the Certificates in accordance with Condition 13(c) where an
event or events occur which it believes in its sole discretion should, in the context of the
issue of the Certificates and the obligations of the Issuer, give rise to such termination
provided that such termination is considered by the Issuer not to be materially prejudicial
to the interests of Certificate Holders generally (without considering the circumstances of
any individual Certificate Holder or the tax or other consequences of such termination in
any particular jurisdiction).

(c) Termination. If the Issuer terminates the Certificates early, then the Issuer will give notice
to the Certificate Holders in accordance with Condition 9. The Issuer will, if and to the
extent permitted by the Applicable Law, pay to each Certificate Holder in respect of each
Certificate held by such Certificate Holder an amount calculated by it as the fair market
value of the Certificate immediately prior to such termination (ignoring such illegality) less
the cost to the Issuer of unwinding any related hedging arrangements. Payment will be
made to the Certificate Holder in such manner as shall be notified to the Certificate Holder
in accordance with Condition 9.

14. Governing Law

The Certificates, the Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent
Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with Singapore law. The Issuer and
each Certificate Holder (by its purchase of the Certificates) shall be deemed to have submitted for all
purposes in connection with the Certificates, the Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement
or Warrant Agent Agreement to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Singapore.

15. Prescription
Claims against the Issuer for payment of any amount in respect of the Certificates will

become void unless made within six years of the Expiry Date and, thereafter, any sums payable in
respect of such Certificates shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Issuer.
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16. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act, Chapter 53B of Singapore

Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Global Warrant, the Instrument and the Master
Warrant Agent Agreement or Warrant Agent Agreement, a person who is not a party to any contracts
made pursuant to the Global Warrant, the Instrument and the Master Warrant Agent Agreement or
Warrant Agent Agreement has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act, Chapter
53B of Singapore to enforce any terms of such contracts. Except as expressly provided herein, the
consent of any third party is not required for any subsequent agreement by the parties hereto to
amend or vary (including any release or compromise of any liability) or terminate such contracts.
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

The following is a summary of the issue and should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified by reference to, the other information set out in this document and the Base Listing
Document. Terms used in this Summary are defined in the Conditions.

Issuer:
Company:

The Certificates:

Number:

Form:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Denominations:

Exercise:

Exercise and Trading
Currency:

Board Lot:

UBS AG acting through its London Branch
Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited

European Style Cash Settled Short Certificates relating to the Underlying
Stock

8,000,000 Certificates

The Certificates will be issued subject to, and with the benefit of, a
master instrument by way of deed poll dated 7 January 2022 (the
“Master Instrument”) and executed by the Issuer and a master warrant
agent agreement dated 27 February 2008 (the “Master Warrant Agent
Agreement”) and made between the Issuer and the Warrant Agent.

In respect of each Certificate, is the amount (if positive) equal to:
Notional Amount per Certificate x Closing Level

Certificates are represented by a global warrant in respect of all the
Certificates.

The Certificates may only be exercised on the Expiry Date or if the Expiry
Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day, in
a Board Lot or integral multiples thereof. Certificate Holders will not be
required to deliver an exercise notice. If the Cash Settlement Amount (less
any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates will be deemed to have
been automatically exercised at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry
Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding
Business Day. The Cash Settlement Amount less the Exercise Expenses
in respect of the Certificates shall be paid in the manner set out in
Condition 4(c) of the Conditions. In the event the Cash Settlement
Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be
deemed to have expired at 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on the Expiry
Date or if the Expiry Date is not a Business Day, the immediately
preceding Business Day, and Certificate Holders shall not be entitled to
receive any payment from the Issuer in respect of the Certificates.

SGD

100 Certificates



Transfers of Certificates:

Listing:

Governing Law:

Warrant Agent:

Further Issues:
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Certificates may only be transferred in Board Lots (or integral multiples
thereof). All transfers in Certificates, in the open market or otherwise,
must be effected through a securities account with CDP. Title will pass
upon registration of the transfer in the records of CDP.

Application has been made to the SGX-ST for permission to deal in and
for quotation of the Certificates and the SGX-ST has agreed in principle
to grant permission to deal in and for quotation of the Certificates. Issue
of the Certificates is conditional on such listing being granted. It is
expected that dealings in the Certificates on the SGX-ST will commence
on or about 15 June 2022.

The laws of Singapore

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited
11 North Buona Vista Drive

#06-07 The Metropolis Tower 2
Singapore 138589

Further issues which will form a single series with the Certificates will be
permitted.

The above summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this document and the Base Listing Document.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO
THE EUROPEAN STYLE CASH SETTLED SHORT CERTIFICATES ON SINGLE EQUITIES

What are European Style Cash Settled Short Certificates on Single Equities?

European style cash settled short certificates on single equities (the “Certificates”) are structured
products relating to the Underlying Stock and the return on a Certificate is linked to the performance
of the Leverage Inverse Strategy.

A) Cash Settlement Amount Payable upon the Exercise of the Certificates at Expiry

Upon the exercise of the Certificates at expiry, the Certificate Holders would be paid a Cash
Settlement Amount in respect of each Certificate.

The Cash Settlement Amount, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the
Settlement Currency equal to the Closing Level multiplied by the Notional Amount per Certificate.

The Closing Level, in respect of each Certificate, shall be an amount payable in the Settlement
Currency equal to (1) divided by (2) less (3) subject to any adjustments such as (4), where:

(1) is the Final Reference Level multiplied by the Final Exchange Rate;
(2) is the Initial Reference Level multiplied by the Initial Exchange Rate;
(3) is the Strike Level; and

(4) is the Hedging Fee Factor.

If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is positive, all Certificates shall be
deemed to have been automatically exercised and investors will receive a Cash Settlement Amount.
If the Cash Settlement Amount (less any Exercise Expenses) is zero, all Certificates shall be deemed
to have expired. Please refer to the section headed “Terms and Conditions of the European Style
Cash Settled Long/Short Certificates on Single Equities” for further details on the calculation of the
Cash Settlement Amount.

The Certificates are only suitable for investors who believe that the price of the Underlying Stock will
decrease and are seeking short-term leveraged inverse exposure to the Underlying Stock.

B) Trading the Certificates before Expiry

If the Certificate Holders want to cash out their investments in the Certificates before the expiry of the
Certificates, they may sell the Certificates in the secondary market during the life of the Certificates,
and would be subject to the following fees and charges:

(i) For Certificate Holders who trade the Certificates intraday: shall pay normal transaction and
brokerage fees for the trading of the Certificates on the SGX-ST, and may be required to pay
stamp taxes or other documentary charges in accordance with the laws and practices of the
country where the Certificates are transferred; and

(i) For Certificate Holders who hold the Certificates overnight: in addition to the normal
transaction and brokerage fees and applicable stamp taxes, would also be required to bear
the Management Fee and Gap Premium as well as certain costs embedded within the
Leverage Inverse Strategy including the Stock Borrowing Cost and the Rebalancing Cost.
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lllustration of the Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor

Hedging Fee

Factor = Product of the Daily Fees

Daily Management Fee Adjustment

1 —Management Fee x ACT (t-1;t) / 360

Daily Fees = X

Daily Gap Premium Adjustment

1 — Gap Premium (t-1) x ACT (t-1:t) / 360

Illustration of the Calculation of Cash Settlement Amount

Cash Settlement Amount = Final Value of Certificates — Strike Level (zero)

t’=0 t=1 t=2 t=i
Leverage Leverage
Leverage
Value of . ) Inverse ) Inverse .
o =| Notional | x | Inverse Daily X Daily X ... Daily
Certificates ) X Strategy Strategy
Amount Strategy daily Fees . Fees . Fees
s daily Daily
performance
performance performance
t=0 Product of the daily Leverage Inverse Strategy Product of the Daily Fees (Hedging Fee
Performance Factor)
Value of
Certificates = Notional X Leverage Inverse Leverage Inverse X
Amount Strategy daily X Strategy daily Daily Fees X Daily Fees
performance performance
Final Value t=0 Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate
of = | Notional | x + X Hedging Fee Factor
i Amount
Certificates Initial Reference Level x Initial Exchange Rate

lllustration of the applicable fees and charges for an intraday trading scenario

Hedging Fee is implemented overnight in the price of the Certificate. As a consequence, when trading
intraday, investors will not bear any Hedging Fee.

Investors will only support bid/ask costs, which are the difference between the price at which the
Designated Market Maker purchases (bid) and sells (ask) the Certificate at any point of time.

7" refers to “Observation Date” which means each Underlying Stock Business Day (subject to Market Disruption Event) from
(and including) the Underlying Stock Business Day immediately preceding the Expected Listing Date to the Valuation Date.

8 Leverage Inverse Strategy daily performance is computed as the Leverage Inverse Strategy Level on Business Day (t) divided
by the Leverage Inverse Strategy Level on Business Day (t-1).
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Example of Calculation of Hedging Fee Factor and Cash Settlement Amount

The example is purely hypothetical. We include the example to illustrate how the Certificates work,
and you MUST NOT rely on them as any indication of the actual return or what the payout on the
Certificates might actually be. The example also assumes a product which expires 16 days after
listing date, to illustrate the daily calculation of price, costs and fees from listing date to expiry date.

Assuming an investor purchases the following Certificates at the Issue Price:

Underlying Stock:

Expected Listing Date:
Expiry Date:

Initial Reference Level:
Initial Exchange Rate:

Final Reference Level:
Final Exchange Rate:

Issue Price:

Notional Amount per Certificate:

Management Fee (p.a.):
Gap Premium (p.a.):

Strike Level:

Hedging Fee Factor

Ordinary shares of Sunny Optical Technology
(Group) Company Limited

01/02/2021
16/02/2021

1,000

1,200

0.55 SGD
0.55 SGD
0.40%
6.90%

Zero

Hedging Fee Factor on the nt" Underlying Stock Business Day after issuance of Certificate (‘HFF (n)”)

is calculated as follows:

HFF(0) = 100%

On Next Calendar Day (assuming it is an Underlying Stock Business Day):

HFF (1) = HFF (0) x (1— Management Fee X

1
= % X -040% X — ) X
HFF (1) = 100% (1 0.40% 360) (

ACT (t—1;0)

ACT (t— 1;t)>
360

X [1- GapP i X
) < ap Premium 360

1
1-690% X —

360)

HFF (1) = 100% x 99.9989% x 99.9808% = 99.9797%
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Assuming 2" Underlying Stock Business Day falls 3 Calendar Days after 1st Underlying Stock
Business Day:
ACT (t— 1;¢t)

ACT (t— 1;t))
360

HFF (2) = HFF (1) x (1 - Management Fee X 360

) X <1 - Gap Premium X

3 3
= . % X - 0.40% X —] X - 6.90% X —
HFF (2) 99.9797% (1 0.40% 360) (1 6.90% 360)

HFF (2) = 99.9797% X 99.9967% X 99.9425% = 99.9189%

The same principle applies to the following Underlying Stock Business Days:

ACT (t—1;0)

360

HFF (n) = HFF (n—1) X (1 - Management Fee X 360

. ACT (t—1;t)
X | 1- Gap Premium X ——————

In this example, the Hedging Fee Factor as of the Valuation Date would be equal to 99.6962% as
illustrated below:

Date HFF
2/1/2021 100.0000%
2/2/2021 99.9797%
2/3/2021 99.9594%
2/4/2021 99.9392%
2/5/2021 99.9189%
2/8/2021 99.8581%
2/9/2021 99.8379%

2/10/2021 99.8176%
2/11/2021 99.7974%
2/12/2021 99.7772%
2/15/2021 99.7165%
2/16/2021 99.6962%

Cash Settlement Amount
In this example, the Closing Level and the Cash Settlement Amount would be computed as follows:
Closing Level = [(Final Reference Level x Final Exchange Rate) / (Initial Reference Level x Initial

Exchange Rate) — Strike Level] x Hedging Fee Factor
=[(1200 x 1) / (1000 x 1) — 0] x 99.6962%

=119.64%

Cash Settlement Amount = Closing Level x Notional Amount per Certificate
=119.64% x 0.55 SGD

=0.658 SGD
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lllustration on how returns and losses can occur under different scenarios

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of the Underlying Stock performance on the value of
the Certificates and do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, dividends,
or any other market parameters.

1. lllustrative examples

Scenario 1 - Upward Trend

e+« Underlying Price

Certificates Value

Scenario 2 - Downward Trend

seeeos Underlying Price
- Certificates Value

Scenario 3 - Volatile Market

v

seee+s Underlying Price

Certificates Value
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Scenario 1 — Upward Trend

Underlying
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Value at end of day  10,000.00 10,200.00 10,404.00 10,612.08 10,824.32 11,040.81
Accumulated Return 2.00% 4.04% 6.12% 8.24% 10.41%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return -10.00% -10.00% -10.00% -10.00% -10.00%
Price at end of day 0.55 0.50 0.45 0.40 0.36 0.32
Accumulated Return -10.00% -19.00% -27.10% -34.39% -40.95%
Scenario 2 — Downward Trend
Underlying
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return -2.00% -2.00% -2.00% -2.00% -2.00%
Value at end of day  10,000.00 9,800.00 9,604.00 9,411.92 9,223.68 9,039.21
Accumulated Return -2.00% -3.96% -5.88% -7.76% -9.61%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Price at end of day 0.55 0.61 0.67 0.73 0.81 0.89
Accumulated Return 10.00% 21.00% 33.10% 46.41% 61.05%
Scenario 3 — Volatile Market
Underlying
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return 2.00% -2.00% -2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Value at end of day  10,000.00 10,200.00 9,996.00 9,796.08 9,992.00 10,191.84
Accumulated Return 2.00% -0.04% -2.04% -0.08% 1.92%
Value of the Certificates
Day 0 Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5
Daily Return -10.00% 10.00% 10.00% -10.00% -10.00%
Price at end of day 0.55 0.50 0.54 0.60 0.54 0.49
Accumulated Return -10.00% -1.00% 8.90% -1.99% -11.79%
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Description of Air Bag Mechanism

The Certificates integrate an “Air Bag Mechanism” which is designed to reduce exposure to the
Underlying Stock during extreme market conditions.

In accordance with the Air Bag Mechanism timeline below, when the Air Bag triggers, the following
typically occurs:

- Observation Period : the price of the Underlying Stock is observed and its maximum price is
recorded (i) during 15 minutes of continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered, or (ii) until
Market Close if there is 15 minutes (or less) of continuous trading until Market Close when the
Air Bag is triggered; and

- Reset Period: thereafter, the Leverage Inverse Strategy is reset using the maximum price of
the Underlying Stock during the Observation Period as the New Observed Price. The New
Observed Price replaces the last closing price of the Underlying Stock in order to compute the
performance of the Leverage Inverse Strategy.

During the Observation Period and Reset Period, trading of Certificates is suspended for at least 30
minutes of continuous trading after the Air Bag is triggered. Investors cannot sell or purchase any
Certificates during this period. The Reset Period (and consequently the resumption of trading) is
subject further to SGX-ST’s requirements, including at least 30 minutes from the time of publication of
an announcement on the exchange in respect of the Air Bag Mechanism being triggered, and at least
15 minutes after the SGX-ST grants an approval to resume trading, whichever is later, rounded to the
next quarter of an hour.

The performance of the Leverage Inverse Strategy will be the inverse of the Underlying Stock.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the Air Bag Mechanism was triggered with more than 60 minutes of
continuous trading before Market Close, trading of Certificates will resume the same trading day after
the Reset Period has elapsed, subject to the SGX-ST’s approval to resume trading. If the Air Bag
Mechanism was triggered between 45 minutes and 60 minutes of continuous trading before Market
Close, trading of Certificates may or may not resume the same trading day after the Reset Period has
elapsed. If the Air Bag Mechanism was triggered with only 45 minutes (or less) of continuous trading
before Market Close, trading of Certificates resumes on the next trading day.

With Market Close defined as:

- Underlying Stock closing time with respect to the Observation Period including the closing
auction session

- The sooner between Underlying Stock closing time of continuous trading and SGX-ST closing
time of continuous trading with respect to the resumption of trading
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lllustrative examples of the Air Bag Mechanism®
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Scenario 1 - Upward Trend after Air Bag Trigger

Suspension of Trading of Leveraged Cetificates

------ Underlying Stock Daily Performance

Leverage Inverse Strategy Daily
Performance without Air Bag
Leverage Inverse Strategy Daily
Performance with Air Bag

15-min Observation Period A Reset Period

Air Bag Trigger

Leverage Inverse Strategy reset
based on the New

Ybserved Price

Leveraged Certificates
Trading resumes
Without Air Bag Mechanism,
Leverage Inverse Strategy
would

have.reached 0

eset Period (and consequently the resumption of trading) is subject further to SGX-ST’s
requirements, including at least 30 minutes from the time of publication of an announcement on the
exchange in respect of the Air Bag Mechanism being triggered, and at least 15 minutes after the
SGX-ST grants an approval to resume trading, whichever is later, rounded to the next quarter of an

Scenario 2 - Downward Trend after Air Bag Trigger

Suspension of Trading of Leveraged Cetificates

Leverage Inverse Srategy Daily
Performance without Air Bag
Leverage Inverse Strategy Daily
Performance with Air Bag

15-min Observation Period " Reset Period

Air Bag Trigger

Leverage Inverse Strategy reset
Leveraged Certificates
Trading resumes

based on the New
\ Observed Price

Without Air Bag Mechanism,
Leverage Inverse Strategy would
have recovered more

A The Reset Period (and consequently the resumption of trading) is subject further to SGX-ST’s
requirements, including at least 30 minutes from the time of publication of an announcement on the
exchange in respect of the Air Bag Mechanism being triggered, and at least 15 minutes after the
SGX-ST grants an approval to resume trading, whichever is later, rounded to the next quarter of an

hour.

9 The illustrative examples are not exhaustive.
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Scenarios where the investor may lose the entire value of the investment

The scenarios below are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors
into consideration. The scenarios highlight cases where the Certificates may lose 100% of their value.

Scenario 1 — Overnight rise of the Underlying Stock

On any business day, the opening price of the Underlying Stock may be higher or lower than the
closing price on the previous day. The difference between the previous closing price and the opening
price of the Underlying Stock is termed a “gap”. If the opening price of the Underlying Stock is 20% or
more above the previous day closing price, the Air Bag Mechanism would only be triggered when the
market opens the following day, and the Certificates would lose their entire value in such event.
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Scenario 2 — Sharp intraday rise of the Underlying Stock

Although the Air Bag Mechanism is designed to reduce the exposure to the Underlying Stock during
extreme market conditions, the Certificate can lose 100% of its value in the event the price of the
Underlying Stock rises by 20% or more within the 15 minutes Observation Period compared to the
reference price, being: (i) if air bag event has not been previously triggered on the same day, the
previous closing price of the Underlying Stock, or (ii) if one or more air bag events have been
previously triggered on the same day, the latest New Observed Price. The Certificates would lose
their entire value in such event.

40% -

Suspension of Trading of Leveraged Cetificates
30% -

20% _ ....-- .‘.. .....'.o.-"-.,.... .....oooo...........

.
.
eeo0e®®®
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Examples and illustrations of adjustments due to certain corporate actions

The examples are purely hypothetical and do not take fees and charges payable by investors into
consideration. The examples highlight the effect of corporate actions on the value of the Certificates
and do not take into account the possible influence of fees, exchange rates, or any other market
parameters.

In the case of any corporate action on the Underlying Stock, the Calculation Agent will, as soon as
reasonably practical after it becomes aware of such event, determine whether such corporate action
has a dilutive or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Underlying Stock, and if so, will (a)
calculate the corresponding adjustment, if any, to be made to the elements relating to the Underlying
Stock which are used to determine any settlement or payment terms under the Certificates and/or
adjust at its discretion any other terms of the Certificates as it determines appropriate to preserve the
economic equivalent of the obligations of the Issuer under the Certificates and (b) determine the
effective date of such adjustment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Observation Date of the Leverage Reset Time(t) is an
ex-date with respect to a corporate action related to the Underlying Stock, and the immediately
preceding Leverage Reset Time r(t) is at the scheduled closing time for the Relevant Stock Exchange
for the Underlying Stock (or any successor thereto), the Calculation Agent may, in its sole and
absolute discretion, replace the Rfactor; with respect to such Leverage Reset Time (t) by an amount
computed according to the following generic formula :

Div, + DivExc, — M X R 1
X
Sro) 1+M

Rfactor, = |1 —

This formula is provided for indicative purposes and the Calculation Agent may determine that this
formula is not appropriate for certain corporate actions and may apply a different formula instead.

Such adjustment of Rfactor, would affect the Leveraged Return, the Rebalancing Cost, and the
Underlying Reference Price used to determine the Intraday Restrike Event. The Air Bag mechanism
would not be triggered if the stock price rises by 15% exclusively because of the dilutive effect of a
corporate action.

Where:

DivExc;, is the amount received as an Extraordinary Dividend by a holder of existing Shares for each
Share held prior to the Extraordinary Dividend, net of any applicable withholding taxes.

M is the number of new Share(s) (whether a whole or a fraction) per existing Share each holder
thereof is entitled to subscribe or to receive (positive amount) or the number of existing Shares
redeemed or canceled per existing Share (negative amount), as the case may be, resulting from the
corporate action.

R is the subscription price per Share (positive amount) or the redemption price per Share (negative
amount) including any dividends or other benefits forgone to be subscribe to or to receive (as
applicable), or to redeem a Share.

1. Stock split

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 1 to 2 stock split (i.e. 1 new Share for every 1 existing
share):

Sr‘(t) = $1OO

S, = $51
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Div, = $0
DivExc, = $0
M =1 (i.e. 1 new Shares for 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)

Rfact _[1 0+0—2><0)]>< 1 Y
factor, = 100 1+1 7
As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 51 _ _

LR (y,c = Leverage X (sr(t) x Rfactory 1) = 75X (100><50% 1) =—10%

Sreo) St X Rfactor; St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 50 51 2%
Value of the Certificate r(t) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.55 0.495 -10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price rises to $57.5,
which is 15% above $50, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

2. Share Consolidation

Assuming the Underlying Stock is subject to a 2 to 1 share consolidation (i.e. 1 Share canceled for
every 2 existing Shares):

Srp = $100

S = $202

Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

M =-0.5 (i.e. 0.5 Shares canceled for each 1 existing Share)

R = $0 (no subscription price / redemption price)

Rfact [1 0+ 0—(=0.5) x 0) 1 200%
= — X =
factor, 100 1+ (-05) °

As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 202 _ _
LRy(y = Leverage X (sr(t) x Rfactory 1) =-5x (100xzoo% 1) =—5%
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Sreo Sty X Rfactory St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance
100 200 202 1%
Value of the Certificate r(t) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.55

0.5225

-5%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price rises to $230, which

is 15% above $200, the Unde

3. Rights Issues

rlying Stock Reference Price.

Assuming there is a rights issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, with a right to receive 1 new
Share for every 2 existing Shares, for a subscription price of $40.

Sr(t) = $100
5, = $84
Div, = $0

DivExc, = $0

R = $40 (i.e. subscription price of $40)

M = 0.5 (i.e. 1 new share for every 2 existing shares)

Rfact _[1 0+0—0.5><40]>< 1 — 80%
factor, = 100 1+05 7
As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 84 _ _

LRy = Leverage X (sr(t) X Rfactory 1) = 5 X (100 X 80% 1) 25%

Sreo Sty X Rfactory St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%
Value of the Certificate r(t) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.55

0.4125

-25%




47

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price rises to $92, which
is 15% above $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

4. Bonus Issues

Assuming there is a bonus issue with respect to the Underlying Stock, where shareholders receive 1

bonus share for 5 existing shares:

Sie = $100
S: = $85
Div, = $0
DivExc, = $0

R=$0

M = 0.2 (i.e. 1 new share for 5 existing shares)

Rfactor; = [1 —

As a consequence:

0+0-02x0

1
E
100 1402

= 83.33%

_ St _ _ 85 _ _
LRyy = Leverage X (sr(t) x Rfactore 1) =-5X (100 x 83.33% 1) 10%
Sreo Sty X Rfactor, St Adjusted Underlying
Stock Performance
100 83.33 85 2%
Value of the Certificate r(t) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.55

0.495

-10%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price rises to $95.83,

which is 15% above $83.33, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.

5. Extraordinary Dividend

Assuming there is an extraordinary dividend of $20 (net of taxes) paid in respect of each stock.

Sr‘(t) = $100
5, = $84
Div, = $0

DivExc, = $20

R=$0




Rfact _[1 0+20—0><0]>< 1 _ 80%
factor = 100 1+0 7
As a consequence:
_ St _ _ 84 _ _

LRy (y),c = Leverage X (Sm) x Rfactory 1) = 75X (100><80% 1) = —25%

S St X Rfactory St Adjusted Underlying

Stock Performance

100 80 84 5%
Value of the Certificate r(t) Value of the Certificate (t) Certificates’ performance

(excluding any cost and fees)

0.55

0.4125

-25%

In such case an Intraday Restrike Event would occur if the Underlying Stock price rises to $92, which
is 15% above $80, the Underlying Stock Reference Price.
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMPANY

All information contained in this document regarding the Company, including, without limitation, its
financial information, is derived from publicly available information which appears on the web-site of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKExCL”) at http://www.hkex.com.hk and/or the
Company’s web-site at http.//www.sunnyoptical.com/en/default.html. The Issuer has not
independently verified any of such information.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) (SEHK stock code: 2382) is a
leading company in integrated optical device manufacturers and an optical imaging system solution
provider. The Company went public in 2007 and is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company has strong capabilities in R&D and manufacturing. With great reputation among its
customers worldwide, the company has extended its market in forty countries and regions and has
become the most important supplier to many Tier 1 customers domestically and internationally. The
company has also gained significant global market share in compact module camera, lens sets for
mobile devices and automotive lenses.

The Company has five production sites in Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta, Bohai Bay and
Central Plain Areas, respectively. There are also R&D center and local customer support offices in
North America, Japan, South Korea, Singapore, and Taiwan.

The Company is one of a few enterprises inside China that have first-class design capability and
mass production capacity for integrated products combining optics, mechanics electronics and
software technology. Therefore, it has established its leadership in special coating technology in lens
production, aspherical optics auto-focus and zooming, development in chalcogenide glass material,
embedded software, 3D scanning and imaging, 3D ultra-precision vibration measuring, trace element
analysis, ultra-high pixel camera modules design and manufacturing.

Supported by its high ranking in optoelectronic industry, the Company also promotes its “Famous Co-
Star” strategy with commitment to achieve high tech, high value and high efficiency. Now it is focus on
transformation and upgrading production, profit and operation models in order to advance its
production base with advantages in value, system integration and brand name.

The information set out in Appendix | of this document relates to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021 and has been
extracted and reproduced from an announcement by the Company released on 22 April 2022 in
relation to the same. Further information relating to the Company may be located on the web-site of
the HKExCL at http://www.hkex.com.hk.



http://www.sunnyoptical.com/en/default.html
http://www.hkex.com.hk/
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DESIGNATED MARKET MAKER

UBS AG, acting through its London Branch, has been appointed the designated market maker
(“DMM”) for the Certificates. The DMM will provide competitive buy and sell quotes for the Certificates
continuously during the trading hours of the SGX-ST on the following basis:

(@)

(b)

()

Maximum bid and offer spread : (i) when the best bid price of the Certificate is
S$10 and below: 10 ticks or S$0.20
whichever is greater; and

(i) when the best bid price of the Certificate is
above S$10: 5% of the best bid price of the
Certificate.

Minimum quantity subject to bid and : 10,000 Certificates
offer spread

Last Trading Day for Market Making : The date faling 5 Exchange Business Days
immediately preceding the Expiry Date

In addition, the DMM may not provide a quotation in the following circumstances:

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

during the pre-market opening and five minutes following the opening of the SGX-ST on any
trading day;

if the Certificates are valueless (where the Issuer’s bid price is below the minimum bid size for
such securities as prescribed by the SGX-ST);

before the Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock has opened and after the
Relevant Stock Exchange for the Underlying Stock has closed on any trading day;

when trading in the Underlying Stock is suspended or limited in a material way for any reason,
for the avoidance of doubt, the DMM is not obliged to provide quotations for the Certificates at
any time when the Underlying Stock is not negotiated/traded for any reason;

where the Certificates are suspended from trading for any reason;

market disruption events, including, without limitation, any suspension of or limitation imposed
on trading (including but not limited to unforeseen circumstances such as by reason of
movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the SGX-ST or any act of God, war, riot,
public disorder, explosion, terrorism or otherwise) in the Underlying Stock;

where the Issuer or the DMM faces technical problems affecting the ability of the DMM to
provide bids and offer quotations;

where the ability of the Issuer to source a hedge or unwind an existing hedge, as determined
by the Issuer in good faith, is materially affected by the prevailing market conditions, and the
Issuer informs the SGX-ST of its inability to do so as soon as practicable;

in cases where the Issuer has no Certificates to sell, then the DMM will only provide the bid
price;

if the stock market experiences exceptional price movement and volatility;
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(xi)  when it is a public holiday in Singapore and/or Hong Kong and/or the SGX-ST and/or the
HKEX is not open for dealings; and

(xii)  during the suspension of trading of Certificates after an Air Bag Mechanism has been
triggered.

The last trading day on which the DMM will provide competitive quotations for the Certificates would
be the fifth Exchange Business Day immediately preceding the Expiry Date.
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PLACING AND SALE

General

No action has been or will be taken by the Issuer that would permit a public offering of the
Certificates or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation to the Certificates in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. No offers, sales or deliveries of any Certificates,
or distribution of any offering material relating to the Certificates may be made in or from any
jurisdiction except in circumstances which will result in compliance with any applicable laws or
regulations and will not impose any obligation on the Issuer. In the event that the Issuer contemplates
a placing, placing fees may be payable in connection with the issue and the Issuer may at its
discretion allow discounts to placees.

United Kingdom
In relation to each tranche of Certificates, the Issuer has represented, warranted and agreed that:
(a) No deposit-taking: in relation to any Certificates having a maturity of less than one year:

(i) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or
disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business; and

(ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Certificates other than to persons:

(A) whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or
disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses;
or

(B) who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of
investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses,

where the issue of the Certificates would otherwise constitute a contravention of section 19
of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA”) by the Issuer;

(b) Financial Promotion: it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only
communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment
activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or
sale of any Certificates in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not or would not, if
the Issuer was not an authorised person, apply to the Issuer; and

(c) General Compliance: it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA
with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Certificates in, from or otherwise involving the
United Kingdom.

If the applicable Supplemental Listing Document in respect of any Certificates specifies the
"Prohibition of Sales to European Economic Area Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Issuer has
represented and agreed that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available such Certificates to
any retail investor in the United Kingdom. For the purposes of this provision:

(a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it
forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018
(“EUWA”); or
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(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or
regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on immediately before exit day to
implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a
professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No
600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms
part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; and

(b) the expression an "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of
sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to
enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Certificates.

If the applicable Supplemental Listing Document in respect of any Certificates specifies the
"Prohibition of Sales to European Economic Area Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Issuer has
represented and agreed that it has not made and will not make an offer of Certificates which are the
subject of the offering contemplated by the Base Listing Document as completed by this
Supplemental Listing Document to the public in the United Kingdom except that it may make an offer
of such Certificates to the public in the United Kingdom:

a) if the Supplemental Listing Document in relation to the Certificates specifies an offer of those
Certificates may be made other than pursuant to Article 1(4) of the UK Prospectus Regulation
in the United Kingdom (a "Public Offer"), following the date of publication of a prospectus in
relation to such Certificates which either (i) has been approved by the UK Financial Conduct
Authority (“FCA”), or (ii) is to be treated as if it had been approved by the FCA in accordance
with the transitional provision in Regulation 74 of the Prospectus (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2019, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by
final terms contemplating such Public Offer, in the period beginning and ending on the dates
specified in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable, and the Issuer has consented in
writing to its use for the purpose of that Public Offer;

b) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK
Prospectus Regulation;

c) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as
defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation); or

d) atany time in any other circumstances falling within section 86 of the FSMA, provided that no
such offer of Certificates to the public referred to in (a) to (c) above shall require the
publication of a prospectus pursuant to section 85 of the FSMA or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation,

provided that no such offer of Certificates referred to in (b) to (d) above shall require the Issuer to
publish a prospectus pursuant to section 85 of the FSMA or supplement a prospectus pursuant to
Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression “an offer of Certificates to the public” in relation to
any products in the United Kingdom means the communication in any form and by any means of
sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to enable an
investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Certificates, and the expression “UK Prospectus
Regulation” means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the
EUWA.
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United States of America

The Certificates have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act. Subject to
certain exceptions, Certificates, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold or
delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S.
person or to others for offering, sale or resale in the United States or to any such U.S. person. Offers
and sales of Certificates, or interests therein, in the United States or to U.S. persons would constitute
a violation of United States securities laws unless made in compliance with registration requirements
of the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption therefrom. The Certificates will not be offered, sold
or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons. As used herein, “United States” means the
United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia), its territories, its
possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction; and “U.S. person” means (i) any citizen or
resident of the United States, including any corporation, partnership or other entity created or
organised in or under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof, (ii) any
estate or trust the income of which is subject to United States income taxation regardless of its
source, (iii) “U.S. person” as such term is defined in (a) Regulation S under the Securities Act or (b)
the Interpretive Guidance and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap
Regulations promulgated by the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC") pursuant to
the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended, or (iv) a person other than a "Non-United
States Person" as defined in CFTC Rule 4.7, in each case, as such definition is amended, modified or
supplemented from time to time.

Prohibition of Sales to European Economic Area

If the applicable Supplemental Listing Document in respect of any Certificates specifies the
"Prohibition of Sales to European Economic Area Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", the Issuer has
represented and agreed that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not offer, sell
or otherwise make available any Certificates which are the subject of the offering contemplated by the
Base Listing Document as completed by this Supplemental Listing Document to any retail investor in
the European Economic Area. For the purposes of this provision:

(a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as
amended, “MiFID II");

(i) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2016/97 (as amended), where that
customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article

4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended,
the “Prospectus Regulation”); and

(b) the expression an "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of
sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to
enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Certificates.

PUBLIC OFFER SELLING RESTRICTION UNDER THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION

If the Supplemental Listing Document specifies "Prohibition of Sales to European Economic
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Area Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", in relation to each member state of the European
Economic Area (each, a "Relevant State"), the Issuer has represented, warranted and agreed that it
has not made and will not make an offer of Certificates which are the subject of the offering
contemplated by the Base Listing Document as completed by this Supplemental Listing Document to
the public in that Relevant State except that it may make an offer of such Certificates to the public in
that Relevant State:

(a) Approved listing document: if the Supplemental Listing Document in relation to the
Certificates specifies that an offer of those Certificates may be made other than pursuant to Article
1(4) of the Prospectus Regulation in that Relevant State (a "Non-exempt Offer"), following the date of
publication of a listing document in relation to such Certificates which has been approved by the
competent authority in that Relevant State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant State
and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant State, provided that any such listing document
has subsequently been completed by the Supplemental Listing Document contemplating such Non-
exempt Offer, in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation, in the period beginning and ending on
the dates specified in such listing document or Supplemental Listing Document, as applicable and the
Issuer has consented in writing to its use for the purpose of that Non-exempt Offer;

(b) Qualified investors: at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined
in the Prospectus Regulation;

(c) Fewer than 150 offered: at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than
qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Regulation), subject to obtaining the prior consent of
the Issuer for any such offer; or

(d) Other exempt offers: at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of
the Prospectus Regulation,

provided that no such offer of Certificates referred to in (b) to (d) above shall require the
Issuer to publish a listing document pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Regulation or supplement
a listing document pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an "offer of Certificates to the public" in
relation to any Certificates in any Relevant State means the communication in any form and by any
means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Certificates to be offered so as to
enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the Certificates, as the same may be varied
in that Relevant State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Regulation in that Relevant
State.

Singapore

This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of
Singapore. Accordingly, this document and any other document or material in connection with the
offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of Certificates may not be circulated or
distributed, nor may Certificates be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than pursuant
to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any applicable provision of the Securities and Futures
Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore.
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Hong Kong

No person, other than a person permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong,
has issued, or had in its possession for the purposes of issue, or will issue, or have in its possession
for the purposes of issue any advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Certificates,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be
accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong other than with respect to Certificates which are or are
intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors”
within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of the Laws of Hong Kong and
any rules made thereunder.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ISSUER

The information set out in Appendix Il of this document relates to the recent developments in the
Issuer’s business.

The information set out in Appendix Ill of this document is an extract of the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of UBS AG and its subsidiaries for the first quarter ended 31 March 2022.

For more information on the Issuer, please see http://www.ubs.com/.

Queries regarding the Certificates may be directed to +852 2971 6668 or OL-HKWarrants@ubs.com.



http://www.ubs.com/
mailto:OL-HKWarrants@ubs.com
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SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL INFORMATION

The information set out herein is supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the

information set out on page 281 of the Base Listing Document.

1.

Save as disclosed in the Base Listing Document and herein, there is no litigation, arbitration
or administrative proceedings relating to claims or amounts which are material in the context
of the issue of the Certificates to which the Issuer is a party nor, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, is there any threatened litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings relating
to claims or amounts which are material in the context of the issue of the Certificates which
would in either case jeopardise its ability to discharge its obligations in respect of the
Certificates.

UBS AG, Singapore Branch at 9 Penang Road, Singapore 238459, has been authorised to
accept, on behalf of the Issuer, service of process and any other notices required to be
served on the Issuer. Any notices required to be served on the Issuer should be sent to UBS
AG, Singapore Branch at the above address for the attention of Han-Kiat Tan, Legal &
Compliance.

Settlement of trades done on a normal “ready basis” on the SGX-ST generally take place on
the second Business Day following the transaction. Dealing in the Certificates will take place
in board lots of 100 Certificates in Singapore dollars. For further details on the transfer of
Certificates and their exercise, please refer to the section headed “Summary of the Issue”
above.

It is not the current intention of the Issuer to apply for a listing of the Certificates on any stock
exchange other than the SGX-ST.

There has been no adverse change, material in the context of the issue of the Certificates, in
the financial position of the Issuer since 31 March 2022.

The following contracts, relating to the issue of the Certificates, have been or will be entered
into by the Issuer and may be material to the issue of the Certificates:

(a) the Master Instrument; and
(b) the Master Warrant Agent Agreement.

None of the directors of the Issuer has any direct or indirect interest in any of the above
contracts.

The Issuer has appropriate risk management capabilities to manage the issue of the
Certificates.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected during usual business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted) at the office of Allen & Gledhill LLP at
One Marina Boulevard #28-00, Singapore 018989, during the period of 14 days from the date
of this document:
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the articles of association of the Issuer;
the latest financial reports (including the notes thereto) of the Issuer;

the Base Listing Document; and

this document.
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REPRODUCTION OF THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES



Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
135 to 306, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% B ED

Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREMMEEEREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables & 5 & Uz kI8 ) e (B 515

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

EREZREFIEYE BESEAHUBHRRNHNERE - A
REREHRTE BEREBEZREFENEHEEESR
(REEEBE KPR TBHBMERE MG O&R
H K E 5 RUGRARNBER EHE R RARETFER -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounted to RMB5,634,652,000, which
represented approximately 14.5% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H0 > S£ENEZEKRFEEF
EAARYS 634,652,0007T 4916 EEEHEBEND
14.5% ° B S EWZIBNFIBENGRE BB REM E25 -

As disclosed in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BV E 5 RUGRIANE EFEERERD T

e Understanding the internal controls related to
providing allowance under ECL model;

s BRERHEEEBREATHBYERBMNREIET

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2021, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;

o RAFEEEARELREEEEIMERINERNT
Bt BREABOTHLREMEEBR Rt - o
R —F+ A=t HNEBEFRRFRETRED
ORI

e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision matrix
(with reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information); and

e HEREBEEAME_T_—SF+t-A=T—"HHNESE
WHIBEEEBRREENERENAE  2EEEELER
WEMNE S RUGRIENZ - HEME S RUGRIEER
BREBEFRS B NRBERNEEE - AREEHREE
BHAMBEERENEE (2EELENEMAEEE
) &

e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 25 and
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

o FHEARE M ImKMFT25M36(b)TE BE 5 EKIA
RERH AR RE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% B ED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% B ED

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEskAMEZEKRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

2021 2020
—B--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Revenue BA 5,6 37,496,852 38,001,765
Cost of sales $H& KA (28,760,659) (29,303,890)
Gross profit EF| 8,736,193 8,697,875
Other income EH iz 7(a) 689,949 510,390
Other gains and losses £ Uiz & E518 7(b) 99,065 187,257
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RREAEEEREXGENRHEESE - MKRED (5,182) 12,218
Selling and distribution expenses $H& &7 5 X (274,105) (313,478)
Research and development expenditure Aff 2% 32 (2,642,196) (2,499,090)
Administrative expenses 1T EF 3% (757,592) (718,568)
Share of results of associates 7155 & 2 7 245 18 19,007 20
Finance costs gl & A 8 (230,252) (233,740)
Profit before tax 7t Al £l 5,634,887 5,642,884
Income tax expense FT1SHif X 9 (578,972) (702,630)
Profit for the year &R & 10 5,055,915 4,940,254

Other comprehensive income (expense) Hth 2 E Wz (B x7)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
TEETHEZ R ER -
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”), net of income tax
BAREGFARMPENS ([RAREFAEBEEEE]) 6
RETARBNAAERE - HERAEHR 2,808 18,977

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
RGBT DL B ER -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

BEGINETSFTE £ HME X =58 (4,271) (41,606)
Other comprehensive expense for the year £RE b 2 HEE % (1,463) (22,629)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 H 45 5,054,452 4,917,625
Profit for the year attributable to: 15 F A A :

Owners of the Company 72 7] i% 4,988,007 4,871,793

Non-controlling interests JEZ& % iz 67,908 68,461

5,055,915 4,940,254

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: fE{L & R4 EINZEA5
Owners of the Company X2 &% &R 4,987,488 4,849,009
Non-controlling interests FFiERkiEZ 66,964 68,616
5,054,452 4,917,625
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) &R Z&F| — =X (ARED) 12 456.52 445,78
- Diluted (RMB cents) —BE(ARED) 12 455.93 44514

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H :,4135



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R=ZF——4F+_H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kARE&E

31/12/2021

RMB’000
ARBT T

31/12/2020
—E-FF

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000
ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - #23 &% & 14 8,303,229 7,513,193
Right-of-use assets ff & & 15 504,684 480,005
Investment properties & #12 16 40,380 40,907
Intangible assets & & &= 17 306,926 363,137
Interests in associates FBf 4 A B ERS 18 201,641 1,953
Deferred tax assets BRI IH & = 19 255,651 207,332
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
UIEYE - MERREE TR E 20 471,595 359,086
Equity instruments at FVTOCI {2 A R Bt AR 2 E W maEm TH 21 178,762 134,609
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
BEARBEFABR([RAAEFABRE D WemEE 23 19,518 206,236
Time deposits & Hi7F 26 500,000 500,000
Goodwill B2 2,119 2,119
10,784,505 9,808,577
CURRENT ASSETS REIEE
Inventories 17 & 24 5,481,858 5,783,071
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 K& H b fE W IR KR TR FRIE 25 7,448,385 8,212,025
Derivative financial assets $T4£ & R E & 27 27,237 21,307
Financial assets at FVTPL I AR BT ABTZMEmME E 23 8,314,143 8,480,186
Debt instruments at amortised cost Z# K ANt S HEE T A 22 - 52,823
Amount due from a related party fEU—% & A LFIA 41(c) 327 -
Pledged bank deposits & 1R 1T1E 26 18,292 3,438
Short term fixed deposits %8 Hi7F Hi7F 3¢ 26 1,093,914 234,917
Bank balances and cash $R1745 88 MR & 26 5,605,179 2,841,771
27,989,335 25,629,538

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R=ZF——4F+_H=+—H

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-FTF

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES #RE& &

Trade and other payables & 5 K i & {51 8 28 9,868,687 10,733,364
Amounts due to related parties fE{~EdiE A T 7B 41(c) 6,934 6,996
Derivative financial liabilities $74& gt & (& 27 40,446 101,888
Contract liabilities & 48 & 29 178,101 131,191
Tax payable B 718 188,022 314,804
Bank borrowings — current portion $R17f5 & — ENEAEE - 30 1,538,897 2,070,611
Lease liabilities — current portion A& & (& — BNEAEE 31 46,271 43,580
Deferred income — current portion &I A — BIEFEE S 32 6,099 8,695

11,873,457 13,411,129

NET CURRENT ASSETS M & EE& 16,115,878 12,218,409
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERAEBEE 26,900,383 22,026,986
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ G 8&E
Deferred tax liabilities #EIEFLTE & & 19 1,015,890 888,809
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 4 &l 8 & 27 5,057 4,782
Long term payables & /&~ FA 28 172,044 245,636
Bank borrowings — non-current portion $R1T{&E — JEENEAER S 30 700,000 -
Lease liabilities — non-current portion T & & & — JERNEIEE 31 107,999 96,899
Deferred income — non-current portion #EIEUW A — FEENHAEE S 32 188,504 68,855
Bonds payable fE{T &% 33 3,815,623 3,895,888
6,005,117 5,200,869
NET ASSETS ¥&E #H 20,895,266 16,826,117
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RZA K &
Share capital J&A~ 34 105,163 105,163
Reserves & 20,482,909 16,492,061
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &) A% 58 B (5 #E 25 20,588,072 16,597,224
Non-controlling interests JF#Z i A %5 307,194 228,893
TOTAL EQUITY #4458 20,895,266 16,826,117

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 306 were #HMNE 13523068 Zira MBHMERLETZN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 Z—ZE==F=F -+ HibERBTETIE - I

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: ATIEEREKREE
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRREL

At 1 January 2020

R=F-%%-A-A 105,163 1,846 149,800 31,008 916 427,412 (217,607) 82,237 (18,847) 3430 11,987,534 12,552,887 173,290 12,726,177
Profit for the year /it - - - - - - - - - - 4871793 4871793 B8461 4940254
Qther comprehensive income (expense) for the

year EREM 2ENE (%) - - - - - - - - 18917 (41761) - [8Y 155 (22,629)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the

year EMZEWE (F%) 88 - - - - - - - - 18977 (41,761) 4,871,793 4,849,009 68,616 4,917,625
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERD RE HEERD - - - - - - (151,307 - - - - (151,397) - [151397)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments BAMEREE RO X [EE - - - - - - - 151811 - - - 151811 - 151811
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERH LB HBBORN - - - - - - 111380 (137,417) - - 26097 - - -

Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary
from non-controling interests (‘NCI')

sl ([ FaREs]) WE—FIEAR

HENER - - (8,628) - - - - - - - - (8628) (18013  (21,641)
Dividends paid (Note 11) EfH& (Ff11) - (1,846) - - - - - - - - (796,661)  (798,507) - (798,507)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RERAEETEHNRORE - - - - - - - - - - 2,049 2,049 - 2,049
Appropriation &5 - - - - - 14807 - - - - (14,607) - - -
At 31 December 2020
RZ2Z2F+ZA=1-H 105,163 - 4172 31,008 916 442019 (257,624) 96,631 130 (38,331) 16,076,145 16,597,224 228,893 16,826,117
Profit for the year A& = - = - - - - - - - 4,988,007 4,988,007 67,908 5,085,915
Qther comprehensive income (expense) for the year
EREM2ERE (FR) - - - - - - - - 2,808 (3.327) - (519) Q48 (1,469
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
FREERE (F3) 88 = - = - - - - - 2,808 (3,327) 4,988,007 4,987,488 66,964 5,054,452
Purchase of shares under share award scheme

(Note 42)

RERREEHRERA (Hite2) - - - - - - 1218y - - - - (212,183) - [212,189)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (Note 42)

AR R 30 (i) - - - - - - - 1882718 - - - 188218 - 183278
Shares vested under share award scheme (Note 42)
RERG R HSBORG (i) - - - - - - 145308 (165429) - - - - -
Capital contribution from NCI FE2RE R+ & - - - - - - - - - - - - 27,110 27,110
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary

from NCI E £l aiiie

—ZFHEARMEINER - - (994) - - - - - - - - (994) () (1,470
Dividends paid (Note 11) 28 (1) - - - - - - - - - - (974003 (974,003) - (974,009
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIERH B EMRNRS - - - - - - - - - - 2262 2,262 - 2,262
Dividends paid to NOI St PR AR & - - - - - - - - - - - - (15,207)  (15,297)
Appropriation &4 - - - - - 6,113 - - - - (6,113) - - -
At 31 December 2021
R=E-—%+-A=t-A 105,163 - 140178 31,008 916 448132 (324,499 119,484 2,938 (41,658) 20,106,415 20,588,072 307,194 20,895,266
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Notes:

(@)

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are non-
distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
Board of Directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the Board of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used to
make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

The Group irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve is related to the gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of the designated equity
investments recognised in other comprehensive income.

GEX

(@)

EEBRBBEELDERASKBETITREIK
HREZEREVFBEANTEARLME
((HEDRIVHEAANEETSRIENEA
AIMERRARNETE - AERBRFEETRAREE L
FREBEIERRARR T EKNE R RNEINE
K- RERHFETRERRAXFRHENBA
RIRIRA X -

HitBHECERERES RFEES - 2FHBED
AREDK  MEBEREZSRENFIREHDEH
MEARNEESRESEANET - HibHE
AARNEE EFEBBERERRARR T BME
RAMEEINEAR »

AREETA MR R EE R AR B ARLME
ERERER TANE TRE - MRAAETA
Lt 2T UK 2 ) 8 L LA 2 TR MR O REERR AR
HEBRRENA A BEEEEE MWW EE
A -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBF T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% 558

Profit before tax & &1 Al Al 5,634,887

Adjustments for: FE% :
Share of results of associates 7 1E Bk ‘& A 7] 24 (19,007)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2 - #22 R REITE 1,638,067
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & L E & 60,845
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥4 4,633
Amortisation of intangible assets /24 2= # & 56,211
Allowance for inventories 17 & &5 132,374
Impairment loss under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RIEHEEEEREGTE2/REEE - HREE 5,182
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TESBMITARAREZEN (W) BEFHE (67,097)
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
BRAnBEF AEBEmNEREEAABEZIMNER (W) 1,769
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - 25 N R EEE 1,350

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —XH B R sl M EE -
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
AR 1 B2 B 51 & i FERR ) S 188,278
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits, pledged bank

deposits and bank balances

TGN SETHER  EERRITERRRITEBRI WA (97,112)
Interest income from debt instruments &7 T EF| B Ug A (4,400)
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

REEAREF ABENIELTEREMIRERA (302,638)
Finance costs @& XA 230,252
Net foreign exchange gain 4MNE Y35 % 58 (81,518)
Loss (gain) on lease termination & 4% |FE51E (W) 935

2020
—E-TF

— = —=

RMB’000
ARBTTT

5,642,884

(20)
1,513,407
54,285
4,391
56,202
245,674

(12,218)
111,002
(86,243)
11,156
1,673
151,811
(47,230)
(9,335)
(215,042)
233,740

(297,945)
(54)

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBTF T

2020
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARBTT

LEEEPINKLER RS 7,383,011 7,358,138
Decrease (increase) in inventories 77 & 54> (4% 1) 168,839 (882,783)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 N H e W R IE R TR SRIE R A 833,615 1,453,392
Increase in amount due from a related party fEU — & BEE A 3B 1E 0 (327) =
Decrease in trade and other payables & 5 K H th &~ I8 R 4 (942,589) (496,536)
Increase in contract liabilities & 498 E1 41 46,910 47,989
Increase (decrease) in deferred income JEFEW AL HN (i 4) 117,053 (6,450)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE{~BEsE A £ 7= 2 (62) (502)
Cash generated from operations & & BB FTSIH & 7,606,450 7,473,248
Income taxes paid B 15 TS E (627,488) (313,237)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ;ZB TSR &5 6,978,962 7,160,011
INVESTING ACTIVITIES &

Placement of short term fixed deposits 175 2 & HiTz 3¢ (1,540,339) (958,277)
Placement of time deposits 17/ E Hi7F 3K - (500,000)
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits H2EUAE 2 5F HiTE X 681,342 738,360
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BE&E ¥ 3 - #22 L &kE (2,082,924) (2,332,864)
Payments for leasehold lands & £ i 5k (22,705) (81,655)
Payment for intangible assets & E N K (40,252) (39,738)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 2 H 3R 1777 3K (16,508) (3,375)
Release of pledged bank deposits fi#k 2 H iR 1777 3K 1,654 6,050
Purchases of unlisted financial products Y8 3F T & Rl E & (46,718,495)  (59,212,284)
Release of unlisted financial products 2 JE F T4 BE & 46,923,800 56,303,979
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

BB  BBEREBENOES (443,056) (344,093)
Purchase of debt instruments at FVTPL W QA A Bt ABREF TR - (77,617)
Purchase of fund instruments at FVTPL WA A BT ABRmMES T A - (619,227)
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost W BB IZ# LAk AT B EL T A - (29,262
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL WESIZ A 7t Bt AR AR E (20) -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI Wiz A A B AR M EEWEMER T A (40,849) (100)
Interest and investment income received &YW 8 &IEE WA 329,143 247,968
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - WBERREBPIEHIA 58,568 62,108
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at FVTPL

HERQAEFABRNER TAMSKIE 31,062 -
Proceeds from disposal of a debt instrument at FVTPL

HE-BRAAEF ABRNER TEMEHIEA 32,427 81,668
Proceeds from disposal of fund instruments at FVTPL

HERARBEFABRNES TAMSRIE - 729,226
Repayment from debt instruments at amortised cost

REHK AT ENERE TENEENA 51,691 54,200
Investment in an associate A — & A A Z & (106,040) (1,250)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZEfT AR €58 (2,901,501) (5,976,183)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBF T

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARETFIT

Interest paid 21~ Fl &8 (222,125) (224,439)
Dividends paid BEfJ & & (987,038) (796,458)
New bank borrowings raised ¥11ZiR17EE 5,557,947 3,810,422
Repayment of bank borrowings E&RITEE (5,354,662) (2,793,677)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHE & & (48,981) (45,065)
Purchase of shares under share award scheme 1R I {7 22 Eh=t 2 & B A% (7 (212,183) (151,397)
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary from NCI
B IE AR i s WS — KB A RI R R ME =R (1,470) (21,641)
Capital contribution from NCI A FE¥E AR E ST E 27,110 =
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RETEARES TR (1,241,402) (222,255)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRASEEEBIENTERE 2,836,059 961,573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—HWEERAESEEER 2,841,771 1,917,239
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E RSB/ & (72,651) (37,041)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
RTt-ZA=+—BAWBEEeRRELEEHIER -

represented by bank balances and cash IASR1T4 R KN IR& 27 5,605,179 2,841,771

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Act Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised,
formerly known as Companies Law) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with effect from 15 June 2007. Its ultimate holding and
parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Wang Wenjian, also a director of the Company. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1. SR ER

BT RERE (KE) BRAA ([RRQF])
R_BTERFLA-ZT—BHEHRSHESR
BHESEHERAREF2R2E (—NAR—FF
ZRRD - BERA RIER] - ULATTER QA
)M AEH R AT ERHBE-F
ELFEANATARAREERHERIMA
RAB LT RERERRSARRHEE
RATE - —RINREREZESEMKIE
ABRRE] > MEBRERATREXE
£E - TAARRESE - ARFEMMPE
BREFEEZ BRI TR FRADFE
R — SR -

ARABH/—RAREEZERATF - ARFRE
MEBAR (FiE AEm]) EBLSFRT
MAEME  LERHELERCEIEH
P on BT R (R 2R 5T o

HAEBBRRAARE ([ARE] 25
ARBETRA/ARRHNNEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified
the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework ?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture #
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20217

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) °

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies °

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates °

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction 4

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract ?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 ¢

C AT E R ER 2 HR] RAEIERT
BRMBREER

AEBWERFRAUATEBMABERRE
MHVFR] RAIERT BB SR E LR -

BB RE &R RIE & A RIGREETAS
FATH

BB RE &R BEaRER 2 122
F35% (BEA)

BRI ERE &R REZEREBERA]
F10HRRBHEEE REEPRELES
RRE28% (BFIAR) FALE

BRI ERE &R —E-—FNA=FAE
F165: (BFTAX) BI2019m M % Z i
Vil il A
BERSRRNEIR  BESEARHALRTEY
CHES) REBBEEST
(ZE=FF) 15[
CHES

BREEREIRL BHHRIRKE
BRMBREZR

EBHEFR
CHES)

BRGERIESSE  Bi 2 EE
SCHEN)

BRGHEANF12S HE-XFGELZEER
CHES) BEBHIELHE

BRAGTRAFI6 Hx  HERRHE -

CHES) REHEH 17
HE?
BRGTRUNRITR BREAH - ETEY
CHES) 22
BB REER BENBHE N —F
CHEN) —NFE-E_FEZ
FRAE?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. EARETEEMBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R ([BFRAMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) Al ]) (

RATE M ARER 2R RAEIER]
MR EER ()

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

I (U

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

HAR AR o

S

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

HiR AR o

R-ZE-—FMA-—HAZERABZFE

KRB —F—A—HkZERABRZFE

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 8 RIZE_=F—HA—HEZERHBZFE

HAR AR o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ¢ R—EAFEBRHRScERBzFEHBEE
determined. o
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all AARIEETEERME I REIERTE
the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact BB EEANAARERNRRETS S
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. REMBMREEERTE -
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF . FEMBHRCEHUERER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTHE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial M RMEMBHRRZFERESE
statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared HREVBEBRRDIBEEESTMAE
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In BB B mMEEAGBE - It
addition, the consolidated financial statements include Oh  REHBHMEBBERBHMER
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the FTERARES EMMRA ([ LEHR
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Al ) RBEBLAGUEHIRE 2 BRAEE
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies B} o
Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

3 REMBERRZEREE (H)

HRAMBRREDEELKAEER
2O HETXEARRAIBEES RS
HREBEAABHENE TSR ITAR
B o

B RA— Rz BEmkRE 2K
BzonfEstE -

RRERMES2EERFTERRNES
FREFHEEEMBEDMNHEBRRE
FEBEAXHWNER  TWRZERES
SR EZRERIFRABEMGEERD
st - REFEEHLABNAIAE
B Wmis2EEREEREERER
ENRE  AAEERRFERHA
BESRAETERZRAREE -1
REMBRRANTER HEEOL
REREEEETE  EFEYBHRE
RRNE2SRU R BERZ (THBER
ZABDXHNNR S - RIEBEHH
WELEF16HINFRER A K HE
ARBERUELIFEAREE (BF
BEFTEERFEZ A BEFENK
BB ERIEI6CHEE R E 2 £
BE) BRI -

BFERBME (RE) HRAF « 2021 ¥ :147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e |Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

* has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Gooawill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &7
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 2}
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) S2EEEF K (@)
Investments in associates (Continued) RBERNFZRE (&)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over MAEEHBEERARAREEAZE
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire 7 HEARINELREWHIEEFTNEE
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being Hm o MEENEERNEZER - &
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an REBERBRATEE AR 2= - B
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is REEZ BB BYBEHRELERFE I
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group ﬁmﬁ’]ipﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ  AEEREBZ
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and ARBEFERBER  MARER®K
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. REEBXEREZANE - BE QA
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate FEHEEAAREEZ AN ERD
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds T & N Rl R FTS AR FTS 3K
from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is HeBMERE Dt ABEEHEH S
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of NAEIZHER o N NEBEFEAIE
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts HEMe2HEWaEziE R aER
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in BoBAR  EEHRMWMZBEE QAR
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be EHEHRBEEEXBREMNEEMER -
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related H bt - Wz & AR LRI E R EM
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously 2EMEER  AIgREEHEBEE
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate EXBEREFIHAEER  E8#H
or would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of EANRIHE PoEER  AEE
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the BRI EREREN Y EEER
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification (EREHHEAE) -
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
The Group continues to use the equity method when an ERBEARINKESENREEDLE
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint MITER  ASBESFRAESE -
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such EZEEEEEHE - WEHD

changes in ownership interests. RENEFTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBHRZRAUEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EZEHE(R)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’'s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of some temporary staff dormitories that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REMBREZEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEFETBUR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERAHEA ()
Lease liabilities MHEERE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises REERKE  AEEZREAMARAX
and measures the lease liability at the present value of FHEENHKAEERRLFTEHE
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating BE A EHENZKHIRER - 1
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the REERRERSHAXREUREE - BN
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement SEEHERKRBFERIZSERFE -
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including HENFEERENR (BREEMER
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives B BEMEREEER -

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continueqd)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For shares of the Company granted under The Sunny Optical
Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“‘Restricted Shares”), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of the Restricted Shares granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share award scheme
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of Restricted Shares that
are expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share award scheme reserve.

When the Restricted Shares are vested, the difference of the
amount previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve and the cost of the related Restricted Shares
previously acquired by the Group will be transferred to
retained profits. When the Restricted Shares are lapsed before
the vesting date or are still not vested at the expiry date, the
amount of previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve will continue to be held in the share award scheme
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax of leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirement to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary difference arising from
subsequent revision to carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not
subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, other than construction in
progress, stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

32 EEEHBE ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) EREE (18)

ABELEBFEE - RMAX

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures

98 B X R P EE A B i 3R A B
in the period in which it is incurred. X o

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

EHEZHEAME TIERE - F%E
EE (HKABEIEBENFEN) MELED
NEDEBET T AR -

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooadwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooawill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(i) _Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, expect for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &4 |k
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

Financial assets (Continued) cREE (F)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets THEEN S ENAEE (B)

(Continueqd)

(i) _Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) FEEZEAAMBEAEME B w1

#mTA

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI| are BAREF AEMEE RS 2 e
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses TEMKEARBIZANEFE H
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other R EEBEEEN W REERHE
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI b 2R RNE A EFTA
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. Hm2mEWz= RE R - &
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit RYERER G - RETBRBETERN
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be SHEETERERECEBRE K
transferred to retained profits. EBRERERET -
Dividends from these investments in equity instruments EAEEARWEARER - ZER
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to ERERTERENRENER
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends EPTJE- F BRIEBEZZRE AKE
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the DIREKRA - ERBREPEFA
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income” (ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂl s |IERH -

line item in profit or loss.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss exclude any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including debt
instruments at amortised cost, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a related party, pledged bank deposits,
times deposits, short term fixed deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant

12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

instrument. In contrast,
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors credit-impaired and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL =)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) AT A ()

Financial assets (Continued) SRMEE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ZHEERE (&)
() Significant increase in credit risk () 1EEmBANE LA

RHEEERR B VIZERARE

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBHRERHMAEUEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESEX (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) LHTA ()
Financial assets (Continued) cREE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)
() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () 1EERBAE LA (&)
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the s FBEHRANERNTEHEERES
operating results of the debtor; A TR
e an actual or expected significant adverse change e BEBAERLE - &B ESFEM
in the regulatory, economic, or technological IRE W ER TR E R A
environment of the debtor that results in a significant BEHEBABTERERE
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt HIRE DA MR TN BE o
obligations.
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, Tam DtV (h AR A - BS54
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased @ A 30 R « AEBREE
significantly since initial recognition when contractual ER B 9P HER AR AR EF
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the BRIREEESERBAEERF
Group has reasonable and supportable information that BRI R FELA L o

demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Definition of default

(1)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. )54
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Hax
TR

B
=

=)
=

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) SRMEE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ZHEERE (&)
(i) _Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued) (i) EERERLHEE (&)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or () ERANERARAFBERA
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s Eﬁkli’ﬁﬂ’]i&/mié%@ﬁl’
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a FERAE—RBERLTIE
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise %J?-EEI’\J@%ﬁﬁ ;
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fERAFREH EREEIEE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 4 QZ

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that (6) e RLEERERMIEE I
financial asset because of financial difficulties. RSk E K o

(iv) Write-off policy (iv) METEHE

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is HWEBRBERR HHFRNBREM

information indicating that the counterparty is in severe TERE R EER AL A R B R K

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of AEEBMEZeREE (HlR

recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been ROGFFHBEBIEAWERF
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy ) o @REEMBINZRAAE

proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be EERFEF THRTES - B

subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s FHEBRATHEREEEZER - #l

recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice SHIERN —THAR LR EIE - E A

where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition %I B M R TR IB S NFER ©

event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables is considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

3.2 EEEREE (&)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &4 |k
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) cRBERER (&)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) R EGA BB LA E (&)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: MEHBETIER  BemaEis

HEARBIEEE

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e BAZFEZEEMARTABKE
repurchasing it in the near term; or EI=

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified o RYUFLHERE  HAAKEBESE
financial instruments that the Group manages together BrEdfem T AHAEG 2 —F
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; 7 - i BB B AR HER 2 &
or = 2k

e it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial o HANMATH(EAERMEREY
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging SIEERBEREHPTAZITAETA
instrument. BRAI) ©

Financial liabilities at amortised cost HBEHA AT EN T HEE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including trade and other LEEKR A ENeREE (BEE

payables, amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings, SR EMERN I - BIBEEALTR

long term payables and bonds payable, are subsequently H - RITEE  REBNRERES

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest &) B2 R B B AR A AR

method. = o

Derecognition of financial liabilities AIFTER TR E B

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only REER (RER) NEBHE TER

when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or B EERRRILIERERE

have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of B -RIERNeHBEREERED

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid NREFREZ ZER BT R o

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Assessment of the finite useful lives of intangible
assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of intangible assets based
on the expected lifespan of those patents. The intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives after taking into account the estimated residual value, if any.
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets on initial recognition in order to determine the amount of
amortisation expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are determined taking into the factors including the
prevailing industry condition and the practice of intangible assets.
The amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is RMB306,926,000 (31 December 2020: RMB363,137,000)
as disclosed in Note 17.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s financial
instruments, including unlisted equity instruments amounting
to RMB198,280,000 (2020: unlisted equity instruments
of RMB267,961,000 and derivative financial assets of
RMB3,650,000) and derivatives financial liabilities amounting
to RMB4,087,000 (2020: RMB96,805,000) are measured at
fair values. In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. When market
observable data are not available, the Group uses valuation
techniques that include inputs that are not based on market-
observable data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Note 36(c) provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables which are not credit-impaired. The provision matrix
are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision rate is based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates taking into consideration
the forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables which are credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 36(b) and Note 25 respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

5. REVENUE 5. KA

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EFEHARANAD
with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-_—F+-H=t—HLEFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical

Components Products Instruments
KEBEH KREEM KEBEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T R

Types of goods & REE
Sales of optical and related components

RERBEAZHHEE 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Total &% 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Geographical markets it &5

China F 4,944,126 23,666,093 270,171
Asia (except China) 22l (AR EIRR M) 2,078,974 4,495,319 38,204
Europe BUM 1,046,409 3,459 29,099
North America 1t 678,102 113,843 47,742
Others E At 28,419 54,805 2,087
Total # %8 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Timing of revenue recognition 52 A #55 &

At a point in time B 2HFER 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

5. WA (&)

() EFEHBANHAD (F)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_ T ZTF+-_A=1+—HIFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical

11 O

Types of goods & R EE
Sales of optical and related components

Components
FHETH
RMB’000
ARBTT

Products
HEE M
RMB’000
AREET T

Instruments
B E S
RMB’000

ARETFIT

HEREETHIEE 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Total &4 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Geographical markets #E 5

China 5,441,334 25,899,773 237,073
Asia (except China) 22 (FR BEI& M) 2,177,165 2,492,908 25,418
Europe BUM 939,207 12,873 14,014
North America 1t i 603,906 60,718 48,518
Others EAth 19,485 27,988 1,385
Total 4% 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Timing of revenue recognition T2 A #Y B

At a point in time B 257& 2 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408

(i) EFEXNNBHER

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

The Group sells optical and optical-related products directly
to customers. For sales of optical components, optoelectronic
products and optical instruments, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of these products. The credit term granted to customers is
average 90 days. The transaction price received by the Group
is recognised as a contract liability for sales in which revenue
has yet been recognised.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group’s contracts have an original expected duration
of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations is not disclosed.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered because the Board of Directors has chosen to
organise the Group among different major products. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Optical Components
2. Optoelectronic Products

3. Optical Instruments

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDEP(HF)

Segment revenues and results DEWAREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AEBIZEBERAIHKEDEE D HUWA K
operating and reportable segments. FEESWAT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Optical [Optoelectronic Optical Segment

Components Products | Instruments Total | Eliminations Total
XEBH XEEM HEER 2EAE i B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T R AR%T R ARETR AR®TR AR®T T

REVENUE A

External sales 9 EfsHE 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303 37,496,852 - 37,496,852
Inter-segment sales 7 2PfEISEE 2,927,700 12,519 90,889 3,031,108 (3,031,108) -
Total #%8 11,703,730 28,346,038 478,192 40,527,960 (3,031,108) 37,496,852
Segment profit 225 2,674,903 3,027,049 99,604 5,801,556 - 5,801,556
Share of results of associates

AMEBME AR REE 19,007
Unallocated income A2 BLUA 74,959
Unallocated expenses &7 B Fx (260,635)
Profit before tax &% Al 7l 5,634,887
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Segment
Components Products Instruments Total Eliminations Total

KRBT HEEM HEHRE 7 E R B ik

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE | ARETR | ARRTI| ARBTR| ARETT| ARET:E

REVENUE YA

External sales S} EfiH & 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408 38,001,765 = 38,001,765
Inter-segment sales 2 2Ff#HE 2,324,546 23,202 115,272 2,463,020 (2,463,020) =
Total 4848 11,505,643 28,517,462 441680 40,464,785 (2,463,020) 38,001,765
Segment profit 2 Z0% 7 3,086,783 2,598,882 65,856 5,751,521 = 5,751,521
Share of results of associates

VoK (a)i A UNCIES 20
Unallocated income A&7 BE4A 29,772
Unallocated expenses 2 BB (138,429)
Profit before tax B Al 7l 5,642,884

FRFNBRL (RE) ARAF » 2021 3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

A% 98 3R (4

6. =} )

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of income and expenses of unallocated subsidiaries
and central administration costs including directors’ emoluments,
share of results of associates and finance costs. There were
asymmetrical allocations to operating segments because the
Group allocates interest income, government grants, depreciation
and amortisation and gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment to each segment without allocating the related
bank balances, deferred income, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets to those segments. This is the measure
reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDEP(HF)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBZEBERAKREDHEDHNEE K
operating and reportable segments: BEITAT :
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H
Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
KEZH HEEM N B{HES wzE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR¥T AR¥ T AR® T
Assets &
Trade receivables & 5 fE Wz IE 1,878,514 3,690,969 65,169 5,634,652
Bill receivables fEUZ=1E 616,115 387,528 5,993 1,009,636
Inventories & 1,854,941 3,532,694 94,223 5,481,858
Total segment assets 7 2B & E B 5 4,349,570 7,611,191 165,385 12,126,146
Unallocated assets k9 Bl & &= 26,647,694
Consolidated assets #2& & 38,773,840
Liabilities B &
Trade payables & 5 Eft 5k 2,085,218 3,741,727 104,278 5,931,223
Note payables B Zi% 530,292 1,267,054 23,938 1,821,284
Total segment liabilities 2 28 & & 42 %8 2,615,510 5,008,781 128,216 7,752,507
Unallocated liabilities k2 At & & 10,126,067
Consolidated liabilities 428 & 17,878,574

BRTAERK (RE) ARAF « 2021 F3# @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
BT HEE SR 2 E 2 488
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARETIT AREFIT
Assets &

Trade receivables & 5 fEU A 2,367,013 4,368,386 56,344 6,792,243
Bill receivables FEUWZ % 658,226 88,041 10,263 756,530
Inventories 17 & 1,559,605 4,155,765 67,701 5,783,071
Total segment assets 7 2B & E B 50 4,584,844 8,612,692 134,308 13,331,844
Unallocated assets &% Bt & &= 22,106,271
Consolidated assets #2& & 35,438,115

Liabilities B &
Trade payables & 5 &I 5/1E 2,318,329 4,752,353 88,693 7,159,375
Note payables B Zi% 135,048 1,177,220 23,708 1,335,976
Total segment liabilities 7 3 & (& 448 2,453,377 5,929,573 112,401 8,495,351
Unallocated liabilities &% B & & 10,116,647
Consolidated liabilities 428 & 18,611,998

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

e Trade receivables, bill receivables and inventories are allocated
to the respective operating and reportable segments. All
other assets are unallocated assets, which are not regularly
reported to the Board of Directors.

e Trade payables and note payables are allocated to the
respective operating and reportable segments. All other
liabilities are unallocated liabilities, which are not regularly
reported to the Board of Directors.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. £EDH (&)
Other segment information Hth 7 5 & #
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated

Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
HEBH XEEM REER AOE ReBE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: &7 HE =T ANKE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 J & 957,606 781,873 18,283 1,994 1,759,756
Impairment losses on trade receivables recognised

(reversed) in profit or loss
REZTHER (BE) 08 ZREFERESR 1,778 (2,881) 6,285 - 5,182
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
HEWF - BEREE (he) B1E (6,822) 8,178 (6) - 1,350
Share award scheme expense A% 22512137 94,336 73,018 15,450 5,474 188,278
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
BIREBMIAFSHRA (24,096) (365,327) (7,596) (7,131) (404,150
Allowance (reversed) for inventories 17 & #{& (%[ ) (27,710) 163,887 (3,803) - 132,374

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEHBTEEERRERMEERT A
PRHEEFENTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
¥ - BRERREEM 1,596,179 896,012 6,099 162 2,498,452
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIP (&)

=
Other segment information (Continued) Hih o ERE R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-_ZTFF+_A=1+—HIFE

Optical Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated

Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
HETH HEEM KEER RO ReRE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTTT

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: &7 HE =R ANE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 J & 792,709 812,377 20,682 2,517 1,628,285
Impairment losses on trade receivables reversed

in profit or loss
RNEEPRENE 5 EIGRREBE (6,320) (4,658) (1,240) = (12,218)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
HEMSE - BB RREER () 2,408 8,755 7) - 11,156
Share award scheme expense #1782 E)5t 21 77,369 54,874 14,747 4,821 151,811
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
BAREMIAFSKA (19,672) (233,447) (5,876) (12,612) (271,607)
Allowance for inventories 77 & & & 22,657 218,367 4,650 - 245,674

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEHBTEEERRERMEERT A
PRHEEFENTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
ERE =PSB 1,697,434 930,988 9,229 64 2,537,715
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6- '”\ /-\ﬁB (n\ﬁ)

FEEMBA

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Revenue from major products

AT AAEENRE EEEROBRADH :

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

2021 2020
—E_—F

—E—TF
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AREF T

Handset related products F # 8 %8 & & 29,597,845 32,119,027
Vehicle related products B & #H 8 & 2,960,628 2,511,766
AR/VR related products AR/VRHEREZE 1,344,637 596,237
Digital camera related products £ iH# 48 = & 1,004,258 592,186
Other lens sets E1th$3 28 490,446 473,348
Optical instruments Yt 2z 22 273,734 204,974
Other spherical lens and plane products Hth Bk &2 5 & T EE 142,255 164,946
Digital video lens Ei5 1% SAE 58 15,593 29,423
Other products E b G 1,667,456 1,309,858

37,496,852 38,001,765

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in China, Vietnam,
Korea, Japan, India and the United States.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers is presented based on the locations of goods physically
delivered and information about the Group’s non-current assets
by the geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

it E &R

AEENEBEIZMNPE - B 78

B HERER -

BRERINEYHE M THREIBER
Eﬁ$‘§IZﬁ%%EH&)\&}E;ﬁFi@Ef*
BRI AKE R EENER L

—|T :

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &2 — & —
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

6. &

BEoE ()

wEER (%)

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REPBEFE BN ERBEE
2021 2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E=-—F —E_TF
—EB-—F —E_FTF [+t=ZHA=+—-H |TZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 2]Y [ =X0]0]0] RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFIT AR¥T ARETIT
China & 28,880,390 31,578,180 8,969,717 8,516,376
Asia (except China) 22 (AR B4 ) 6,612,497 4,695,491 656,476 238,324
Europe UM 1,078,967 966,094 128 179
North America 3t 3 839,687 713,142 493 1,449
Others EAth 85,311 48,858 - -
37,496,852 38,001,765 9,626,814 8,756,328
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, deferred tax Wi : FERBEETERREEARMNER
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI, BEEFHBEEE  RARBEFABRENE
time deposits and goodwill. %ﬂﬁ% ° ?ﬁ” BT AE fh 2 E W e 8
T B R -
Information about major customers FEEFEHR

REATEEFHNBRAMAEBHEERTE 2
thEREBR10% ¢

Revenues from the following customers contributed over 10% of
the total sales of the Group:

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBFR

2020
—E-TF

—= —=

RMB’000
ARETT

Customer A, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products

ARF  F2REXEBERIEBERBUKRA 7,664,838 8,881,539
Customer B, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*
BEF T EXREHXERBHEERBA 5,811,013 TEmA*
Customer C, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*
CEP  XERBHXE RMEHERNKA 4,946,670 TEA*
Customer D, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*

DEF  TEREABLERERNUA TERA* 10,064,270

*

Y HAENRAERREBRAZ LB RS
#B10% °

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.
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7(a). OTHER INCOME 7(a). Hfttliz

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Government grants (Note 32) B fF#Bh& (Fi=£32) 212,314 141,810
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits,

pledged bank deposits and bank balances

EHGEN BEHTHER - BEMBRITERRRITEHRT B 97,112 47,230
Interest income from debt instruments & L EF 2 k25 4,400 9,335
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

BRAREBEAABSNIFLHERERRE RS 302,638 215,042
Interest income from small loan services /)88 & AR5 F1 B Y25 7,833 7,049
Income from sales of moulds &8 B ks 16,467 24,148
Income from sales of scrap materials $ %6 EE#HK#E 30,753 24,344
Others HAth 18,432 41,432
Total 4238 689,949 510,390

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

7(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7(b). il sz & E518

2021 2020
—E-—F e e 3

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - EBELRENER (1,350) (11,156)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 1 & — & &E A 7 & &8 - (1,673)
Net foreign exchange gain 4N J 25 % 58 33,950 225,506
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TTESRMIARREZELN WG (BIR) F8R 67,097 (111,002)
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of equity investments at FVTPL
BRARBEFABRNREREAABEZDHEELD (BE) W (8,151) 32,773
Gain on changes in fair value of debt instruments and fund investments at FVTPL
BARBEABENEBTARESREAABEHEENKE 6,382 53,470
Others HAth 1,137 (661)
Total 42%E 99,065 187,257
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BE A
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interests on bank borrowings fR1TEEF| & 62,490 54,737
Interests on bonds payable & &% T8 153,970 164,282
Interests on long term payables related to intangible assets
BRI B B A ) R HA R T RUE R R 6,203 7,158
Interests on lease liabilities A& & &F & 7,589 7,563
Total #2%8 230,252 233,740
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. FRIBHRAX

2021
—E-—F

2020
—E-FTF

RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

Current tax: BNEAFLIE :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax F B> ¥ 1551 447,809 540,600
Withholding tax expense J844%1 5 sz 46,792 24,000
Other jurisdictions H1th & & [E 9,717 18,075
504,318 582,675
Over provision in prior years: 8t FEEREE B ¢
PRC Enterprises Income Tax & B> 2155 (3,612) (4,515)
Deferred tax (Note 19): IEFERTIE (Fi3E19) :
Current year NEE 78,266 124,470
578,972 702,630

Under the Law of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except as

described below:

(i)

Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Infrared Optics”) and Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Optical Intelligence
(Yuyao)”), domestic limited liability companies, were approved
as Hi-Tech Enterprises and entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2021.

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”), Ningbo
Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Automotive
Optech”), Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Zhongshan Optics”), Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Instruments”), Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research
Institute Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Research Institute”) and
Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Technologies Co.,Ltd. (“Sunny
SmartLead”), domestic limited liability companies, were
approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2022.

RIBHECEMRFIE ([REREBE])
REEMBREABRES - PENEQF
BEROREE _ZETNF-—A—HER
25% -+ HET &R -

(i)

EREFAINIEMERAT ([ FRFA
SRE ) Rk RFEEABRME
BRAF ([RFEEXE (8REK) )13
BREEREERAR  WERATAS
e BEEZX15%HNEERRM
E -RZIE—F+-HA=+—HE
W o

EREFHEELARAT ([FFH
E]) ZERERFEHFALERMARA
A([BRFEHKXE])  BFHAE(FP
W) BRAR ([FFEPILNE])  BK
RFHEBARDA ([RFHEE]) - 2
FRECHI) ARERBRAF ([RF
MER]) RDINIRFEERMERA
A ((RFEERM) HANEEARE
TR WERA ASFEMEE -
EREZZISRHMERRE  RZF
T+ -A=+—HEmMm-

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Zhejiang
Optics”), Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Xinyang
Optics”) and Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Co.,Ltd.
(“Sunny Intelligent Technology”), domestic limited liability
companies, were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% with the expiry date
on 31 December 2023.

Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”), a domestic limited liability
company, was recognised as Software Enterprise and entitled
preferential policies of full exemption from enterprise income
taxation for the first two years till 31 December 2018 and reduction
half for the subsequent three years till 31 December 2021.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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NIRRT HBERAE ([BREHRTIH
B|) EERFXB2ERAF([RF
EBHXE]) REERFEEREER
ARA([RFEENFE D HRRNES
REMAR - WERA A= D
¥ EREZXZI5%MERME K=
T-_=Ft+-_A=t+—HE" °

NI FEEABERMARAA ([ 3
FEEXE|) ANEEREMELAA
WER SR EE  IREMEER
EZFE-N\EFEF+ZA=F+—HEXZ
HRRECEMGEHONERRE - UK
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. MEHEX (&)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FARMEHEBE HEGEERREME
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W =P TIBR T AR A SRR AN

other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Profit before tax Bk 51 4 £ 5,634,887 5,642,884
Tax at the PRC EIT tax rate of 25% &9 Bl 1k 3 FriS 3 i 25 % H 1,408,722 1,410,721
Tax effect of share of results of associates D {H 4 A B 248 2 Fifs e 2 (4,752) (5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
NAHBFA X 2 R E 8,949 5,793
Tax effect of allowance granted under share award scheme in the PRC
RIBRR ) REY T S B B R BB 8 (21,859) (14,437)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates for certain subsidiaries (Note a)
ETHBRARAREEE 2HBTE (ta) (337,501) (372,942)

Tax effect of additional tax deduction of research and
development expenses (Note b)

MER X BINIBHIRZ R E (HiiEb) (573,148) (385,378)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R IERTEE 18 2 iS55 2 64,542 28,315

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised

RERATEINE R EE 2B E (3,745) -

Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised

AL ARERIAER (13,431) (8,991)

Deferred tax provided for withholding tax on income derived in the PRC

FAIK B P B A TR T e B R AE A IR 65,436 49,205

Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

REMEERLCENMBRARINTRABTE 2 METE (10,629) (5,136)

Over provision in prior years &1t 5 & B EEE S (3,612) (4,515)

Income tax expense for the year & A FTSHF 578,972 702,630

Details of deferred taxation and unrecognised temporary difference FEIEFTA R AR B 2 A BRI

are disclosed in Note 19. 199255 -

Notes: B

(a) For the PRC subsidiaries which were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises (a) BERAIASHMEMEEXRELENSP
or Software Enterprise, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of BB ARIME HAREZZ15%MESR
15% or preferential policies of full exemption from or half reduction of MELEERRIRAFCEMSHOESR
enterprise income tax. BUE -

BERBRE (RE) ARAT » 2021 £ @
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(o)

In August 2018, Caishui [2018] No. 99 “Notice on Increasing the Pre-
tax Deduction Ratio of Research and Development Expenses” was
released, according to which certain PRC subsidiaries are entitled to
an additional 756% tax deduction on eligible research and development
expenses incurred by them for the both years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

In March 2021, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation released No. 13 announcement of 2021 named
“Announcement on Further Improving the Policy on Pre-tax Deduction
of Research and Development Expenses”, according to which certain
PRC subsidiaries engaged in manufacturing industry are entitled to an
additional 100% tax deduction on eligible research and development

expenses incurred by them for the year ended 31 December 2021.

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

9. BB ()

(o)

R=ZT—\F\A  B5i[2018]995% &
1R = B B R R AT A0 & H0 BR L 6 &Y 3B
MY - RIFEBEM  ETHEMBA
ARBE TS —FR-_ZT_FTF+=A
=t+—BHIMEFEEENFTA GEEAH
BREAZEBINSKOHER R

i
i

—F=8 KB BHELBR

—E-—FEIHELE(ERE— S =EE
HEEBRATMAHBREENAE) - RIE
s BETHEREZNTBEMEA R
EERERE T - —F+-_A=+—8
FFEEENFEKENMEER=ZAE
SMO0% T B R R

=
z
E

10. F =R

FREHNEIRIA T IR

2021
—E_—F

2020
—EFF
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARET T

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) E=FI& (Ff:E13) 16,159 16,169
Other staff's salaries and allowances H#f 8 T Hy % & K8k 2,518,548 1,968,313
Other staff’s discretionary bonuses Hfth 8 T H)EJIFIEAL 217,220 474,763
Other staff's contribution to retirement benefit scheme
Hth B T #RIRT8 N T &1 5K 319,894 219,448
Other staff’s share award scheme expense Hfth & T &I #2Eh 5T 2157 B 178,746 142,279
3,250,567 2,815,972
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense #2457 17 SRR 23,807,323 24,741,675
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2tEHEl 4 4,666 4,209
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3£ - #3233 & LT E 1,638,067 1,513,407
Depreciation of investment properties I &M EITE 4,633 4,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FHHEEETE 60,845 54,285
Amortisation of intangible assets %/ & 2= # £ 56,211 56,202
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales)
FEREE GTAHEEMNA) 132,374 245,674
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11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company recognised
as distribution during the year:
FAERBDIROAR R L BRFEARE
2020 final dividends — RMB88.80 cents
(2020' 2019 final dividends — RMB72.80 cents) per share
—F- fﬁjiﬁﬂﬂx 8 — BRARKS8.80%
T oRF ZE-NFERPERE - 8RARK72.805)

1. RE

2021 2020
—E-—F

—E-FTF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

974,003 798,507

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of approximately
RMB91.00 cents per share, equivalent to Hong Kong Dollar
(“HKD”) 111.80 cents per share, amounting to a total of
approximately RMB998,133,000 (2020: approximately RMB88.80
cents per share, equivalent to HKD105.70 cents per share,
amounting to a total of approximately RMB974,003,000) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The final dividends proposed after the end of reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
reporting period.

RIEHRE AR ESERENETR
HARMQ1.000 (FHHEREFK111.80/8
il (M8 1)) - & H4AKE998,133,000
m(:gfiﬁi EROARKES8.800
(FEZENERR105.70 L) - BHHARK
97400300071)%%@ T —F+=H
=T —HILEFERBARE @ EEERRER
EERRBFAS EHE - RN HRESR
RERN B REANG B I AR AR E BRIER
RAfE -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.88RER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share A RREESRERARBERF TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BATEEE :
data:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Earnings 27|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
AAEHEREAREERNNEAR 4,988,007 4,871,793

Number of shares & {32 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic earnings per share (Note)

AT E IR E AR T 8T @A 9 & (M5E) 1,092,612 1,092,870
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &7 #58 @R £ -
Restricted shares & #1815 1,416 1,578

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share

STEBREE RN T RN T8 1,094,028 1,094,448
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares has been MieE - MEFHETRIROEEFEDZERRMD
calculated taking into account the shares held by the Group under SRR EI T AEEFERD o

share award scheme.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13. E% FETBRAEBERESR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFMEESM <
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and executives’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the BEENTHRAEMESZERA ETRIUIEAD
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as follows: AHRGIB BT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total

benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FER RAEHN —R--F

ik Ht 2 A AL T EH R 43 32 b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | AR®TR| AR¥T:R ARBTR | AR%®TR| AR¥ETR
(Note)
(RH=E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ¥#& 2 = 1,274 373 89 2,383 4,119
Sun Yang %% = 1,120 420 46 2,383 3,969
Wang Wenjie £ XA - 942 411 59 2,383 3,795
Sub-total /st - 3,336 1,204 194 7,149 11,883

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FER RAEAN —R--F

ik HitfE A AL T & H R 43 52 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TR | ARBTR | AR®TR ARBTR | AR%®TR| ARBTR
(Note)
(B aE)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHITES
Wang Wenjian £ 3% 1,274 - 373 - 2,383 4,030

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEE FETHAERASR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ BEeFmMESENE (8)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FeR BHKEF —BE--fF

e Hin B Al 4L B 47 5 #m
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | AR%TR| AR%®TxR ARETR | ARBTR| AR®Txn

C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

BIYFBTES
Zhang Yuging SR E 82 - - - - 82
Feng Hua Jun S%EZE 82 - - - - 82
Shao Yang Dong BB % 82 - - - - 82
Sub-total /&t 246 - - - - 246
Total 4% 16,159
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13EE FETHAERAR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFMEESNE (8)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—RHILFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share

Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
ek BRER

ik H fth 7 7 TEAL ATl Rt 228 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARBTI| ARETET ARETT | ARBTRT| ARETT
(Note)
(BE3E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ¥#& 2% - 1,120 547 73 2,383 4,123
Sun Yang %% = 942 596 43 2,383 3,964
Wang Wenijie £ X7 = 793 547 57 2,383 3,780
Sub-total /&t - 2,855 1,690 173 7,149 11,867

Retirement
Salaries benefit

and other scheme Share

Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
Fek RIKEM

itk Hfth 7 7 TEAL AR Rt 2278

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARBTT| ARETET ARETT | ARBTRT| ARETR
(Note)
(B3E)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FUTES
Wang Wenjian F X% 1,120 - 547 - 2,383 4,050

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement
REEUES benefit
and other scheme Share
Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
ek R e S 323
ik H fth 1 7 TE4T AT R 1 228 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | AR®TR | ARETT ARETT | ARBTT| ARETR
C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
BYEHTES
Zhang Yuging SR E 84 - - - - 84
Feng Hua Jun S%EZE 84 - - - - 84
Shao Yang Dong BBP% 84 = = = = 84
Sub-total /)&t 252 - - - = 252
Total £2%8 16,169

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s emoluments shown above were for
the services as a director of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang Wenjie are also
the executive directors of the Company and their emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by them as
the Chief Executives.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil), no director waived emoluments.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BES FETHAERASA
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ BaHMESME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 4 (2020: AEERAFENAEZRSTMALTETE
4) directors for the year. Details of their emoluments are set out WE(ZZFF - @%)i% HiM e
above. The emoluments of the remaining 1 (2020: 1) highest paid BEREX - HBA—RB(ZE_ZF :
individual were as follows: ) EaTWALTHMESOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 & H b &5 832 541
Bonuses (Note) fEAT (Fffz) 375 1,336
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iE /R 4&Fll51 2 £ 7K 65 61
Share award B% {5 #£E 2,317 1,508
3,589 3,446
Their emolument was within the following band: BHMESEE LT
2020
—EEF
No. of
employee employee
ETAH BT AH
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 %t £ 4,500,0007% 7T 1 1
Note: The bonus is determined by remuneration committees based on MizE : BATBETHNEESRBEASERESH
the Group’s performance for each financial year and subject to a BREEMRBAETE  ETAImRARQ A
maximum of 5% of consolidated profit attributable to owners of the IR E(R AR & m A 5% ©
Company.
During both years, certain directors, non-director and non-chief RBFER - RERNSBERRDEZEEE -
executive highest paid employees were granted restricted shares, HETES  FESRIFETBRAERS
in respect of their services to the Group under the share awards FTMEES MBS AAREEREN ARG ME
scheme of the Group. Details of the share awards scheme are set RSB o R RENETEIMFFIBER
out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. e EERMTE42 o

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 %)% - B RRE

Machinery and Fixtures
Owned production Motor | and office | Construction
properties equipment vehicles | equipment | in progress Total
HAER BRR
BENE EERME RE WARE ERIR %%
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET ARBTE | ARBTR | ARBTR ARBTRE | ARBTR
COST A&
At 1 January 2020 Z2-F4—-H—H 913,898 7,434,775 19,251 1,021,050 714,219 10,108,193
Additions RE 52,042 1,562,262 394 199,759 723,258 2,637,715
Transfer &5 345,576 204,541 - 34,353 (584,470) -
Disposals (H& (11,056) (249,505) - (10,309) - (270,870)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HE—FMBAREKILER = (849) = (303) - (1,152)
Exchange realignment 51 $82 - (2,786) (110) (1,892) = (4,788)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
ZECEFF-A=t—ARZE=-4-f—H 1,300,460 8,948,438 19,535 1,242,658 853,007 12,364,098
Addmons AE 28,360 991,314 801 503,859 973,618 2,498,452
Transfer &% 405,942 391,986 - 101,482 (899,410) -
Transferred to investment properties
BRERANE (8,418) = = = = (8,418)
Disposals (& (1,635) (284,543 (1,816) (23,353) - (311,347
Exchange realignment S E 532 (1,166) (8,250) (20) (2,607) = (12,043)
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+-A=+—H 1,724,043 10,038,945 18,500 1,822,039 927,215 14,530,742
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RIMERAE
At 1 January 2020 R=E-2F—F—H 156,696 3,012,338 14,345 353,069 - 3,536,448
Charge for the year FRH H 45,504 1,287,297 1,810 178,796 = 1,513,407
Eliminated on disposals & & £ (9,504) (179,036) = (9,066) = (197,606)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HE—RMBL AR KRR = (835) = (286) - (1,121)
Exchange realignment 51 382 - (63) (105) (55) = (229)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
RZBZE+_A=+-BR-Z-_-4%-A-H 192,696 4,119,701 16,050 522,458 - 4,850,905
Charge for the year FR 67,508 1,289,851 1,474 279,234 - 1,638,067
Transferred to investment properties
ERERANE (4,312) = = = = (4,312)
Eliminated on disposals & F £ (1,678) (227,849) (1,641) (20,366) - (251,429)
Exchange realignment JME % (15) (3,780) (18) (1,905) - (5,718)
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+=-A=+—H 254,304 5,177,923 15,865 779,421 - 6,227,513
CARRYING VALUES [
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—#+—-F=1+—H 1,469,739 4,861,022 2,635 1,042,618 927,215 8,303,229
At 31 December 2020 R=E=FF+=-f=1+—H 1,107,764 4,828,737 3,485 720,200 853,007 7,513,193

@6\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.¥)% - #3ER=%E (&)

(Continued)

btk - #ERERERE (ERTER

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than

construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

M) REREAVAR K 5B+ Al A M
17 -

Owned properties 20 years EREE/ES 204F
Machinery and production equipment 3 to 10 years R R A E RS 3E10%F
Motor vehicles 4 1o 5 years RE 45
Fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years RN E NS = 3& 104

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained the ownership
certificates for all buildings and no buildings of the Group were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment for the both years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

R-_E-_—F+-_HA=+—H XEEHP
REMEEFNEBEE  BAEETR
KB FEAERNERETEE -

HE_ZT-_—FR_ZFT_ZFTF+_H1
Zt+—BHUMEEE  KRAEZEZERAEY
¥ BERIEITERELSSE -

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 FERAEEE

Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total

HE LT

HEME #EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

RMB’000
ARETT

As at 31 December 2021 R =—Z-—F+ - H=+—H

Carrying amount BRE{E

356,268 148,416 504,684

As at 31 December 2020 A —ZE —ZFF+ - H=+—H

Carrying amount BRE{E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-_A=+—ALLFE
Depreciation charge 7% &

342,552 137,453 480,005

8,989 51,856 60,845

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—Z-ZEF+-A=1+—RILEE
Depreciation charge 7% &

7,908 46,377 54,285

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained the land use
right certificates for all leasehold lands and no leasehold lands of
the Group were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss on
right-of-use assets for the both years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Expense relating to short-term leases 52 AT & +HRIFH

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets,
excluding short-term leases of low value assets
BREEEEHERBERX (TREEHEEELEEES)

Total cash outflow for leases FAEIR & H 42 E

Additions to right-of-use assets (£ BEEERE

15. EHEEE (&)

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H ' x£EE
BEMBEHRE L T FERAERERFE
£ BASEWAREKAEE L HERER
NERIRITEE -

HE-_ZT-_—FFRrR_ZT=-_ZF+=A1
=+ HLIMEFE  AREEZRAE
FREEEERBERIS -

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF
+=A=+—H +=-—B=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
28,671 8,218

48 235

107,994 167,567
91,711 134,287

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
staff dormitory and machines for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 1 month to 10 years (2020: 1
month to 10 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of each
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings and industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for machines.
As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases entered during the
year.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB154,270,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB148,416,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB140,479,000
and related right-of-use assets of RMB137,453,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

BERAEEE (8)

o AEBEEHERHAERIEETF
(FE2ELEHEERE) AEERZE
¥R (PREAFEELH) WELES
A o BIRRAT—IRMZ 2 FRIB A EEZ

EYERER ERENESRNRE - 5
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁkpm
2751 e

AEBETFEHU BRI LERHEE - R-F
——f+t-A=t+—8H" Lﬁﬂfﬂ SHAH
FRATZMEHBEAS R -

HER IR

o BEZT=Z—F+=ZA=+—8 -
HEBBEARKE154,270,0007T & HHE
MFEREEEAR 148,416,000 0
BR(ZEZZF - HEBBEAARK
140,479,000C RHB@HEAEEE B A

R#137,453,0007T) ° B EH AR B E
EEETHERERSI HEHBZE TN
ERIEMEL - HEEETS AR ERE
R o

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IR E W £

The Group leases out several offices under operating leases with AEBUSZEESFFENRKHES EHE
rental receivables quarterly or semi-annually. The leases typically FHELEHEETHHAE - EEHE A1
run for fixed period of 1 to 10 years. E104F »

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result HRFEHEEYNEEREBNEENEE
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the EtE  MASET2HEHGRHEREESIH
respective functional currencies of the group entities. The lease RINERRR - HES N T BIEFBRERE
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and lessee’s BERAEARHEERE S Y EREERE

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

RMB’000
ARETIT

COST B A&

At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

RZBE_EF—A—BAk_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H 67,601
Transferred from properties s 5 #)3£ 8,418
At 31 December 2021 A-ZE-—F+-HF=+—H 76,019
DEPRECIATION 7&

At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-ZT4F—H—H 22,303
Charge for the year FFA 4,391
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

RZE_EF+_A=+—BAk=_F-_—F—H—H 26,694
Transferred from properties 85 5 ¥ 4,312
Charge for the year FFA 4,633
At 31 December 2021 A-—ZE-—F+_-HA=+—H 35,639
CARRYING VALUES BEEE

At 31 December 2021 A—ZE-—F+=-_A=+—H 40,380
At 31 December 2020 R—ZE—ZEF+—-_H=+—H 40,907

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(Continued)

All of the investment properties are measured using the cost
model. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2021 was RM108,385,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB93,348,000). The fair value has been determined by the
management of the Company reference to recent market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

16. I E W 5= (F])

FIBEREYMHEUKAEXGTE - RZZ
T —F+-A=+—H8 AEEREWE
HAREAARK108,385,000C (&=
TF+-_A=1+—H : AR#¥093,348,000
TC) ° ZARBEEARARAREREBLRERE K
HREMRENENCIATISKRIERE

}—\’_Eo

AEERENENFBRRNBSHRERA
RABFEHERMT

—E_—F
Fair value
at Level 3

Carrying

amount
AREE
RMB’000
AR®T T

hierarchy
BE=ZRHARE
RMB’000
ARMET T

Commercial property units located in the PRC {i7 7> F1 [ ) 7 2 1) 22 B8 (i1

40,380 108,385

Commercial property units located in the PRC i 72 FR B 8 7 % ) 2 B2 i1

2020
—E_THF
Fair value
Carrying at Level 3
amount
FREE
RMB’000

ARETIT
40,907

hierarchy
E=RNDAE
RMB’000
ARBTT

93,348

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis from 13 to 20 years.

As at 31 December 2021, no investment properties of the Group
were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss
on investment properties for the both years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

A EMEMMIE20ENIRBEGEET
%0

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H8  xEET
RRIFIEEMHEEBERAERIEITEE

BT -Gk - _ZFTF+= A

=t ALMEFE  ARREERR/K
BEMERVWERERBE -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1 EBEEE

Patents
=RIE
RMB’000
AR®T T
COST A&
At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-_ZFT&—H—H 570,833
AddlthﬂS //J\\E 176
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021
R-BE-_TF+_A=+—HE T - —F+-_F=+—H 571,009
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #84 & s &
At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-_ZF&—H—H 151,670
Charge for the year A 56,202
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
R-E_EF+_A=+—BrR T -_—F—H—H 207,872
Charge for the year A 56,211
At 31 December 2021 A—Z—-—F+-A=+—H 264,083
CARRYING VALUES EHEE
At 31 December 2021 R—ZE=-—F+—-A=+—81 306,926
At 31 December 2020 R=F=_FF+_-A=+—H 363,137

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held (i) licensing patent
acquired from Konica Minolta, Inc. (“KMI”), an independent third
party of the Group, which allows the Group to develop, produce
and sell licensed products, (i) patent and other intangible assets
acquired from the acquisition of Sunny Mobility Technologies
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd. to develop the advanced driving assistant
system in automobile industry.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 1. EBEEE (&)
These intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised ZEBTEEREBEBRAERFEE - WA
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. B AR T F A -
The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss on HE-_ZTZ-_ " 4FR_ZFT_ZTF+=HA
intangible assets for the both years ended 31 December 2021 and =T —HILFE RRAEERRBETLE
2020. EWEREEE -

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE N B RS

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-TF

t+=A=+-B| t=ZA=t—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

Cost of investment in unlisted associates FE | B & A B E A 251,115 93,569
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss and other comprehensive

income or expenses, net of dividends received

DERBRERMEMEEREHFAX - HRERERE 13,392 (18,753)
Impairment loss recognised & &R EE1E (62,866) (72,863)
201,641 1,953

FRFNBRL (RE) ARAF » 2021 3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RERE N RV RER (&)
(Continued)
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the RIEMR - NEESEE A RMNFEN
reporting period are as follow: s -

Places of Proportion of ownership
registration/ interests held
Name of associate operation by the Group Principal activity

i AEEBFEN

BENTEN BRI FrERR Sl TEXRE

Visiondigi (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC N/A 30.85% Manufacture and sale of closed
(“Visiondigi Shanghai”)* H FiE A circuit television

FERERARMARAR ([ LBRE]) HENHERBRER

Jiangsu Sunny Medical Equipments Co., Ltd.* The PRC 31.00% 31.00% Manufacture and sale of medical

LErse FEERMAMR A A F instrument business

HENHEBRBRFER
SCIVAX Co., Ltd. (“SCIVAX")* Japan 14.26% 18.30% Research and development of
SCIVAX k=t &7t ([SCIVAX]) B advanced nanotechnology

fT 5T R PR 3 S A R Bl

WL A — N ERAERBR A A The PRC 25.00% 25.00% Research and development of
WA —HBRAREER AT i optical products
MERFAEXBER

SITERETIRERO(BERER) (‘'V Fund”) The PRC 16.41% 16.41%  Equity Investment

RIKTZAETRERL (BERERE) ((VES]) FE PR g

MMAMEEIREREEBEE(BRAE) The PRC 15.63% N/A  Equity Investment

TN BB ER BB (BRER) H TER RERE

mMNEERERESRER(BRAR) The PRC 52.00% N/A  Equity Investment

MM EREREGRLE(BRER) H TNER BRERE

*  The English names of the above entities established in the PRC and * RHBERBEARKYA TR HTE
Japan are translated for identification purpose only. BERERATE  EEZR -

# These associates were established during the current year, which are # ZEBERARTRANFEHMBKSL  FE2HR
mainly engaged in equity investment in the optoelectronic and relevant ERERBEEZERERE -

industries.

€34\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

During the current period, the dormant and fully impaired associate
named Visiondigi Shanghai has been deregistered. The cost of
the investment RMB23,135,000, net off the share of results of
RMB13,138,000 and the impairment loss of RMB9,997,000 in
the previous years resulted in insignificant gain recognised in this
reporting period.

V Fund has been reclassified from financial assets at FVTPL to
an associate since 1 September 2021, when the Group is able to
exercise significant influence over V Fund. The carrying amount of
investment in V Fund reclassified from financial assets at FVTPL is
RMB74,641,000.

On 10 May 2021, the Group entered into a Limited Partnership
Agreement with several third party independent investors to
establish MM AMFEEIRERE SR EE(BRERE) with the
total subscription amount RMB960,000,000 and the Group
will subscribe 15.63% of the total interests in the amount of
RMB150,000,000, in order to invest into companies from
optoelectronics and other relevant industries. As at 31 December
2021, RMB106,040,000 has been subscribed by the Group. As
the Group has significant influence over the management and the
operation of the fund, the investment is classified and accounted
for as an associate accordingly.

18. REtE QX R MR ()

NAER  BEFXEE T2 REMNEE
RAI LR FHE REXEAARY
23,135,000 cHIBRBEFEHHHEEA
R®¥13,138,000t R BEEEAREK
9,997,000 7T 28 Bl 2 ¥ 25 HA ) M 2R 9 WL e
WAREK °

BT —FAA—BUR  VESDHRREK
AREFABRENEREESN OB A
LA ERAKERAHVESELE

FEN  RBELAEFABRENERE
EENORNVESRERAEASARYE
74,641,0007T °

RZEZ—FHATH AEEEFTE
=HBNIREEI VARG BHE - KL
mMMNAINGEZERERESEREE(BERE
%) BREeFE/ARMI60,000,000
T AEBEB LS E AR 150,000,000
TTRE15.63%MMBIEZ  EERENX
BEHMABRTENQ R  c RZT=—
F+ZA=1+—0 A5ERBARE
106,040,0007C - R AREEEHZE R H
ERENREBEEBEATE  ZIREBERD
BIWARAS—REEQA ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. IE ZE B 1E
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement REAMBIRRAKRBNESME - & TIRT
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MEBEEERBBDLCHEE - BIEMB@mS
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BHRIEERIBASROTAOT ¢

balances for financial reporting purposes:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS
+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets &R TH & &= (255,651) (207,332)
Deferred tax liabilities #EEFHE & 1,015,890 888,809
760,239 681,477
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) ERRNEFBEERIEBEE (BE) KRA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior FEMBTEEEHHNOT
years:

Withholding | Allowance
tax on for
undistributed | inventories Deferred
profit from and ECL subsidy | Accelerated Accrued
the PRC provision income | depreciation bonus Others

RERRER
TEASE | BEHEH 13
NERSB | BREE | #REA mEAE | EiRe St L
RMB'000 |  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARRTR | ARRTT | ARBTT | AR®TR

At 1 January 2020

WZE-F&-H—H 120,532 (57,385) (9,865) 541,622 (56,112) 14,866 553,658
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

REEFETA (F15) (Fi5E9) 25,205 (33,971) 1,544 170,504 (41,407) 2,595 124,470
Charge to other comprehensive income

AR EEKE - - - - = 3,349 3,349
At 31 December 2020

RZE-ZF+-A=1—H 145,737 (91,356) (8,321) 712,126 (97,519) 20,810 681,477
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

REBEFETA (F15) (Fi559) 11,634 (20,576) (18,358) 97,876 1,778 5,912 78,266
Charge to other comprehensive income

AR EEKE - - - - = 496 496
At 31 December 2021

RZZE-_—F+-A=1+—-H 157,371 (111,932) (26,679) 810,002 (95,741) 27,218 760,239

€36\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #;Z.

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

20

As at 31 December 2021, the deferred tax liability amounting to
RMB157,371,000 (31 December 2020: RMB145,737,000) was
provided in respect of the temporary differences attributed to the
PRC undistributed profits to the extent exceeding the investment
plan which the Directors of the Company decided to distribute.
The Group has determined that the remaining portion of the profits
derived from those PRC operating subsidiaries will be retained
by those subsidiaries and not distributed in the foreseeable
future, since the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse nor be subject to withholding tax in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately RMB682,8328,000 (2020:
RMB494,138,000) available for offset against future profits.
The tax losses arising from the PRC non high-tech subsidiaries
of RMB144,435,000 (2020: RMB70,813,000) can be carried
forward for maximum of five years and will expire during 2022
to 2026 (2020: 2021 to 2025) while the tax losses arising from
the PRC high-tech subsidiaries of RMB473,504,000 (2020:
RMB381,594,000) can be carried forward for maximum of ten
years and will expire during 2022 to 2031 (2020: 2021 to 2030)
according to Caishui [2018] No. 76. which has extended the
expiration period from five years to ten years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits are paid for construction of factory buildings,
acquisition of plants and equipment located in the PRC and other
regions for the expansion of the Group’s production plants.

f—?A BA TSR B AL

—F - A=1—HIFE

i7i

19 3EFEBLE (4])
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R-_TE-_—F+_HA=+—H K&EH
LA B B R o B R B ) = R AR
EERBEEEREAR®K157,371,000
T(ZE-_FFE+_-_A=+—H8: AR
145,737,0007T) * 22 BEBBAAFE
ERENEzREHENEE - AEEE
AERBZSETRHEERBRARNFEZ
BTIHIBEHZEMNBRARRE BT
RABERENEROE  AANEEEHIE
HlR TR E AR RS ER  BZE
ZES R A] B R 1] T8 R /9 5 3k B (Bl sk 7B
TEBFRIE o

RIBEHR  AEEBAAREAREBELY
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F: AR¥70,813,0007T) TEA %£$
N TER - —F% A=
:§:§¢=:§:—¢§f2f£¢)
I - MR B & B AR EENT
HEE A ARE 473,504,000 (=T =F
£ AR#381,594,0007T) © AIRHEZ+
FRESE - D EEARB IR T [2018]76 9%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

21.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BAREF AHRMEE K
HfEm T A

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS

+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R

Unlisted equity investments FF i &

178,762 134,609

The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s equity
interests in private entities. The Directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations
in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be
consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments
for long-term purposes and realising their performance in the long
run.

During the current year, the Group made a new equity investment
measured as equity instruments at FVTOCI amounting to
RMB40,849,000 (2020: RMB100,000) and the fair value gain in the
amount of RMB2,808,000 (2020: RMB18,977,000), net off with
the recognition of related deferred tax liabilities of RMB496,000
(2020: RMB3,349,000) was recognised in FVTOCI reserve.

22. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED

COST

During the current year, all debt instruments reached maturity and
were redeemed accordingly.

As at 31 December 2021, the total carrying amount of the debt
instruments is nil (31 December 2020: RMB52,823,000).

€38\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BRANEFTABENEHME

E

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
+=A=+—H| +t=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

Current assets
mENEE

Fund investments (Note a)

EeRE (Mizta) 283,132 282,711
Unlisted financial products (Note b)
I ETerEm (FEEb) 7,992,170 8,197,475
Debt instruments (Note c)
EB T A (fistc) 38,841 -
8,314,143 8,480,186
Non-current assets
EMENEE
Debt instruments (Note c)
BB TH (fiztc) - 72,884
Equity investments (Note d)
MR & (Misrd) 19,518 133,352
19,518 206,236
Notes: B 5E -
(a) Fund investments (a) E&®E
The Group entered into several contracts to purchase fund units REFE -—REBMEBERRE TAaONE
(the “Fund”) with a financial institution, which were accounted for as BEESEBEMN([EL2])  RYPERKE

financial assets as FVTPL on initial recognition. As at 31 December
2021, the fair value of the Fund is United State Dollar (“USD”)
44,408,000 (31 December 2020: USD43,328,000) per the investment
statement of the financial institution, equivalent to RMB283,132,000
(81 December 2020: RMB282,711,000). The fair value gain in the
amount of USD1,080,000, equivalent to RMB6,886,000 (2020:
RMB22,199,000) was recognised in profit or loss in the current year.

FIER AR B ABENSBMEE - N=
T-—F+-—A=+—H RESHHEE
I ERE - ELH AN ER44,408,000
ET([ER)(ZE-ZEE+=-_A=+—
H :43,328,000%7) ' HERARK
283,132,000t (ZZE=_FEF+_-_A=+—
B : AR%282,711,0007T) ° AEFERIE

mPRRARBER=EEA1,080,000%
T (HERARB6,886,000T) (ZZE=F
F: AR¥22,199,0007T) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unlisted financial products

During the current year, the Group entered into several contracts of
unlisted financial products with banks. The unlisted financial products
are managed by related banks in the PRC to invest principally in
certain financial assets including bonds, trusts and cash funds, etc.
The unlisted financial products have been accounted for financial
assets at FVTPL on initial recognition of which the return of the
unlisted financial products was determined by reference to the
performance of the underlying government debt instruments and
treasury notes and as at 31 December 2021, the expected return rate
stated in the contracts ranges from 1.78% to 4.60% (31 December
2020: 2.15% to 3.95%) per annum.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the fair value change
of the unlisted financial products is insignificant in the current year.

Debt instruments

During the current year, the Group disposed a debt instrument at the
proceed of RMB32,427,000 (2020: RMB81,668,000). The remaining
debt instruments will be redeemed in the coming year.

The loss on the fair value change of the remaining debt instruments
amounting to RMB193,000 (2020: gain of RMB47,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss in the current year.

Equity investments

The Group’s equity investments in several partnership enterprises
amounting to RMB19,518,000 (31 December 2020: RMB133,352,000)
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL. Since 1 September 2021,
the investment in V Fund with the carrying amount of RMB74,641,000
was reclassified as interests in an associate. During the current year,
a fair value loss of RMB8,151,000 (2020: gain of RMB32,773,000)
was recognised in the profit or loss.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

24.INVENTORIES 24178
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-T4F
+t=ZA=+—B | t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Raw materials FR##} 1,510,395 1,126,857
Work in progress =24 i 202,365 193,666
Finished goods %k 3,769,098 4,462,548
5,481,858 5,783,071
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. 8 5% R A BB RERAN
AND PREPAYMENT M

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF

t=A=+-8| +=A=+-R

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

Current assets "B EE

Trade receivables & 5 fE UK IA 5,730,277 6,888,146
Less: allowance for expected credit losses i : TEHIZ B E 18 E (95,625) (95,908)
5,634,652 6,792,243
Bill receivables fEUZ 1% 1,009,636 756,530
Loan receivables (Note) FEU & 7k (Ff5E) 142,829 164,998
Other receivables and prepayment £ fth f& Uz I8 K F8 1+ 2008
Value added tax and other tax receivables [ 3% (& 51 Kz E fth fE UL i 18 119,284 92,948
Advance to suppliers £t & pa 7R 110,068 77,578
Interest receivables F&F| & 130,416 54,277
Prepaid expenses FB{fF 2 145,316 119,584
Utilities deposits and prepayment A F 3= %124 R IB 2B 41,429 75,561
Advances to employees 2+ {& 8 718 88,915 68,701
Others Hfit 25,840 9,605
661,268 498,254
Total trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 K E th JE W R IE R BT RUIB B R 7,448,385 8,212,025
Note: The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month Misk © AL RE D EE R/ NA RS
to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC. HRAE—FEAZ—FHNEEMEER -
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by FTA BRI RER TR sk R FE
collaterals. R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. B 5 & H fth R SRR IE K T A
AND PREPAYMENT (Continued) I ()

The Group allows a credit period of average 90 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit loss presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates.

AEEHETEEZEFP FHIOORNEE
Hle AT RRmERRERERA (BEH
MY R B RS ) 27 WE SRR
(FRREEEERER) WRE DT

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—E-—F e e 23

+=ZA=+—B| +tZH=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFTT

Within 90 days 90K AR 5,540,795 6,599,719
91 to 180 days 91 =180k 92,903 191,585
Over 180 days 180K M £ 954 939
5,634,652 6,792,243

The credit period of bill receivables is 90 to 180 days. Aging of bill
receivables based on the issue date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

EREZENEEHRIOE180K - NIRE
HIRER BT AN RKREERENOT

31/12/2021
—_E_—F

+t=A=+-~8

31/12/2020
—E-FF
F=E=4F—FE
RMB’000
ARETFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Within 90 days 90K LA 927,195 647,049
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 82,441 109,481
1,009,636 756,530

All bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less
than one year.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26

AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB50,024,000 (31 December 2020: RMB31,818,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
nil (31 December 2020: nil) has been past due 90 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
and bill receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out in Note 36(b).

TIME DEPOSITS/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/SHORT TERM FIXED
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group deposited
RMB500,000,000 time deposits with several banks in the PRC.
These time deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 3.85%
to 4.18% (31 December 2020: 3.85% to 4.18%) per annum. The
remaining maturity period of these time deposits is more than one
year and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The Group pledged certain of its bank deposits to banks as
security for letters of guarantee and the pledged bank deposits
carry fixed interests rates ranging from 1.80% to 3.50% (31
December 2020: at 1.35%) per annum.

Short term fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from
1.20% to 1.90% (31 December 2020: 1.92% to 3.15%) per
annum. Short term fixed deposits have original maturity dates less
than one year and therefore classified as current assets.

Bank balances, which represent saving accounts and deposits,
carry interest at market saving rates ranging from 0.30% to 1.70%
(81 December 2020: at 0.30%) per annum.

25

26

H fth B UK IE R TR

R_ZFE-_—F+_A=+—H A£EZ
SERFELEHEIER RS BHE AN
“REEAAREES50,024,000L (ZF =
TE+-_A=+—H: ARK¥31,818,000
T0) MBS A - RELEi&A T @ WE (=T
—TF+-_F=+—8 : &) afzEali
QORI E ©

EHREMERFEREREEEE_Z
—FR_E_TF+_A=+—HILHF
ERVRE B E R M FE36(b) ©

SRR DERRTE

R RBERER S RIT
FBRREE

\

HE-_EZ-_—+-A=+—HIEE
AEETFABRFRORITHEHRTRE
AR #500,000,0007C ° &€ 877 R E
EEFMERNT3.85%E4.18% 2H (ZT =
TE+-"H=+—H :3.85%%4.18%) °
ZEEHTERNG TR BHARBGE—F
Ao B AEREEE °

AREEERRTEFEE TRTERIEE
RHER R BSEBETEREEEF
RENT1.80%E3.50% 2 H (ZE_F4F
+=—A=+—H :1.35%) ¢

RHTEBHTFRENT1.20%21.90% 2
(ZE2=TF+-_A=+—H :1.92% =
3.15%) R [E & F F K52 o BAIEHF
FREBMBIR—F EAMEIERRBE
g_o

RITHEBIERERPAER BN T
0.30%E1.70% 2 (=T _ZFF+ = A
=+—H : 0.30%) TG HEFRERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 2I.{THEERMEEREE
LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held certain RI|EBR  NEBRBE THEARFE
derivatives classified as held for trading and not under hedge BERREHRSHEARENITETAEN
accounting as follows: T
Liabilities
g%
31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—B--F bt = —T-2F
+=B=+—-8 |tZA=+—8 |[+=A=+-H |+=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AR®F AREFT
Foreign currency forward contracts & H9NE A 47 27,120 17,657 41,321 9,865
Foreign currency options contracts SMNEHI#EA 4) - 3,650 4,087 96,805
Foreign exchange swap contracts SME# 14 4 117 - 95 -
Total 4% 27,237 21,307 45,503 106,670
Less: current portion i : ENHiE %
Foreign currency forward contracts & HISNE & 4] 27,120 17,657 36,264 5,083
Foreign currency options contracts SMNEHIEA 4) - 3,650 4,087 96,805
Foreign exchange swap contracts SME# 14 4 117 - 95 -
27,237 21,307 40,446 101,888
Non-current portion 3EEI#i & 5 - = 5,057 4,782
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into the
following foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency
options contracts and foreign exchange swap contracts:

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency
forward contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the

A.TEEHEEREE (H)

aT_LJ«/\TL,Hﬂ7|\|::. ,H’U WE,HME.E/:,\%@&
SNEFR ER G 4D -

EHIESH

AEEDBPBEBRTRIZLE TETLA
REHNEMINESH UEEREBEHIN

Group’s foreign currency risk.

Receiving
currency

B M

Selling
currency

BEHE®

EE [\ gz o

Weighted average

Contract Series W USD33,750,000 RMB233,051,625
BHZRFIW 33,750,000 ¢ AER#233,051,6257T
Contract 5 USD90,000,000 RMB594,738,000
B#5 90,000,000% 7T AR #594,738,0007T
Contract 6 USDB0,000,000 RMB396,540,000
a#6 60,000,000% 10 AE#396,540,0007T
Contract 7 USD26,400,000 RMB173,313,360
=xard 26,400,000 7T AR#178,313,3607T
Contract 8 USD50,000,000 RMB322,940,000
A48 50,000,000% T AR #322,940,0007C
Contract 9 USD9,000,000 RMB58,478,400
A#9 9,000,000% 7T AR #58,478,4007T
Contract 10 USD7,600,000 RMB49,231,280
&410 7,600,000% 7T AE#49,231,2807T
Contract 11 USD29,000,000 RMB186,719,400
AH11 29,000,000% T AER#186,719,4007T
Contract Series 12 USD115,000,000 RMB745,561,400
AWR12 115,000,000% 7T AE#745,561,4007T
Contract Series 13 USD50,000,000 RMB327,996,000
AHZE13 50,000,000% 7T AR#327,996,0007T
Contract 14 USD20,800,000 RMB134,266,080
B84 20,800,000% T AE#134,266,0807T

Foreign currency options contracts

Maturity date forward exchange rate
38A MRS ELER
Semi-annually till USD:RMB
18 January 2023 from 6.82 to 6.99
TEHRZ ETRAR6.8226.99
—Z=5—H+\H
15 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.61
T FATHEA ETRARE : 6.61
15 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.61
T -FXA+EA ETAARE : 6.61
22 February 2022 USD:RMB:6.56
“R-F-AZ+ZH ETHARY : 6.56
29 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.46
“R-ZFRAZTAB ETHARE : 6.46
11 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.50
“ZE-—f-A+-H ETHARE : 6.50
13 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.48
“ZE-_f-A+=H ETHARY - 6.48
25 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.44
“Z-—4—-A-t+hH ETRARE 644
Monthly till USD:RMB
27 June 2022 from 6.46 to 6.55
BAZ-Z__f EHARY6.46%6.55
~NAZt+H
Monthly till USD:RMB
25 March 2022 from 6.55 to 6.57
BAZ-Z__% ETHARE6.55%6.57
=ZRA=+®A
9 February 2022 USD:RMB:6.46
“E--f-ANA ETRARE : 6.46
HEHEEN

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency options
contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the Group’s
foreign currency risk.

AEEDBPEBORTRIZLE TETLA
REHIMNEHESL - LWEEREBEHNIN
PEE [\ gz o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)
Foreign currency options contracts (Continued)

The Group is required to transact with the banks for designated
notional amount on each of the valuation dates specified within
the respective contracts (“Valuation Date”).

At each Valuation Date, the reference rate which represents
the spot rate as specified within the respective contracts shall
be compared against the strike rates (upper and lower)/barrier
rate as specified within the respective contracts, and the Group
may receive from/pay to the bank an amount as specified in the
contracts if certain conditions specified within the respective
contracts are met.

21.

TEEMEEREE (F)

SNEMESH (F)

AR EBREA D FTIEE R E B 8 (45
EEH)) RIS S ERRSRITEST
%5 -

REMGERS  2ZER (BEAKMEE
MBREER) BREQOMIEENTEER
(ERETR),PIEERELL R - BEE
HERWMIEESR THRENBRAT - AR
B AT R AERERITHRER XN ZE A N
TEHEFE o

Extracts of details of foreign currency options contracts from the RZEZ—F+ZHA=1T—8  8BX¥F
respective contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2021 are as BEXNINERESAONFERENT -

follows:

Notional amount
EREH
USD’000
ELTT

Strike/barrier rates

76/ PEEXR

Ending settlement date

EREE B

Contract G 24,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4630 24 January 2022
BHG EITH ARY1:6.4630 T _F—-HA-+@mA
Contract H 40,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.3893 25 January 2022

B HIH ELH ARY1:6.3893 —E__f—H-+HH
Contract | 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.5041 26 January 2022
=R ETTH ARY1:6.5041 —E__F—HZ1KH
Contract J 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4964 26 January 2022
RN/ EL i ARY1:6.4964 B _F—HZ+KH
Contract K 44,710 USD:RMB at 1:6.3925 23 February 2022

B HK EITHARK1:6.3925 —E-—HF-F-+=H
Contract L 35,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4785 23 February 2022
BHIL EILHARKA1:6.4785 T —F-A-+=H
Contract M 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4025 24 March 2022
EHIM FEITH ARM1:6.4025 —T-_—HF=F=+1+mH
Contract N 59,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4424 28 March 2022

A #HIN ELHARYA:6.4424 —E-_—H#=ZH—+)\B
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Foreign exchange swap contracts

The Group entered into several Euro (“EUR”)/USD and HKD/USD
foreign exchange swap contracts with banks in the PRC in order
to manage the Group’s foreign currency risk.

Receiving currency Selling currency

BrLE®

DL

A.TEEHEEREE (H)

HERBEN

AEECEPEMRITAIZLE TEOUT ([B
RDAXTRABETHETNIINERERE
%) AEEAKERINER -

Contract A USD30,038,473 EUR26,442,039
EHA 30,038,473% T 26,442 0398 T
Contract B USD30,000,000 HKD233,928,000
548 30,000,000 7T 233,928,000/ 7T
Contract C USD30,000,000 HKD233,967,000
EH#C 30,000,000 T 233,967,000/8 7T

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions that are
covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Master Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”) signed with a bank.
These derivative instruments are not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in
place with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.

—ZT-—FxA=1+N\H

Maturity date Strike Rate
FHA THEER
7 January 2022 EUR:USD: 1.14
T —HF—fA+H BITHET - 1.14
1 June 2022 USD:HKD: 7.80
T _FRXH-H ETTHAT - 7.80
28 June 2022 USD:HKD: 7.80

EILRBIT : 7.80

AEEEFAYETIETARS - BIRTT
BRAIWMBEBRERARTETABSEBHE
((EREARITETABERBR]) ¥
%EXp c ARBREHARITETAG S
mipEAE  BEURERBERFE &N
EERWENBERTITREHEE AR
B B AR S E R IEROA A R
HIBITRER Bt REFETETAT AR
RAMBRRRAEH -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 Rk Hfth B FRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NTARBEHRREREZANE ZER
based on the invoice date and note payables presented based on FIERERETHNENZRIRARRDT

the issue date at the end of reporting period.

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—g=-% i
t=A=+-8| t=A=+-H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

Current liabilities F B & &
Trade payables & 5 &S 5 IE

Within 90 days 90K AN 4,262,386 5,525,012
91 to 180 days 91 F 180K 742,744 829,036
Over 180 days 180K LA £ 355 495
Accrued purchases FE:TEREEZE 925,738 804,832
Total trade payables and accrued purchases & 5 1 ZE & EFT R IB 28 4258 5,931,223 7,159,375
Note payables J& =&
Within 90 days 90K AR 1,336,260 1,022,991
91 to 180 days 91 F 180K 385,024 312,985
Over 180 days 180K A £ 100,000 -
1,821,284 1,335,976
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEWX  MELRERMNRIE 267,891 182,910
Staff salaries and welfare payables 8 L %% K18 A et 518 1,311,836 1,222,684
Labor outsourcing payables 45 755N &~ 0 E 139,747 168,504
Payables for acquisition of patents 4 &% = 51| fEf~t FoE 40,913 45,651
Value added tax payables and other tax payables
JERHIG(E D K A B IR 113,297 341,112
Commission payables JE& {4 19,493 32,471
Interest payables JE{ 75 64,473 65,878
Rental and utilities payables B &R AR S=EEH 58,346 50,808
Others Efih 100,184 127,995
2,116,180 2,238,013
9,868,687 10,733,364

Non-current liabilities 7B & &
Long term payables = & &t Z 18
Payables for acquisition of patents 4% 8% 22 | &~ 3118 172,044 245,636
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Ba == =
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 R H RN FIE (4F)
(Continued)
The credit period on purchases of goods is up to 180 days (2020: EmEBENEERRZA180R(ZEF
180 days) and the credit period for note payables is 90 days to F:180K) RENEEMNEERAWQKRE
365 days (2020: 90 days to 180 days). The Group has financial 365K (ZZE=FF : Q0 KE180K) ° &
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are SEHEEREVBRRERERE - AR
settled within the credit time frame. BREAFERNMEEBRRNZA -
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 0. 6K8E
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
=B —F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—B8| +t=A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Advance from customers % F 214 5018 178,101 131,191
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to R-ZE-_ZTF—F—H 6HEBEAAR
RMB83,202,000. #83,202,0007T °
The contract liability is the consideration received from the ERNEEEASBEERE S WEEA B E R
customers which represents the Group’s remaining obligation BITRARFEEREREBFHRE - YW
to transfer goods to customers. All the contract liabilities at the FIBEEHABEHENRANREEINRE
beginning of the period have been realised to revenue in the WERK « WASATER » B RS BiER
reporting period and no revenue recognised in the reporting period AR TESEMAHELERNELD
from the performance obligations satisfied in previous periods. B o
S
30. BANK BORROWINGS 3. RWITBE
Unsecured &if # 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF
t+=A=+—-HB| T=A=*+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥BT T
Guaranteed & &R 1,601,327 1,381,243
Unguaranteed &R 637,570 689,368
2,238,897 2,070,611
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable*:

PSR EENREERN TR AER

0. RITEE ()

31/12/2021
—E-—F
+=HA=+—H

RMB’000
AR®TR

31/12/2020
—E-FF
m=H= H
RMB’000
ARETIT

Within one year —%F A 1,538,897 2,070,611
Within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years
R—F A HE BB W FH HE A 700,000 -
2,238,897 2,070,611
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in ERREDREER GRS SERE RE
the loan agreements. E °

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:

AEERITEERR

T -

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—EB-—F —EEF

+=ZA=+—-R8| t=ZA=+—A”

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBTIT

Fixed-rate borrowings EEF|EEE 900,000 1,124,500
Variable-rate borrowings A £ F| & (& & 1,338,897 946,111
2,238,897 2,070,611

The range of effective interest rates per annum (which are equal to
contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

FMZ)EEMT

31/12/2021
—E_—F

AEERITEENERER:

& (AZRAH

31/12/2020
—E-FF

Fixed-rate borrowings & #l| R & &
Variable-rate borrowings ] % Fl| & (& &

+=HA=+—H

3.10%
0.60%-0.87%

+=ZHA=+—8
2.96%
0.85%-1.14%
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- g =
30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. RITEE (&)
The variable-rate borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 31 R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—HE T %
December 2020 were denominated in USD which carried the FH+ZA=1+—BoENEREENET
floating-rates at London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (‘LIBOR”) plus a FHE - BRI EZHEERITREREF
premium. Z([RBBTRBERFENR]) INEET
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currency AEBAHBAEREREEEUINE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities BETEMRITEERINOT -

are set out below:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—H | +t=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
USD =7t 1,338,897 946,111
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

31. LEASE LIABILITIES NHEHEERE

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-TF

+=A=+—H +=A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T

Lease liabilities payable: [EfFE & & :

Within one year —%F R 46,271 43,580

Within a period of more than one year but not more than two years

HBiA—FENEBMFNHEA 28,531 37,551

Within a period of more than two years but not more than five years

HEMFENEBLFAHRREA 46,583 37,699

Within a period of more than five years i@ 1 & EIRE A 32,885 21,649
154,270 140,479

Less: amount due for settlement with 12 months shown under current liabilities

B OREIAE TSN 28 B REE /R B FIE (46,271) (43,580)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under non-current liabilities

FRBEETAIIN1218 AR EE N T EAKIE 107,999 96,899

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to FE AR E B &/ N #E T 1538 S 5 FOR R

lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 4.90% (2020: from 4.75% to NFA475%E4.90% 2B (ZE=-F

4.90%). 4.75%%E4.90%) °

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED 2. BF®BE IEZEWA

INCOME

2021 2020
B —E-F4E

e —=< —=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT

Amounts credited to profit or loss during the year: SN A S5
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

A ERERITSCE RS (Mita) 72,996 59,954

Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

FAira B # A (FaEb) 10,434 16,037

Incentive subsidies (Note c) #ZE)# B4 (MizEc) 128,884 65,819
212,314 141,810
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32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED
INCOME (Continued)

Deferred income related to government grants: B B & EERA ¢

Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

2 BRI S  BER A

(#&)

31/12/2021
—E_—F

+t=A=+-H

31/12/2020
—E-FF
+=—HA=+—8
RMB’000
AREF T

RMB’000
AR®BTR

EESBRITSUE AL (FiiEa) 90,573 55,945
Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

BoIE B A E AL (M EEb) 30,033 21,605
Subsidies related to construction of staff living facilities (Note d)

Mg S THERERMEMEL (id) 73,997 =
Total 45t 194,603 77,550
Less: current portion & : BEAEE % (6,099) (8,695)
Non-current portion FER1EREl 7 188,504 68,855

Notes:

(@

The Group received grants from the local government for the purpose
of increasing in production capacity for high-end handset lens sets
by enhancement of production lines. The amounts are deferred and
amortised over the useful lives of the relevant assets in the enhanced
production lines.

The Group received grants for reimbursement towards the costs of
research and development of certain technology projects with local
government and various parties. The amounts are deferred and
amortised over period of the respective research and development
projects.

Incentive subsidies were received from the local government in
recognition of the eminence of development of new products,
achievement of certain revenue and export volume milestones of
the Group. The subsidies were unconditional and granted on a
discretionary basis to the Group and recognised in profit or loss when
received.

The Group received grants from the local government to support the
construction and improvement of staff living facilities. The amounts
are deferred and amortised over the useful lives of the staff living
facilities.

B aE -

(@)

AREEEF T BUTRMEL - DARIBUGE
LEGRSRHTHERER %F2H
TEREEL N R B BCE EERNBREED
e FERARE S

AEEEFHT BT RBRE A
BB D RMIE B EUA - Z2F S
{ERIEW N & T 318 B B # 8 -

b 77 BT HE k22 ) 418 R A 32 A AR 52 1B B 3%
MEmM ZWRABEREREAOXER -
REBBSBREEABERTAKE IR
W ER B B R P FERR -

AEERFHTBTME - AXFHETAE
AREERENERZEEE ZZ2RER
EWRETAEREREN A ERFHA
B3H o
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33. BONDS PAYABLE

On 16 January 2018, the Company issued unsecured bonds in the
amount of USD600 million at the rate of 3.75% which will be due
by 2023 to professional investors outside of the United States in
accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. The
issuance has been completed on 23 January 2018 and the listing
of the bonds in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange became effective
on 24 January 2018.

The Company had used all of the net proceeds from the bonds for
funding capital expenditures, fulfilling working capital requirements,
refinancing existing indebtedness and other general corporate
purposes.

During the current year, interest expense of approximately
RMB153,970,000 (2020: RMB164,282,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

33 BB

RZZE—NF—A+8 ' ARAFRREE
BE(EHESHAIMEEIEIINBEREE
BT ZZF =4 %|81,2600,000,0003
T3 7T5EMEERES  ZBETER-ZT
—N\F—A=-+=ZHB=K " BEHFR_-F
—N\F—AZ+mBERREBB AT LW -

AAREBESFEREL 2 HFEER
AABXAS  RTLBEALEX  BA
EHERE R —RATRE -

RAFEHRE - HAR153,970,0007T
(Z=2 =% : AR¥164,282,0007T) HY
FERITNGAERNEMEEKERTP
TR o

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, IR 2

Number

of shares Amount Equivalent to

BHEE =8 BER

Authorised: JETE :
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021
RZEZZF+_A=+—HRZZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—H
FIREE0.108 TR AR

100,000,000,000

RMB'000
ARBTT

HKD’000
BILTT

10,000,000

Issued & fully paid: BT R :
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021
R-ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HAFK-_T-_—F+-A=+—H
BREECI0E T L ER

1,096,849,700

109,685 105,163
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 30, lease liabilities
disclosed in Note 31 and bonds payable disclosed in Note 33 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or
the repayment of existing debts.

35. B < A

e

BEEEEEAN  UBEFRAKEETE
WIFERE  ARBEEBLERKE
&% BRBRRERKEAL - AEEH
REGEEFMER -

N2

M Bk e B
e A & >1H¢F

AEENEARBHARBFR (BERH
SO WEMRITEE ~ R FEI1HHE
MEERERNMEITHENENES
(kR RBRLFEERE)) REARRRR
EihED (BREBITERA - REEMME
b6 AR o

RRBEEFFFR —RERRE - 1F
BTN —&D  AAREFEEEARK
AREBEAHBER - REARAES
M AEEREBNEE - BITH
P B2 s A7) @ﬁ%u&?‘ﬁ%ﬂ?’:iﬂaﬁfﬁﬁ%
R EEEEEARE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. £FTH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. TRITEDHE

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS

+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets & Fi& &

Financial assets at FVTPL I AR Bt AR @& E 8,333,661 8,686,422
Derivative financial assets $T4 4 @& E 27,237 21,307
Financial assets at amortised cost X # 5k Rzt E W2 B E &= 14,202,514 11,486,163
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 2 A R Bt AR 2 E W zmafEm TH 178,762 134,609
22,742,174 20,328,501
Financial liabilities & &4 & (&
Liabilities measured at amortised cost 1% # K ANzT E M B & 13,751,314 14,415,363
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 % &l & (& 45,503 106,670
13,796,817 14,522,033
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. B¥RAMEEEERBEK

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include derivative financial
assets/liabilities, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from/to related parties, financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at amortised cost, equity instruments at FVTOCI,
time deposits, short term fixed deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, long term payables and bonds payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Market risk exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. Details of each type of market risks are described as
follows:

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes certain foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
bonds payable and bank borrowings are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities and expose to such foreign
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and utilising foreign currency forward
contracts, foreign currency option contracts and foreign
exchange swap contracts.

FEENERIABETESRE
E/AE BHREMEYRTIE &
W,/ ERTEEANTHRIA - RARER
ABENEREE HBHEKAE
MEBTLAE ZIAEFAEMER
WanEa TR EHER  EHE
BER - CEBERITER - RITER
kBE - EHREMEMNFE - RTT
fHE  REENFEREMNES -
MTANFBHENEEME - Bk
TR T AR AR SR SRR (5
PE B ~ AR E e R E M ERERE)
EFERRERBDESRER - BEIE
RBOBRRBIN T - EEERE
EERERILERE - R LEAR
HEREGEE i o

mHRER

7R 65 B 2 75 [ B B £ 2 35 AL B S A0
PE LR - AR N H A E S E R
miZRERE - FRERESNAE -
AT REETERRNFS

() SMEEE

AEBETETIINEER - AmmE
HBHMERR - NEEE TRITE
BhRE  BHREMEYIE
B 5 MhEMBEMNFIR - BAHESFNA
FIRTTREHUEREE BRI
BRI EEHER I RA R
SN LR o AN R T ) B A I K A
BRERERINESL - INEHIRE
BRI RINEER IS &) AE IR INE

LA
o0
2

o

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. AR EEEERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) mEEkE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SMNERE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies AR B & B S #h & BAR A NS &
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BEEEEEREEBENERE

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
&f&

2021 2020 2021 2020

SRo-F| ZTFF | ZB--F| ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 |  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR | ARBTIL | AR®TR | ARBTET

USD %7t 6,010,423 3,888,114 6,726,417 6,821,730
HKD 77T 389,279 59,963 8,207 1,150
Japanese Yen (‘JPY”) Bt (BT ]) 79,228 39,923 334,365 394,580
Indian Rupee (‘INR”) ENEELL ([ENEEL |) 282,471 365,975 22,660 9,226
Vietnamese Dong (‘VND”) i f& ([#r/E ) 42,744 5,247 11,311 7,766
Korean Won (‘KRW") 87T ([ 87T ]) 9,549 5,803 106,251 8,052
Sensitivity analysis BT

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in USD, HKD, AEBWMEERBRAKBET - B
JPY, INR, VND and KRW against RMB. L B BEEL - BEERE

TTHARENEZKS -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TREFMAEERSINE AR
5% (2020: 5%) change in respective foreign currencies L% (ZTE_FTF : 5%) KK
against RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes only BRRE - HREDMEBRER ARG
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary BHINEETEERIEE - UAREH
items and adjusts their translation at the year end date for HERFEHEXRZEH5%MIED
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. B EE o

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase THEH(BH) RESWEER
(decrease) in post-tax profit where the respective HIERINE A {ES% MBEBRTEZ
functional currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant & AIE A ORt A ) 1B 5 » fin B 2 88
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of the respective B A EEEYERESS - Algs
functional currencies against the relevant currencies, there BRERENEEFEERNTE
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax

profit.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

()

(1)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continueq)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

misER (&)

() SMNEREE (&

BREZ T ()

Profit for the year

FREF
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
USD (Note) 7t (KfzE) 30,430 124,679
HKD &7t (16,196) (2,500)
JPY HJT 10,843 15,073
INR ENEE Lt (11,042) (15,162)
VND #FEJE (1,336) 107
KRW #27¢ 4,110 96
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank eE: EEBERRERFLALBUINEE
balances, outstanding receivables, outstanding payables, THERRITERS - REEE
bank borrowings and bonds payable denominated in WHRIE - REEEMNFIE - iR
foreign currency of USD at the year end date. TREEREMNESFNRRE
Interest rate risk (i) Y

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 30 for
details of these bank borrowings), lease liabilities (see
Note 31 for details of lease liabilities), time deposits,
short term fixed deposits and pledged bank deposits (see
Note 26 for details of these deposits), debt instruments
(see Note 22 for details of these debt instruments) and
bonds payable (see Note 33 for details of the bonds
payable). The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the Group monitors interest rate
exposures and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposures should the need arise.

AEERBEENXRITEE (ZF
RITEEFIBRAMES0)  HE
AE(HEABEHBRMES)
EHEX BHERFEREREE
RRITER (REERFBRME
26) BB TR (ZEEBITAF
BRME22) AR ERMES (A
EHFFIERWT33) MEGRARE
MEER - AEE B FDRA A
REPER - AT - AEBESEE
MERERI S EE T EEEELH T
BEAMNXER o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. ¥EREEEERBK (&)
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) mizE R (4)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FFEEE (E

ARER B IR A A] 22 A R IR TT S ER AN R

THEE (RERITEEFBRME

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank

borrowings (see Note 30 for details of these bank
borrowings). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on
bank balances and the LIBOR arising from the Group’s
bank borrowings. The management will review the

30) MEEREREEREM KRR - &
SENRSRENREAREIEST
RIBITEBEAEENRITEEE
ERRBERTRER BN XK -
B B A AT B T KT BRI R A8

proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and EpWmEREENSIEHEN -

ensure they are within reasonable range.

AEESREEREEAEOTE
BREEANERBE S ARESR
— 55 (ERE A -

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for both
derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. 50
basis points (2020: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
in variable-rate bank borrowings and fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTPL are used represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would have decreased/increased by
RMB5,885,000 (2020: RMB4,331,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings and fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTPL.

6. LR TR ()
RERETERERBE (F)

mizER (&)

(i) FIFEmE (&)

AT GURE 2 4 Th IR R & AR OT
ETARFITHET AN ERRE
E o ROMIHBRRNBRE AR KRE
ENERIAEEZFHREEMR
o AN ERRITEEREAAE
T AR ENE M R &R T AN
SR ADBOEERER (T T4
SOEEER) AR KREEE S H
KRB IEA RER LAV -

W’L\ Ki*ﬁu/ﬁzd%o 18 & 2 2

ZETF - 50EEER) BE
e ERHFIE - REERE
BT —F+A=1+—HIHF
ERRBE SN ENA
R #5,885,000c (ZE T4 :
AR#4,331,00070) ' TBRHA
RAEEHEGAIZMNERRITEER
BAREFF AR EE R R EH
TERFIERER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in unlisted financial products, fund
investments, debt instruments and equity investments as
financial assets at FVTPL, the foreign currency forward
contracts, foreign currency option contracts, and foreign
exchange swap contracts. The management considers
alternative tools to mitigate other price risk and manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. In addition, the Group also invested in
certain unquoted equity securities for investees operating
in several industry sectors for long term strategic purposes
which had been designated as FVTOCI. The management
closely monitors such exposure and considers hedging
such exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to the price risk at the reporting date. For
the sensitivity analysis of those financial assets at FVTPL,
increase (decrease) in the prices of the respective financial
assets would result in an increase (decrease) the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities at FVTOCI with
fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in Note 36(c).

If the prices of those financial assets at FVTPL had been
5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by RMB354,181,000 (2020: RMB369,173,000).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MkEREEBZREER (E)

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on liquid funds and derivative financial assets
are limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on its unlisted financial products at
FVTPL. The credit risk on unlisted financial products at FVTPL
is limited by the underlying assets invested by the unlisted
financial products being the PRC government related debt
instruments and treasury notes and the counterparties who
issued these unlisted financial products are banks with good
reputations.

EERBRKBER G

R-ZE-_—F+-"F=+—H K&
EAXVBEENEAEERBKB
REVBRRARMAIISEEERS
BEMKRAE -

EREEERR  AEEEEE
Eé&ﬁfﬁﬁ E EERFEER
R EBEMEELREMERRER - NUE
%%Wﬁkﬁ@%@@%%%°%
s ARBRBHEEHEEAHE
25 FE SR IR (8 7 3 sl AR 9% 138 5 AR e o
TTRER - Bt XRAREERE
AEENEERBRDAKRBEE

HRRZEFHREETRRTAIR
1T WEBARDESRITESREE
WEERRER -

R-ZFB-_—FE-_F_FTF+=-A
=t—H AEENEERARESTR
Eﬂgﬁﬁkﬁﬁ%#iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
me BRAOABEFABENIIFLTER
EmMEERBRAR - AN IEL
MEMERKRENHBAEESTEIK
REBEBTARBEES - BETZ
FHRLTEMEMNBFTAEER
FFEVERTT °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)
b. BIEEKREEEERBE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% (2020: 28%)
and 47% (2020: 51%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. Revenue from the top five trade
debtors represent over 46% (2020: 56%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Directors
of the Company, the associates and the shareholders have
no interest in the customers mentioned above. The largest
five customers’ manufacturing facilities are located in the
PRC, Vietnam and India, and their principal activities are
manufacturing of smartphones and optical related products.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk on its deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as 50%
(2020: 61%) of the total deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment was paid to the Group’s largest three
suppliers of property, plant and equipment. The credit risk
on the deposits paid is limited as these suppliers are large
construction enterprises and equipment suppliers in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Korea.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #;Z.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

A EEFR i

3%.€F T A

b.

EERRK

AEEBABED

B

Trade receivables
EZEWRE

i7i

(%)

—F - A=1—HIFE

MEEEREE B RRBEE (&)

KR faRt i (&)

EHF R EEAT

I:l/\D

Other financial assets

HttEWEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of
KRk default and does not have any
past-due amounts
HFEFNBHRRE - BEEMA
BHIRIE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due
BRaE dates but usually settle in full
ERALERIRBERENR  BBE
REERE S
Doubtful There have been significant increases
THEER in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources
B &Nk E IR B KA A
HERIAK - EERBRARE L7
Loss There is evidence indicating the
B8 asset is credit-impaired
BRBTEELREENE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
i debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ZK%@%TH&Z@?(W@%E&?E@%

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
FHIEHEEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
FHREBEEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
PHIEHREEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-credit-
impaired

FHREEERE -
= ERE

Amount is written off
PR M

12m ECL
12 AR EEER

12m ECL
12EABHEEER

Lifetime ECL-not

credit-impaired

SHEHEESE -

BIEERE

Lifetime ECL-credit-

impaired

2HERMEEEE -

EERE

Amount is written off

AR MR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. WKEKEEBEZREE (&)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER R &R ER S (8)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFNAEBZBRNEBEEEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL FENERMEEMEGRNEERR
assessment:

External | Internal 2021 2020
credit credit | 12-month or Gross carrying Gross carrying
rating rating | lifetime ECL amount amount

a8 | A8 | 128Ad S -

FEFR | FEFR | 2HRAREER AREE

RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARETL

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBERATENCREE
Trade receivables 25 N/A Note b  Lifetime ECL 5,649,488 6,798,858
B o RNGE TR Hiztb  (provision matrix)
FHRBEEER
(BfEmmE)

Loss Credit»impaired 80,789 5,730,277 89,288 6,888,146

BE WREERE
Amount due from a related party 41(c) N/A Notea 12m ECL 327 327 - -
el —%EEATHE TER Mia 12(AEHEEEE
Loan receivables 25 N/A Notec  12m ECL 142,829 142,829 164,998 164,998
el ER TER e 12ARSEEESSE
Bill receivables 25 N/A Notea 12m ECL 1,009,636 1,009,636 756,530 756,530
[EREE TER Mia 12AEHEEEE
Other receivables 25 N/A Notea 12m ECL 197,685 197,685 139,443 139,443
At Y TER Mia 12ARSEEESSE
Debt instruments at amortised cost 22 BB- N/A 12m ECL - - 52,823 52,823
RRBNATENER LA BB- TNER 12ABHEEEE
Time deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
EBET AA+ TER  12EAREEEES
Short term fixed deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 1,093,914 1,093,914 234,917 234,917
Sl AA+ NER 12ABHEEER
Pledged bank deposits 26 AA+ N/A  12m ECL 18,292 18,292 3,438 3,438
BEFRITER AA+ TER  12EARSEERS
Bank balances 26 AA+ N/A  12m ECL 5,604,918 5,604,918 2,841,508 2,841,508
R AA+ TER 12EARSGESER
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MkEREEBZREER (E)
policies (Continued)
=E R MR ER (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

B aE

Notes:

(@)

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group (@)
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Past due

BHREA
RMB’000
AR¥T R

HRABEERREENBAN KK
ERABmBEHFEEERRE VT
FERARE B ARG LT

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
term
mgs
EEEERH
RMB’000
ARBT T

Total

B
RMB’000
AR®T

Amount due from a related party fEUx—HREE A LFIE - 327 327
Bill receivables fEU =i - 1,009,636 1,009,636
Other receivables b f& U 8 - 197,685 197,685

- 1,207,648 1,207,648

Not past due/

No fixed
repayment
Past due term
e
i HAFRIE 4 [ FE B R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT
Bill receivables & W =15 - 756,530 756,530
Other receivables H At fE I FIE = 139,443 139,443
- 895,973 895,973
(o) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified b) HREZEKFEMS  AKSEERT
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime BB ISR E RIS 95 H B8 75 05 A
ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired, the Group FEE2HEHEESENBIERE -
determines the expected credit loss on these items by using a REREERBENEFAN  XEEH
provision matrix, grouped by debtor’s aging. ERREER (REFARKSH) B
EZEHEENEHEEER -
(c) The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month () AEEMFTEEMEE R NP ER

to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC.
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by
collaterals. The credit risk of loan receivables is low.

HHARS—EAZ-—FHEENXE
Ko IAEERBBRERIFR,HH
HIER - BREFRNEERRTS °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, except for the
debtors with credit-impaired the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers which are with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables
which are assessed collectively based on provision matrix
with lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors with credit-
impaired with gross carrying amount of RMB80,789,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB89,288,000) were assessed
individually.

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

EERR KR ERE (8)

ERAEEEERBREEN —HH
B 3R (= BB E A JE R IE AN - K&
EFEABEBANKRRTGEERS AR
B AzSEFABHERRRER (R
MEFIRES NGRS A B B
HERES) o TRIEMHBEBMERNE
ERBEERBEBERNEHAERE
EER(EEERE) AED BTG
ME ZEBGRIENTEREESENE
Bem=—T=—F+=-A=1+—8"
HRERmEAARES0,789,0007T (= F
—T4F . AR¥89,288,0007T) IEE
REERAREB LA o

Gross Impairment

Average carrying loss

loss rate amount allowance

FHEE=E AREE | BESERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBT T

1-90 days 1E90X 0.02% 5,541,737 942
91 — 120 days 91 £120K 0.46% 80,209 368
121 — 180 days 121 £180K 0.56% 13,136 74
More than 180 days 180K LA £ 93.38% 14,406 13,452
5,649,488 14,836
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

3%.¢RITH(E&E)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

EERRFRERE (&)

Gross Impairment

Average carrying loss

loss rate amount allowance

T EEE MEREE | REEERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETIT

1 -90 days 1£290X 0.01% 6,600,315 596
91 — 120 days 91 £120:K 0.20% 177,932 363
121 — 180 days 121 E 180K 0.78% 14,126 110
More than 180 days 180 KA _E 85.52% 6,485 5,546
6,798,858 6,615

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided RMB8,221,000 (2020: reversal of RMB6,499,000)
impairment allowance for trade receivables based on
the provision matrix and reversed RMB3,039,000 (2020:
RMB5,719,000) impairment allowance for credit impaired
debtors, respectively.

BEBREDENEHEANBHRS AN
ELERENERREFTMNE TS REKA
HB N MEFHATEEERETRG - 2
PHEEEEMRS  UBRERBER
AR AR B RLE SFEY

BE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—RHItFE -
NEBERBEEERELYEKE S HIBEIE
AR#8,221,000 L (ZE 4 : HEA
K #®6,499,0007T) KR EEE - WHEE
AR®3,089,000t (ZZEZFF : AR
#5,719,0007T) HY15 ERVE B AR B B
1 o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZERBER (E)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRMRET S (8)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TERBIERBEERTETERNE S
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified W SRIEZHEREEERE “@J
approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2HAMEEEE | 2HRAMEESE

(BEEREAE) | (WREEREE) #E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETTT

As at 1 January 2020 R=—FE=_ZF—H—H 17,478 95,007 112,485
Changes due to financial assets recognised

at 1 January 2020:
AR—Z_ZF-—A—BBRANSHEENZD :

— Transfer to credit-impaired

- BREEERE (4,364) 4,364 -

— Impairment losses reversed

— BEURERE (13,102 (5,719) (18,821)

— Write-offs

— M sH - (4,364) (4,364)
New financial assets originated 4 % it & & 6,603 - 6,603

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-EF+-A=+—H 6,615 89,288 95,903

Changes due to financial assets recognised
at 1 January 2021:
AR—ZE-_—F— A BRINERMEENED :

— Impairment losses reversed

— BEIRERE (6,544) (3,039) (9,583)

— Write-offs

— M sH - (5,460) (5,460)
New financial assets originated E4£# & @& & 14,765 = 14,765

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZE-_—%+=-HA=+—H 14,836 80,789 95,625

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that debtors is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtors has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to approximately
RMB16,115,878,000 at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: RMB12,218,409,000) and has low exposure to liquidity
risk of being unable to raise sufficient funds to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period from the year end
date to their maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based
on floating interest rate or exchange rates (where applicable)
prevailing at the year end date.

EERRFRERE (&)

AEEREEMBREBABREE
8 75 IR B % 4R 3] R GR O B R 2R B
W sHEZ IR 2 5 EUEIR (B E A
ERERKCEARERTFH) o

MEVE SRR

AEFER—_ZE_—F+-_A=+—HH
mENEEFELHARK16,115,878,000
T(ZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H: AR
#12,218,409,0007T) * MAKRAEE

EHESEEIHERABENRDES
B iR E (K o

REEBRBDECRAR  AREEER
MEEEERREANRERREE
BHE  AFASENZEEES LR
HRSRETRENTE -

TRBIIENE LA ST B T
BEREEINENYAEECRE
BRUFEEEMITESRE BN
o RRFREECBEALRERAN
IHFRKER (MEA) HREHA

HWREME °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZERBER (E)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEERER (B&)
Liquidity tables TEE LK

Weighted
average | Ondemand Total
effective | orless than 3 months 1 year to 5years to | undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount

i 337 L
RRAE AR | ZBARE-F | -FERF | IFETE | AHRAR REE
RMB'000 |  RMB'OO0 |  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR [ ARMTR | ARMTR | AR®TR | ARBTR [ ARMTR

As at 31 December 2001 K =E=—41=F=7—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 74 £REE

Trade and other payables Z5 £t B 508 6,774,717 743,099 - - 1,517,816 1,517,816
Amounts due to related parties [Ef{EE A £ 3178 4,481 2,453 - - 6,934 6,934
Bank borrowings - fixed rate /7€ — EIE/% 3.10% - 203,482 741,962 - 945,444 900,000
Bank borrowings - variable rate $/TfEE — F 2% 0.77% 382,768 959,825 - - 1,342,593 1,338,807
Bonds payable &5 4,00% 721 121 3,807,147 - 4,040,601 3,815,623

Long term payables & EJfE(T308 2.21% - - 196,918 - 196,918 172,044

7,233,693 1,980,586 4,836,027

14,050,306 13,751,314

Lease liabilities EE5E 4.80% 15,259 37,188 99,322 23,485 175,254 154,270

Derivative financial liabilities - net sttled
fTALRAE - FELE

Foreign currency options contracts SNEZER 4) 4,087 - - - 4,087 4,087
Foreign currency forward contracts ZEMEA4) 5,016 31,248 5,057 - 41,321 41,321
Foreign exchange swap contracts JNE#HA4) - 95 - - 95 95
Total &% 7,258,055 2,049,117 4,940,406 23,485 14,271,063 13,951,087
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. ¥AEREEEERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & Rk (8)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THBEL K (&)

Weighted
average | On demand Total
effective or less than 3 months 1year to Syearsto | undiscounted Carrying
interest rate to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount

]
=fERR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETR | ARBTR | ARETR | ARMTR | ARETR

ERE-% | -%2RF | ILFETF | ARHRER KA

As at 81 December 2000 ¥ = E =5 +=FA=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 74 £REE

Trade and other payables 5 k& (508 7,008,065 1,188,167 - - 8,196,232 8,196,232
Amounts due to related parties fEfF B A L7108 5,560 1436 - - 6,996 6,996
Bank borrowings - fixed rate ${7(E S — EEF|= 2.96% 24611 1,120,635 - - 1,145,246 1,124,500
Bank borrowings - variable rate /7 — W& FE 0.95% - 950,025 - - 950,025 946,111
Bonds payable &% 4,00% 73,405 73405 4,135,155 - 481985 3,895,888
Long term payables & 5131 2.27% - - 257,117 - 257,117 245,636

7,111,641 3333668 4,392,272 - 14837581 14415363
Lease liabilities &8 4.80% 12,329 36,758 83,745 23,119 155,951 140479

Derivative financial liabilities - net settled
fTALREE - FELE

Foreign currency options contracts SNEZER 4) 11,034 87,420 - - 98,454 96,805
Foreign currency forward contracts & EI5NEA 4) 3,562 1569 5,136 - 10267 9,865
Total 4 7,138,566 3,459,415 4,481,153 23,119 15102253 14,662,512
The amounts included above for variable interest rate ] A A2 ) =R B ) B 7 2R 45 B R 7B E 9 B =K
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject EtENE @ Bl L ETE SR B ER A
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from BNETESBELEEE -

the estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)
B EREE B ERBER (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in Note 30, several of the Group’s LIBOR bank
borrowings will be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators. The Group anticipates that the interest rate
benchmark reform will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the future.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all LIBOR
settings will either cease to be provided by any administrator
or no longer be representative:

e immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of all

sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen settings, and
the 1-week and 2-month US dollar settings; and

e immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the
remaining US dollar settings.
Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without detailed
fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s
counterparties are not successfully concluded before the
cessation of LIBORs, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to
additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continueqd)

Interest rate related risks (Continued)

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at
the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit
spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically
risk-free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will
result in additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which
are typically published on overnight basis will require additional
liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk management
policy has been updated to ensure sufficient liquid resources
to accommodate unexpected increases in overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate
benchmark reform on contracts which have not been
transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark rates (e.g.
arising from differing interpretation of existing fallback terms),
there is a risk of prolonged disputes with counterparties which
could give rise to additional legal and other costs. The Group
is working closely with all counterparties to avoid this from
occurring.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continueqd)

Interest rate basis risk

Interest rate basis risk may arise if a non-derivative instrument
and the derivative instrument held to manage the interest
risk on the non-derivative instrument transition to alternative
benchmark rates at different times. This risk may also arise
where back-to-back derivatives transition at different times.
The Group will monitor this risk against its risk management
policy which has been updated to allow for temporary
mismatches of up to 12 months and transact additional
basis interest rate swaps if required. The Group anticipates
it will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the future.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

@6\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)
c. ®RMIAMARMEHE (H)

c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

EREUEEENNABEFENEAEH
TREENEBABNAAE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value Valuation technique
Fair value as at

RUTRBHALE

Financial assets/liabilities

tREE/ R

hierarchy

MESR

and key inputs
HEERIEEALE

Financial assets at fair value through Listed debt instruments: Listed debt instruments: Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
profit or loss RMB38,841,000 RMBT72,884,000
BARBIA RGNS HER FHERIA: IR IA: 1 RN RE
AR38,841,0007C ARE72,884,0007C
Financial assets at fair value through Funds investments: Funds investments: Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or loss RMB283,132,000 RMB282,711,000
Key inputs:
Future cash flows are estimated based on
expected return
BAREIARRNEHER £ER%: EERE E=8 ERRENE
ARE283,132,0007 AR%282,711,0007
TEBANE:
REBSESHEHARRLRE
Foreign currency forward contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current derivative financial ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flows
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB27,120,000 assets: RMB17,657,000
assets and liabilities Key inputs:
Current and non-current Current and non-current (1) Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
derivative financial derivative financial risk of the banks
liabilities: RMB41,321,000 liabilities: RMB9,865,000 (2)  Observable forward exchange rate
PERITESHEER AR REBTEEHAE - TETESREE : EZ8 FRRenE
EEINESH AR¥%27,120,0007 AR¥%17,657,0007C
TERATE:

31 December 2021

NEIE e U
AE41,321,0007

31 December 2020
“R-RFT-A=T-H

RORFRDITLERAR:

AR¥9,865,00070

() REETEERRHERE
0 TREESES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TRITEMDAAREE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial REEUEEU AR B ENAEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis TREENESBREBENAAE (B)

(Continued)

Fair value Valuation technique

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs

EREE/ B RUTEANLAE MESR HEERIERALE

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ZE--F+ZA=1-B | Z2-B5+-A=1-A

Foreign exchange swap contracts Current derivative financial ~ N/A Level 2 Discounted cash flows
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB117,000
assets and liabilities Key inputs:
Current derivative financial (1) Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
liabilities: RMB95,000 risk of the banks
(2)  Observable forward exchange rate
ARRITEEHEERARM RETEEHAE - el £R ¥EREhE
SNERHAH AE%117,0007
IZRAEE
RETEERALR - () RBETEERRNERE
ARE95,0007 0 TEREHEX
Financial assets at fair value through Unlisted financial products:  Unlisted financial products: ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or oss RMB7,992,170,000 RMBS, 197,475,000

Key inputs are:

(1) Expected yields of debt instruments
invested by banks

(2)  Adiscount rate that reflects the credit

risk of the banks
BAREHARRNERERE FImeREn FEMERER £ FRRens
ARE7,992,170,00070 AR8,197,475,0007
TERAEE

(1) BAREREIAMBESRS
0 RESROEERRMERE

@8\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T E (&)

==
=]

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. EMTANAARERE (&)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial EREMEEN AR BEFENAS
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis TREENESREBENAAE (B&)
(Continued)
Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs
SHEE /86 RUTBENARE MEZR REEREEAAAE
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
£+ZA=t-H
Foreign currency options contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current derivative financial ~ Level 3 Black-scholes model
classified as derivatives financial liabilities: RMB4,087,000 assets: RMB3,650,000
assets and liabilities Key unobservable inputs:
Current derivative financial Volatility of the foreign exchange rate (Note a)
liabilities: RMB96,305,000
PERITESREER AR RETEERAL - RETESREE : £=8 Bns - HREE
SNESERD AR%4,087,0007 AKE#3,650,00070
FTEATBRBARE -
TETESRALR X% (Hizta)
AE#96,805,0007C
Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level Market approach

FVTOCI: RMB53,520,000 FVTOCI: RMB12,671,000
Key unobservable inputs:

Equity investments at FVTPL:  Equity investments at FVTPL:; (1) Revenue growth rate;
RMB19,518,000 RMB133,352,000 (2)  P/S multiples of selected comparable
companies (Note b)
EETRERE BARETARM2RE BAREHARDEE E=4 5%
WamgsTa: YR TR
AR¥53,520,0007 AR¥12,671,0007 IBFUERBANE
(1) WAERE:
BAREHABREHN AR B AR (2 BTTARRARNTHERES (M)
iERE RERE -
AR19,518,0007 AR%133,352,0007
Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level 3 Backsolve from recent transaction price
FVTOCI: RMBG67,331,000 FVTOCI: RMB44,926,000
EETRERE BARETARB2RE BALEGARMEE E=H R 5 E AR
WaEmERTE YsERTA :
AR#67,331,0007C AR#44,926,0007T

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €&l T & (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. EMITANAAREFE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial RIEEHEREEN AR B ENAEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis @?ﬂﬁ%&@%ﬂg%m@ LB (48)

(Continued)

Fair value Valuation technique

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs

EREE/ B RUTEANLAE MESR HEERIERALE

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
:g:_¢+:HE+_H —7—7¢+ H -I- E

Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level Income approach
FVTOCI: RMB57,911,000 FVTOCI: RMB77,012,000

Key unobservable inputs:

(1) Long term revenue growth rates,
taking into account of management's
experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industry;

(2)  Weighted average cost of capital

(Note ¢)
FEmRERE BAREFALMRE BAREFALGZE E=R WA
REMESRTA WaMERTE
AR%57,911,0007 AR¥77,012,0007 IBFTBRBARE
(1) REWAERE GEREEEMLR
REEAFTRNAS
Q) METGERRA (M)
Note a: The higher the volatility of the foreign exchange rate, the Mitta : EXAKE @ AAE~ZS °
higher the fair value.
Note b: The higher the revenue growth rate, the higher the fair value. Miztb: WMAREXRAS @  ARERS ° mil
The higher the P/S multiples, the higher the fair value. REHAE  ARERS °
Note c: The higher the long-term revenue growth rate, the higher the Hirc: RHRAEEXRAS  AREAS
fair value; the higher the weighted average cost of capital, IEFHEARKARDS » ARERE -
the lower the fair value.
There is no transfer among level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FRNFE— - —HEFE =L 72BN EETS o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets

Foreign
currency
options
contracts

SNE
AR
RMB’000

ARBETT

c. TRMTANDAEE (H)

TREENE =R DA EFENYER

FVTOCI
BAREA
Hin 2 E Wz

RMB’000
ARETIT

FVTPL
BRARE
SFARS
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARETT

At 1 January 2020 R=Z=FF—H—H 3,177 112,183 100,579 215,939
Total (losses) gains (E518) Wzs 4258 (93,155) 22,326 32,773 (38,056)

—in profit or loss — RE= (93,155) - 32,773 (60,382)

— in other comprehensive expense

— REMEERFX - 22,326 - 22,326
Purchases f# & - 100 - 100
Settlements & & (3,177) - = (3,177)
At 31 December 2020 A —ZE-_FF+_-_HA=+—H (93,155) 134,609 133,352 174,806
At 1 January 2021 R=Z=—F—H—H (93,155) 134,609 133,352 174,806
Total gains (losses) Yz (E18) 4258 89,068 3,304 (8,151) 84,221

— in profit or loss — R zE 89,068 - (8,151) 80,917

— in other comprehensive income

— REM 2 E R - 3,304 - 3,304
Purchases f# & - 40,849 20 40,869
Settlements & & - - (31,062) (31,062)
Reclassification E# 5 48 - - (74,641) (74,641)
At 31 December 2021 A =—ZE-—F+=-F=+—H (4,087) 178,762 19,518 194,193

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

37.COMMITMENTS 37. 7RI

31/12/2021

—F-—-F TF

+t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=t—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREBEFT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

BERIMERNRA M BRI EERNEEUEY X -

e R RIBNERFX 684,402 356,008
38. OPERATING LEASES B EEHE
The Group as lessor KEFESLHEAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with RE|EHR - XEEE 5 TR RKIEME

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: E TR ELEF AGTAY

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—EB-—F —EFF

+=ZBA=+—-B8| t=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Within one year —F A 1,942 1,942

In the second 8 —4F 1,611 1,186

In the third year =4 1,360 1,199

In the fourth year 25 P04 1,357 1,225

In the fifth year 28 H 4 837 1,225

After five years T4 LATE - 2,239

7,107 9,016
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Retirement benefit scheme contribution made during the year
F AR IRRE N ET SR

9. 3R /K48 A 5T &I

2021 2020
—E_—F

—E-FTF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

320,088 219,621

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000 for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. For employees who are members of the MPF Scheme,
the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
subject to a maximum of approximately RMB1,226 (equivalent
to HKD1,500) per employee per month, which contribution is
matched by the employee.

AEETENBARNERD 2 MK
FEENBEREEEMRENGTE - ZFMH
BARABHEKRAE LS ER D LAR
TR RERERFT B HER - REERZ
BB OE—BEERFAZEEL

FERRHEN ©

AEBTABERESM_STZTF+ -
AR5 58 Bl 1 A1 & 5T & R I 5 32 AY 52 I
~ETEE ((REEFE]) - RESFE
MEEBYNAKEEE  FHRNARG
AEENES - ARERS RBEEE
Pk B 01 8 2 \RE% & A6 % [Ala% &1 8l
F LRABASREENHARK1,2267T
(HFMN1,50087T) - MES NS EHEEH

f
N
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 0. BMETHELENESEHIER
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

TRAAGEREEDEENRELBF
B BREASLIRNCEY  WEBTHE
ENREENRRERELAT KRS RERN
AEEGARERERRIBARERD
BenEmas-

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both the cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

Bank Interest Bonds Dividend Lease Other
borrowings payable payable payables liabilities payables
(Note 30) (Note 28) (Note 33) (Note 31)
#i7fe EfHE EfiE% EfRE HEER | AfEATE
(Hz£30) (Hzz28) (Hz£33) (HzE31)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL | ARETR | ARETRL | ARETL | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R=2-%%-A-H 1,118,572 69,744 4,156,074 - 160,606 - 5,504,996
Financing cash flows BER 2172 1,016,745 (224,439) - (796,458) (45,065) (161,397) (200,614)
New leases entered 311 231/ & - - - - 21,714 - 27,114
Termination of leases 4 | - - - - (2,776) - (2,776)
Interests on lease liabilities 7 & E & = 7,563 = - - - 7,563
Interests on bank borrowings $7fE &F5 - 54,737 - - - - 54,737
Interests on bonds payable FEfT B S = 185,115 9,167 - = = 164,282
Interests on long term payables & EERZUAIE = 7,158 = - - - 7,158
Foreign exchange translation SMA& (64,706 (4,000 (269,353) - - - (338,059)
Dividends recognised as distribution BZAME 2k - - - 796,458 - - 796,458
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERR R 2EER L - - - - - 151,397 151,397
At 31 December 2020 R=E-E4+-f=1—H 2,070,611 65,878 3,895,388 - 140,479 - 6,172,856
At 1 January 2021 R=2-—%-F—H 2,070,611 65,878 3,895,888 - 140,479 - 6,172,856
Financing cash flows B& R £ 72 203,285 (222,125) - (987,038) (48,981) (212,183)  (1,267,042)
New leases entered 3112 51 E - - - - 67,909 - 67,009
Termination of leases 4 |- & - - - - (5,137) - (5,137)
Interests on lease liabilties FE & EF & - 7,589 - - - - 7,589
Interests on bank borrowings S {7E EFE - 62,490 - - - - 62,490
Interests on bonds payable T E7S - 145,052 8,918 = - - 153,970
Interests on long term payables & S/ERZUERIE - 6,203 - - - - 6,203
Foreign exchange translation M5 & (34,099) (614) (89,183) - - - (124,796)
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 A2 2 1k & - - - 987,038 - - 987,038
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERAERHARERD - - - - - 212,183 212,183
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—%+-f=1-H 2,238,807 64,473 3,815,623 - 154,210 - 6,213,263
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEEALRS
(a) Names and relationships with related parties (@ FRNBAEATEBREREA
during the years are as follows: THBEMT :
Name Principal activities Relationship
£8 TEEK BE
kMRS B EEERAA Manufacture and sale of parts Company controlled by a close family member
(‘REXB for optical instruments of the Company’s chairman, Mr. Ye Liaoning
Bk mRENBEREBA HEREELSERIH AAREFERESRERBAEHIH QA
([REXE])
BETmaREERESERAR(‘RE")  Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
BEmaRBERES2ERAR ([#E]) HEESTRE of Company’s senior management,

Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARARREBAEREE R EORAEHINLNR

HkmERZ AR DA (“‘ER) Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
SgmENEZBRAR ([HR]) HEBETHRME of Company’s senior management,
Mr. Zhang Guoxian
AR RREEABREE S AT RATEHH R

BUMREEEERCEH(EEE) Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
BUmREZEERLEN ((REE)) HEETRIE of Company’s senior management,

Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARARRERABREE L AT RATEHN A

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

41, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEEALRS ()
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties: (b) HEAEALRS :

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Sales of goods $HE&EE M
HEND RENB 3,977 4,038

Purchase of raw materials i B R4 %

BB SpE B 12,005 11,711
TR bR 468 421
BE BE 1,974 2,696
FREE REE 1,965 1,932

16,412 16,760

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has (c) REREHR > XEFHEBEEA
the following significant balances with related THEKREHUT :
parties:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E_—fF —T-FF

—= ==

t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMBETTT

Current asset: MBI EE :
Amount due from a related party FEU —& REiE A + 7B
TREALER TR B BB 327 -
Current liabilities: B A& :
Amounts due to related parties FE{ BiiE A+ FUE

BN E pRE A 4,848 5,354
B B 1,069 722
REE REE 843 744
mE WE 174 176
6,934 6,996
All of the above amounts are of trade nature, unsecured, BN FEEHAEZEFHE - EIE
interest free and repayable on demand. £ B2 BERENEESE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021#(2 — £ ——

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has
the following significant balances with related
parties: (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of related parties balance of
trade nature at the end of reporting period.

Current asset: RENEE :

Fa= by E S ES:

Ft_H=+—HIFFE

HEBEALIRE (&)

() RBEHR - AEEREAEA
THEXREROT - (&)

BEHAKR FRESEENREE
j: EERAREC DATINT -

31/12/2021
—E-—F
t=HA=+—H

31/12/2020
—ECFF
+=HA=+—8
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Within 90 days 90K A 327 -

Current liabilities: REIE (& :
Within 90 days 90K A 4,481 5,561
91-120 days 91120k 2,453 1,435
6,934 6,996

The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to related party
trade receivables (2020: 90 days). The average credit period
on purchases of goods from related parties is 90 days (2020:
90 days).

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the year is as

follows:

AREBRTHEALTE S EWFIEI
AOEEH(ZZ=FF : 90K) ° &
BHAEATEGNTAEEHRRIOXR
ZE-FF 1 Q0K) °

(d) TEEEABHM

FR - EEEEABHHMAT :

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—B-—fF —ETHF

+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits 58 Hi{E & 18 F| 23,480 21,665
Share award scheme f% 17 #2E &t 2| 26,050 27,156
Post-employment benefits BB 1% 1= 7 912 795
50,442 49,616

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME 42. iRt R B =t 8l

The Company adopted The Sunny Optical Technology (Group)
Company Limited Restricted Share Award Scheme (the
“Restricted Share Award Scheme”) on 22 March 2010
(“Adoption Date”) with a duration of 10 years commencing
from the Adoption Date. The objective of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to provide the selected participants including
directors of the Company, employees, agents or consultants of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Selected Participants”)
with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Company; to encourage and retain such individuals to work with
the Group; and to provide additional incentive for them to achieve
performance goals, with a view to achieving the objectives of
increasing the value of the Company and aligning the interests
of the Selected Participants directly to be the owners of the
Company through ownership of shares. The Group has set up The
Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted
Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Trust”) to administrate and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and transferred
to Selected Participants. Upon granting of shares to Selected
Participants, the Trust purchases the Company’s shares being
awarded from the open market with funds provided by the
Company by way of contributions. Restricted Shares granted
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme are subject to a vesting
scale in tranches of one-third to one-fifth each (as the case may
be) on every anniversary date of the grant date starting from the
first anniversary date until the third to the fifth anniversary (as
the case may be). The vested shares are transferred to Selected
Participants at no cost except that the expenses attributable or
payable in respect of the transfer of such shares of the Company
shall be borne by the Selected Participants.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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HERK(BREARAES - EE - A7
REMBARMNREXRER) ([HR2H
E])—EABEARRMBE A RS
SEREBERAEETENENAL R
BIMEBIREFECERXEBR - AER
RAARGEE  XEEBHEERND - £
FESEENERERARARRNESEE
EHANBERE - AKBECKUZTAER
& (&) BRARIR MR BT &=
A(EEDANEERFEARTRNES
BOGBERERETRHESEE - ERFE
SEEFHBENE  EREARMSELE
ERTFTREZARRRD - A HARFIA
ERTAREHRES - RERGIMERD ZE
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BFEEHE  SEBFAIUBEBE=22
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MEEEERETIHE //\% MR E2EE
AEREERARRZERND BHEXEND
FAST



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

?.v'?\Aﬁﬂ TR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The grant of Restricted Shares is subject to acceptance by the
Selected Participants. The Restricted Shares granted to but not
accepted by the Selected Participants shall become unaccepted
shares. The Trustee may use any remainder of cash and non-cash
income received by the Trust in respect of the shares held upon
trust to purchase additional shares after defraying all expenses
incurred by the Trust prior to the purchase of additional shares.
The selected participants have no rights to receive dividend
income and cannot exercise any voting rights in respect of the
Restricted Shares granted to them during the vesting period. The
Trust shall hold the additional shares, unaccepted shares and
unvested shares upon trust and may make any grant to existing
or new Selected Participants after receiving instructions from
the Administration Committee of the Group. The fair value of the
Restricted Shares awarded was determined based on the market
value of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the
original Restricted Share Award Scheme dated 22 March 2010,
the directors of the Company resolved to change (i) the vesting
period under the Restricted Share Award Scheme from three to
five years to two to five years; and (ii) the circumstances when the
Company’s shares would lapse, with immediate effect. The details
of the amendments have been disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 26 May 2015. The directors of the Company
considered that the above amendments have had no material
impact on the recognition and measurement of those shares
granted before 26 May 2015.

On 16 March 2020, the Board of Directors resolved to amend
the existing Scheme Rules and adopted the further amended and
restated Scheme Rules with effect from 22 March 2020 to extend
the share award scheme period for ten years. Under the further
amended and restated Scheme Rules, the Scheme shall (unless
previously terminated by a resolution of the Board of Directors)
terminate on the revised expiry date, being 21 March 2030.

4. [ R R a8 (&)

\

BB BIMER G BEFFESEEREMN ]
EE - R TIFELEE BT EE MR Hl
MR BT EEMRGD - XFEEATBAE
R AME RE 7 255 B A9 AR 10 AT WER & (1]
ReRIBSWARBEEREINRGD &
FHEBEBENROAIEE XM EENAME
FSZ o 73 2 2R I A AR B B
ﬂ’ﬁxﬁﬁﬁ%%WMﬁﬁﬁF%m@
Il 14 AR (0 1T {58 (AT 4% 24 o E.:%ELM
FRBFHBEINGGD - TEEMRG R
Bt WEAEEETEZESHIER N
MBI FE2EERBZERD -
1E RSB RI PR HI AR (D B A R BIR AN A A
BN FE BN mEERE

HE-_Z—AF+_-_A=+—HItFE "
BREBPR_Z-—TF=A_+-HNHR
E@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%’ﬁ”ﬂ%%%
RAEET (i) BR I ME AR 17 BB 5t B TE T 2 57 8
B B=2hFE8F A _ZRF ; K(i)AN
RNEIRM KRB ZER - BREER - BB
ANEERARGIBAA-ZS—HAFH
AZ+RAZAERER - AAAEER
A EMERTHZER_ZT—AF A A
TN HATEHRRR D ER R AT ENE
BATE -

R-ZBE-_ZTF=ZA+/XA EFEZRE
FIRBRTERA ]ITKZW?& E**H/ Hl
kBIZFERA BT _FTF=H
T BERAR - AR REEFE A
RER+F - RELE-HBITREINNZ
EIRA - SAEEELETT EmBEH (=
ZE=ZF=A+—B)RIL(RIFELES
ERBRIEAAL) -

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42 BR{p 8 Est2 (&)

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and EEHRHMERNDOEE REREBARE
related fair value are as follows: REE T :

Weighted Number of
average Restricted
fair value Shares
(per share) granted
(ZR) nfE B HRFIE
TN RE B8 E
HKD (’000)

BT (F)

At 1 January 2020 R=ZE=_ZFF—H—H 124.122 2,925

Forfeited B K48 123.296 (112)

Vested 252 B 108.560 (1,488)

Granted (Note a) B H (Fizta) 130.711 1,458

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

RZE_TF+_A=+—HBR=ZT=_—F—HA—H 135.931 2,783

Forfeited 2 %5 149.642 (119)

Vested 253 B 115.035 (1,638)

Granted (Note b) E.# i (FizED) 200.720 1,460

At 31 December 2021 A —ZE-—F+-A=+—H 187.090 2,486

Notes: B5E -

(a) The Restricted Shares granted in 2020 vest on every anniversary date (a) RZZF_Z=FERLBRHERDRSHE
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on FlIEROTLE BN EREAS BRI TR
the following scales: BoHE -

Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales REMRG (BR) ARE RE
HKD BT

845,947 shares 122.500 One-half 845,947 fix 122.500 b

27,595 shares 126.800 One-half 27,595 % 126.800 —nZ—

233,868 shares 126.800 One-third 233,868 126.800 =2

351,181 shares 153.400 One-half 351,181 1% 1568.400 =R
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?.v'?\AEﬂ TR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42. R 8&Est2 (&)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (&)

(o) The Restricted Shares granted in 2021 vest on every anniversary date b) RA=ZZE=—FERHRHIERDR SRR
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on FlEROTELE BN EREAS BRI TR
the following scales: BoO#EE
Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales [REIEREG (BR)AAE KRE

HKD BT
884,979 shares 180.30 One-half 884,979% 180.30 D2
28,900 shares 236.60 One-half 28,900/% 236.60 D2
158,524 shares 236.60 One-third 158,524 % 236.60 =92Z—
387,525 shares 230.00 One-half 387,525% 230.00 —DZ—

The fair value of Restricted Shares granted is measured on the ERERHEMERD AR ETHER A B

basis of an observable market price. WS ERETE °

The following table discloses details of the shares granted under TREBEAEEES (BFEARRESE)

Restricted Shares held by employees (including the Directors of BFERNRIBRGIERDE R LG HERS

the Company) of the Group and movements in such holdings N ERNZERDEBHFFE

during the year:

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at
1.1.2021 the year the year the year 31.12.2021
R=B=—-F R=B=—-%

—RA—H +=H=t—H
ok 3 RERRH RERKR REREE M &R
’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
TR TR R TR TR

Shares fxfn 2,783 1,460 (119) (1,638) 2,486

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020
R-ZT_ZF RIT_TF

—HA—H +=—A=+—H

VR RNERFHE RERKK RNERRB MR 8%

‘000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000

Fh T T Th Th

Shares & fn 2,925 1,458 (112) (1,488) 2,783

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42 BR{p 8 Est2 (&)

Details of the shares held by the Directors of the Company EEXRBARBESFRNDNFED
included in the above table are as follows: T

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2021 the year the year the year 31.12.2021

R-B=—-F R=B=—-F

—H—H +=A=+—H

YA ER RERTRE RERKK RERGE YA ER

’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

TR e TR TR T iR

Shares &7 180 25 - (101) 104

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020

R-E_ZF R-_B_TF

~A—8 +=A=+—F

H) A& R REREH RERKK RENEGS ) A& R

'000 ‘000 '000
F A% F % TR

Shares %17 253 88 - (108) 180

The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit or HEZT-_—F+-HA=T—HLFE
loss was RMB188,278,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 REZMNBNEREE RO I FE
(2020: RMB151,811,000). A ARE188,278,000 T (ZT-T4HF : A

ER#151,811,0007T) °
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELRAER

Sun Yu Optical Technology Limited
RFAERBARAT

Sun Xiang Optical Overseas Limited

AEABEERAT

Sun Li Instrument Overseas Limited

RNERENERAR

Summit Optics Technology Limited
Summit Optics Technology Limited

Summit Optics Investment Limited
Summit Optics Investment Limited

Sunny Optical Overseas Limited

REREENERAT

Sunny Instruments Overseas Limited

RTEREMERAT

Summit Optical Technology Limited
Summit Optical Technology Limited

Summit Optical Investment Limited
Summit Optical Investment Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/
EMbE EEE

The British Virgin
Islands (“The BVI)

ABRIEE
)¢ 0)

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

Hong Kong
Eh

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
&E

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAZRE/
ERER

Ordinary shares
USD100,000
L@ 100,000

QOrdinary shares USD10

EARI0ET

QOrdinary shares USD10
EAR10ET

QOrdinary share USD1
LERIET

QOrdinary share USD1
LERIEL

QOrdinary shares USD10
LARI0ET

QOrdinary shares USD10
LARI0ET

QOrdinary share HKD1
LTERIBT

QOrdinary share HKD1
LTERIBT

43, fff B X A 515

BREBEHAN  ARBR_F_—FR =
ToEFE+ A=t HEERENNEB
NEFHBWAT :

Attributable
equity interest

held by the Group Principal activities

FREEENEEER

2021 2020
ZE--F CZE3C%F

IRER

100% 100%
(directly held)
(E#EA)

Investment holding
RERR

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RIS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAIN  ARBR_FE_—FR -
E_EFEt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFBEWT (&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration/ paid up share capital/

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Principal activities

WELALR

RYEY
EMHbE B

BRORMRRE/
EfEx

2021

—E--F

FRERENEGRR

2020
“Z-%F

IRER

* Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* IRFAEERAT il contributed capital optical components
RMB430,000,000 EERHERETH
R ESRA
AK# 430,000,000
* Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
F ERRFERERAT i contributed capital optical instruments
RMBS82,500,000 LERBERPES
R EARA
AK 82,500,000
* Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* RFRE (R BRAR i contributed capital optical components
USD14,990,000 TERBERETH
R EARA
14,990,000% 7T
* Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
F ERRFAEEEARAA i contributed capital optoelectronics products

USD38,831,600
atft REHEA
38,831,600 T

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_
E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFEWT  (8&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up share capital/

operation registered capital Principal activities
BERTRARRE/

HMER

Name of subsidiary

Rk /

MWELALR TEXR

#Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd.
PERRTEIBRITERAA

#Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
EERTREERAR

#Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd.

SRR FIARAT

Sunny Opotech Korea Co., Ltd.
REREREIBRAA

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Korea
SEE

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000,000

R ESRA
ARH5,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB100,000,000

R E SR
AR 100,000,007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB11,481,481

R E SR
ARE11,481,4817C

Ordinary shares
KRW108,000,000
T%17108,000,0008 T

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER

2021 2020
B _T-TE
100% 100%
100% 100%
68.10% 68.10%
100% 100%

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERPEN

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERPEN

Research and development
of infrared technologies
HEA ML

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREXEER

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RIS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAIN  ARBR_FE_—FR -
E_EFEt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFBEWT (&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up share capital/

operation registered capital Principal activities
BERTRAERE/

HMER

Name of subsidiary

RYEY
EMHbE B

WELALR IRER

Sunny Korea Co., Ltd.
RTHEAGR LA

Sunny Japan Co., Ltd.
RTARKARH

Sunny Opotech North America Inc

REAERR (42 BRAT

Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited
Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited

# Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision Optics
Co., Ltd.
P HERTERREAEERAA

Korea
£EE

Japan

AR

The United States
X8

The BVI

EXES

The PRC
hE

Ordinary shares
KRW3,080,880,000
£38A%3,080,880,00082

Registered and
contributed capital
JPY99,000,000

MR EARA
99,000,000E 7

Common stock
USD952,731
EER952,731% T

Ordinary shares USD10
EERI0ET

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB25,000,000

i REHHRA
AR 25,000,000

€96\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER
2021 2020
B _T-TE
70.15% 70.15%
57.89% 57.89%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERBEN

Trading of optical
instruments and
optoelectronics products

BEXERERNEED

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREAEED

Investment holding

RERKR

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
EERHEERSTH
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTFET_A=+—HHEERENHE
(Continued): RAEFBOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRAERE/
WEAREH TRER rREGENELRSE | TEER
2021 2020
ZB--% _ZT_TF
#Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
R F R RRERAA i contributed capital optical instruments
RMB20,000,000 HERFER2ES
it REZRA
AR#20,000,0007C
#Sunny Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Investment holdings and
RFEEARAT] i contributed capital property leasing
RMB115,782,000 REBREMEAE
i REHRA
ARH115,782,0007C
#Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital optoelectronics products
PIATREABRMERAA RMB25,000,000 HERFEAEER
i REZRA
AR#25,000,0007C
#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunyi The PRC Registered and 100% 51.00%  Investment holdings
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note a) m contributed capital RERR
FERBILRTERRBREER RMB2,000,000
BRAT (fita) it REZRA
AR#2,000,0007T

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it B X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRMERE/
WEAREH HMnE EE ERER FRERENELRESE | TEER
2021 2020
ZB--§ _Z_TF
#Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research Institute The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide development,
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital service and consultation
PRTRE(ND AR ARAR RMBS50,000,000 of technology
it REHRA RERMFE « R REH
ARH50,000,0007C
#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunxin The PRC Registered and 52.00% 51.02%  Investment holdings
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ~ #&l contributed capital RAER
(Note a) RMB3,000,000
PERBIRHBRAEBREEEAMAE R ERRA
(BRa%) (Wita) AR #3,000,0007T
*Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide optical technology
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital service
PRI AT R BRMERAA RMB20,000,000 At BRI
it REHRA
AR#20,000,0007C
*Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provision of financing
MR TER EERER AR i contributed capital service
RMB200,000,000 Rt S RRE
it REHRA
AR#200,000,0007

€98\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows

(Continued):

Name of subsidiary

MWELALR

Sunny Optics Vina Co., Ltd.
REGERERRAH

Sunny Optics Vina Hanoi Co., Ltd.

RTBEAEERAR

Sunny Optics Europe GmbH
REBN K EBRAF

Sunny Automotive Vina Co., Ltd.
RTHREHLEERAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

Rk /

Vietnam

il

Vietnam

i

German
(et

Vietnam

i

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAERE/
TRER

Registered and
contributed capital
USD150,000

R ESRA
150,000

Registered and
contributed capital
USD100,000

H M RESRR
100,000 7T

Registered and
contributed capital
EUR 500,000

R EARA
500,0008 70

Registered and
contributed capital
USD3,000,000

Mt R ELRA
3,000,000%7T

43. fif BB 2 Bl =F 15 (AR

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_
E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFEWT  (8&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER

2021 2020
B _T-TE
70.15% 70.15%
70.15% 70.15%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TEXR

Sale of optoelectronics
components
HEXERH

Sale of optical components
HEXBTH

Sale of optical components
HEXBTH

Manufacture and sale of
optical components

TERHERSZN

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it B X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRMERE/
WEAREH HMnE EE ERER FRERENELRESE | TEER
2021 2020
B _T-TE
Sunny Opotech Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
RENEUHERAT] il contributed capital optical components
USD3,000,000 EERHERSTHY
R ESRA
3,000,000% 7
Sunny Opotech India Private Limited India Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
REYEEEHERBAT fE contributed capital optoelectronics
INR183,701,000 components
R EARA EERHEXETH

183,701,000 EE L

#Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 68.67% 68.67%  Sales and development of
R RIERETER AR i contributed capital optoelectronics products
RMB29,509,710 HERFEAEER
it REHRA
ARH29,500,7107
#Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Technologies The PRC Registered and 68.67% 68.67%  Sales and development of
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital optoelectronics products
PIRTERRMARAR RMBT73,514,500 RERREXEER
it REHRA
ARE73,514,5007
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows

(Continued):

Name of subsidiary

MWELALR

# Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing
Technology Co., Ltd.
' LEAREHERBNERAR

#Sunny OmniLight Technology Co., Ltd.
PERAFRRBMARAR

#Ningbo Yuanheng Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd.
PERTERERERERAA

#Sunny OmniLight Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (Note b)
PRTERFERAEE (L8) ARAA (Hb)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

Rk /

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAERE/
TRER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

R ESRA
ARH10,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB130,680,000

R E SR
AR 130,680,000

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB1,000,000

R ESRA
ARH1,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB100,000,000

R ESRA
AR 100,000,007

43. fif BB 2 Bl =F 15 (AR

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_

E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE

NEFEWT  (8&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
rRERENELRS

2021 2020
B _T-TE

68.67% 68.67%

93.39%

93.39%

100% 100%

93.39% N/A
TER

Principal activities

TEXR

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREXEED

Sales and development of
optical products
HERFERPER

Import and export agent

il

Research and development
of semiconductor
technologies

kst
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== =
43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. I A Bl w15 ()
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
RAIMY / ERTRARRAK/
WRARAH S SEH TfEA TEEBENELER | TEER
2021 2020
“Ro-F ZEITR
¥ Zhejiang Sunnyverse Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 80% N/A  Manufacture and sale of
(Note b) il contributed capital TEH optical components
NIRARBERAE (Wib) RMB100,000,000 EERBENEER
R RESRA
AR #100,000,0007T
*  companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises * ZREDRRABRINEELE
# companies are domestic invested enterprises # RELRIRBANERZE
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end REZMER + M B R R EETEMERS
of both years. FEH o
Notes: B s -
(@ The Group has acquired additional equity interest from NCI () AEBECHNCIIRRE AZBINEHE - LA R
shareholders to enhance the Group’s control over the equity REBE L EITEREIZRE RS

investments in optoelectronic industry.

(b) These subsidiaries were newly established in 2021 for further business b) ZEMBRARIN T —FHMKIL * LA
development in the optical related industries. —SHBNEREETENEBER -
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44, XN BB ER

COMPANY
EEREE

Assets and Liabilities

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JE7 B & &
Financial assets at FVTPL

31/12/2021
—E-—F
t=A=+—H

RMB’000
AR®TR

31/12/2020
—E-THF
+=—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARBT T

BRAREFABSENEHEE - 72,884
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BRARBEFAEMEEKEN SR EE 32,348 =
Interests in subsidiaries, unlisted 3E_E T B A Ak 253,850 253,850
Amounts due from subsidiaries JF& Y4BT B A 7518 2,175,029 1,797,607
Loans to subsidiaries {/&E R al B 2,716,811 2,837,773
5,178,038 4,962,114
CURRENT ASSETS @&
Other receivables and prepayment Hfth f& I FR I8 K F8 15 208 3,124 709
Amounts due from subsidiaries F&U i & A 7718 820,591 560,018
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAREFABENEREE 321,973 282,711
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1ZE K At ENEHE T A - 52,823
Banks balances and cash $R1T458 kIR & 14,723 153,057
1,160,411 1,049,318
CURRENT LIABILITIES JREh& &
Short term borrowings 52 Bi{& & 1,147,626 750,364
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE1I KB A 77 IE 17,083 17,715
Other payables E 1 &1 5K 18 73,165 65,330
1,237,874 833,409
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS #i®) (& 18) E&EF 5 (77,463) 215,909
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & & ER BB & 5,100,575 5,178,023
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY JEREN & &
Bonds payable fE{J{E#H 3,815,623 3,895,888
3,815,623 3,895,888
NET ASSETS & & /FE 1,284,952 1,282,135
CAPITAL AND RESERVES & 7N % 5
Share capital A&7 105,163 105,163
Reserves f# & 1,179,789 1,176,972
TOTAL EQUITY #Ez54E %58 1,284,952 1,282,135

2)

BT RBRE (RE)ARAF « 2021 £% ;303



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 4K NE)EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves k]

Shares held Share
under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total

RERR 2B

ki Gt BE B it RERR 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL | ARBTR | ARMTR | ARBTR | ARETR| ARETR

(Note)
(i)
The Company A2 7
At 1 January 2020 R=E-FF-F—H 1,846 166,973 (8,622) (498) 805,067 964,761

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ERETIREAE NGRS - - - - 1,006,283 1,006,283
Purchase of shares under share award scheme

BERD RE EBEHRD - - (2,056) - - (2,056)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

BRNEREERA 2 FMHE - - - 4,442 - 4,442
Shares vested under share award scheme

BERG REHEASBOHRG - - 4,197 (4,570) 373 -
Dividends received under share award scheme

BB RE HRDRERE - - - - 2,049 2,049
Dividends paid BT S (1,846) - - - (796,661) (798,507)
At 31 December 2020 R=E-FE+-A=+—H - 166,973 (6,481) (621) 1,017,101 1,176,972
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 4K DB EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves (Continued) bt (1)
Shares held Share

under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained

premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total

RERHER Ro%R

R EE RHRE |HaLENRG TERE REEN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARMTT ARBTT
(Note)
()

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ERETIREN2 ENEEE - - - - 977,248 977,248

Purchase of shares under share award scheme

RERG REHEABEHRD - - (7,415) - - (7,415)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

BRANEREER N FOHE - - - 4,725 - 4,725

Shares vested under share award scheme

RERHZE: 2 ERORH - - 4,355 (4,690) 335 -

Dividends received under share award scheme

BERG R ERRORE - - - - 2,262 2,262

Dividends paid B & - - - - (974,003) (974,003)

At 31 December 2021 R=E-—F+-A=1—H - 166,973 (9,541) (586) 1,022,943 1,179,789

Note: MIzE -

The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from: ST AR R ER IR S -

(i)  the capital contribution by/distribution to the Company in relation to () ARBGRKE HEKBRRRERET
the acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries; and /BRI R

(i) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity interests (i) MIEREBRENREFERESS B ER
in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of their respective ARBEHEEZFARNEESERRR ST
holding companies arisen in share exchange transactions during the EEMER -

group reorganisation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 45. HmEHREE
PERIOD
Postponement of discloseable transaction in relation to the HEERE —H B EAR%KEFTHENA
subscription for 6% equity interests in one Target Company THERS

On 24 December 2021, the Group and another five independent
third parties (“other subscribers”) entered into Share
Subscription Agreement of one Target Company, pursuant to
which the Group and other subscribers have agreed to subscribe
for registered capital of RMB1.8 billion and RMB20.2 billion
respectively, by way of capital injection into the Target Company
(the “Capital Increase”). Upon completion of the Capital Increase
contemplated under the Share Subscription Agreement, the Group
will hold 6% equity interests in the Target Company as enlarged
by the Capital Increase and will become the third largest equity
owner of the Target Company and has the right to appoint one
director to participate in the management and operation of the
Target Company.

On 13 January 2022, the Group received a notice from the Target
Company notifying that the Capital Increase would be temporarily
suspended as a result of the withdrawal of certain Subscribers
from the Share Subscription Agreement, the Group will make
further assessment on the revised proposal of capital increase of
the Target Company when it has come up.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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APPENDIX Il
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS IN THE ISSUER’S BUSINESS

This section supersedes in its entirety the section in the Base Listing Document entitled “Information
Relating to UBS AG”.

1. Overview

UBS AG (“Issuer”’) with its subsidiaries (together, “UBS AG consolidated”, or “UBS AG Group’;
together with UBS Group AG, which is the holding company of UBS AG, and its subsidiaries, “UBS
Group’, “Group”, “UBS” or “UBS Group AG consolidated”) provides financial advice and solutions
to private, institutional and corporate clients worldwide, as well as private clients in Switzerland. The
operational structure of the Group is comprised of the Group Functions and four business divisions:
Global Wealth Management, Personal & Corporate Banking, Asset Management and the Investment

Bank.

On 31 March 2022, UBS Group's common equity tier 1 (“CET1”) capital ratio was 14.3%, the CET1
leverage ratio was 4.16%, the total loss-absorbing capacity ratio was 34.2%, and the total loss-
absorbing capacity leverage ratio was 9.9%." On the same date, invested assets stood at USD 4,380
billion, equity attributable to shareholders was USD 58,855 million and market capitalisation was USD
65,775 million. On the same date, UBS employed 71,697 people.?

On 31 March 2022, UBS AG consolidated CET1 capital ratio was 13.4%, the CET1 leverage ratio was
3.88%, the total loss-absorbing capacity ratio was 33.1%, and the total loss-absorbing capacity
leverage ratio was 9.6%." On the same date, invested assets stood at USD 4,380 billion and equity
attributable to UBS AG shareholders was USD 57,962 million. On the same date, UBS AG Group
employed 47,139 people.?

The rating agencies S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited (“S&P”), Moody's Deutschland GmbH
(“Moody’s”), and Fitch Ratings Limited (“Fitch”) have published solicited credit ratings reflecting their
assessment of the creditworthiness of UBS AG, i.e. its ability to fulfil in a timely manner payment
obligations, such as principal or interest payments on long-term loans, also known as debt servicing.
The ratings from Fitch and S&P may be attributed a plus or minus sign, and those from Moody’s a
number. These supplementary attributes indicate the relative position within the respective rating
class. UBS AG has a long-term counterparty credit rating of A+ from S&P, long-term senior debt
rating of Aa3 from Moody’s, and long-term issuer default rating of AA- from Fitch.

An explanation of the significance of ratings may be obtained from the rating agencies. Generally,
rating agencies base their ratings on such material and information, and such of their own
investigations, studies and assumptions, as they deem appropriate. The ratings of UBS AG should be
evaluated independently from similar ratings of other entities, and from the rating, if any, of its
securities. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities issued or guaranteed
by the rated entity and may be subject to review, revision, suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any
time by the assigning rating agency. Fitch is established in the UK and registered under Regulation
(EU) No 1060/2009 as it forms part of domestic law of the UK by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK CRA
Regulation") and currently appears on the list of credit rating agencies registered or certified with the
Financial Conduct Authority published on its website www.fca.org.uk/markets/credit-rating-
agencies/registered-certified-cras. Ratings given by Fitch are endorsed by Fitch Ratings Ireland
Limited, which is established in the EEA and registered under Regulation (EU) No 1060/2009, as

T All figures based on the Swiss systemically relevant bank framework. Refer to the "Capital management" section of the
Annual Report 2021 and of the UBS Group First Quarter 2022 Report for more information.
2 Full-time equivalents.



amended (the "EU CRA Regulation") and currently appears on the list of credit ratings agencies
published by ESMA on its website www.esma.europa.eu in accordance with the EU CRA Regulation.
S&P and Moody's are established in the European Union and registered under the EU CRA
Regulation and currently appear on the list of credit ratings agencies published by ESMA on its
website in accordance with the EU CRA Regulation. Ratings given by S&P and Moody's are endorsed
by Standard & Poor's Global Ratings UK Limited and Moody's Investors Service Ltd, respectively,
which are established in the UK and registered under the UK CRA Regulation and currently appear on
the list of credit rating agencies registered or certified with the FCA published on its website.

No profit forecasts or estimates are included in this document.

No recent events particular to the Issuer have occurred which are to a material extent relevant to the
evaluation of the Issuer’s solvency.

2. Information about the Issuer
21 Corporate Information
The legal and commercial name of the Issuer is UBS AG.

The Issuer was incorporated under the name SBC AG on 28 February 1978 for an unlimited duration
and entered in the Commercial Register of Canton Basel-City on that day. On 8 December 1997, the
Issuer changed its name to UBS AG. The Issuer in its present form was created on 29 June 1998 by
the merger of Union Bank of Switzerland (founded 1862) and Swiss Bank Corporation (founded
1872). UBS AG is entered in the Commercial Registers of Canton Zurich and Canton Basel-City. The
registration number is CHE-101.329.561.

UBS AG is incorporated and domiciled in Switzerland and operates under the Swiss Code of
Obligations as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation limited by shares. UBS AG’s Legal Entity Identifier
(LEI) code is BFM8T61CT2L1QCEMIK50.

According to article 2 of the articles of association of UBS AG dated 26 April 2018 (“Articles of
Association”), the purpose of UBS AG is the operation of a bank. Its scope of operations extends to
all types of banking, financial, advisory, trading and service activities in Switzerland and abroad. UBS
AG may establish branches and representative offices as well as banks, finance companies and other
enterprises of any kind in Switzerland and abroad, hold equity interests in these companies, and
conduct their management. UBS AG is authorized to acquire, mortgage and sell real estate and
building rights in Switzerland and abroad. UBS AG may borrow and invest money on the capital
markets. UBS AG is part of the group of companies controlled by the group parent company UBS
Group AG. It may promote the interests of the group parent company or other group companies. It
may provide loans, guarantees and other kinds of financing and security for group companies.

The addresses and telephone numbers of UBS AG’s two registered offices and principal places of
business are: Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich, Switzerland, telephone +41 44 234 1111; and
Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland, telephone +41 61 288 5050.

2.2 UBS’s borrowing and funding structure and financing of UBS's activities

For information on UBS’s expected financing of its business activities, please refer to "Liquidity and
funding management" in the "Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet" section of the Annual
Report 2021.

3. Business Overview
3.1 Organisational Structure of the Issuer

UBS AG is a Swiss bank and the parent company of the UBS AG Group. It is 100% owned by UBS



Group AG, which is the holding company of the UBS Group. UBS operates as a group with four
business divisions and Group Functions.

In 2014, UBS began adapting its legal entity structure in response to too-big-to-fail requirements and
other regulatory initiatives. First, UBS Group AG was established as the ultimate parent holding
company for the Group. In 2015, UBS AG transferred its personal & corporate banking and Swiss-
booked wealth management businesses to the newly established UBS Switzerland AG, a banking
subsidiary of UBS AG in Switzerland. That same year, UBS Business Solutions AG, a wholly owned
subsidiary of UBS Group AG, was established and acts as the Group service company. In 2016, UBS
Americas Holding LLC became the intermediate holding company for UBS’s US subsidiaries and
UBS’s wealth management subsidiaries across Europe were merged into UBS Europe SE, UBS'’s
German-headquartered European subsidiary. In 2019, UBS Limited, UBS’s UK headquartered
subsidiary, was merged into UBS Europe SE.

UBS Group AG’s interests in subsidiaries and other entities as of 31 December 2021, including
interests in significant subsidiaries, are discussed in “Note 29 Interests in subsidiaries and other
entities” to the UBS Group AG's consolidated financial statements included in the UBS Group AG and
UBS AG Annual Report 2021 published on 07 March 2022 (“Annual Report 2021”).

UBS AG’s interests in subsidiaries and other entities as of 31 December 2021, including interests in
significant subsidiaries, are discussed in “Note 29 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities” to the
UBS AG'’s consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report 2021.

UBS AG is the parent company of, and conducts a significant portion of its operations through, its
subsidiaries. UBS AG has contributed a significant portion of its capital and provides substantial
liquidity to subsidiaries. In addition, UBS Business Solutions AG provides substantial services to
group companies including UBS AG and its subsidiaries. To this extent, UBS AG is dependent on
certain of the entities of the UBS AG Group and of the UBS Group.

3.2 Principal activities

UBS businesses are organised globally into four business divisions: Global Wealth Management,
Personal & Corporate Banking, Asset Management, and the Investment Bank. All four business
divisions are supported by Group Functions. Each of the business divisions and Group Functions are
described below. A description of the businesses, organisational structures, products and services
and targeted markets of the business divisions and Group Functions can be found under “Our
businesses” in the “Our strategy, business model and environment” section of the Annual Report
2021.

- Global Wealth Management provides financial services, advice and solutions to private
clients, in particular in the ultrahigh net worth and high net worth segments. Its offering ranges
from investment management to estate planning and corporate finance advice, in addition to
specific wealth management products and services. The business division is managed
globally across the regions.

- Personal & Corporate Banking serves its private, corporate, and institutional clients’ needs,
from basic banking to retirement, financing, investments and strategic transactions, in
Switzerland, through its branch network and digital channels.

- Asset Management is a large-scale and diversified global asset manager. It offers investment
capabilities and styles across all major traditional and alternative asset classes, as well as
advisory support to institutions, wholesale intermediaries and wealth management clients
globally.



- The Investment Bank provides a range of services to institutional, corporate and wealth
management clients globally, to help them raise capital, grow their businesses, invest and
manage risks. Its offerings include advisory services, facilitating clients raising debt and equity
from the public and private markets and capital markets, cash and derivatives trading across
equities and fixed income, and financing.

- Group Functions is made up of the following major areas: Group Services (which consists of
Technology, Corporate Services, Human Resources, Finance, Legal, Risk Control,
Compliance, Regulatory & Governance, Communications & Branding and Group
Sustainability and Impact), Group Treasury and Non-core and Legacy Portfolio.

3.3 Competition

The financial services industry is characterized by intense competition, continuous innovation,
restrictive, detailed, and sometimes fragmented regulation and ongoing consolidation. UBS faces
competition at the level of local markets and individual business lines, and from global financial
institutions that are comparable to UBS in their size and breadth, as well as competition from new
technology-based market entrants, which may not be subject to the same level of regulation. Barriers
to entry in individual markets and pricing levels are being eroded by new technology. UBS expects
these trends to continue and competition to increase.

Any statements regarding the competitive position of UBS AG, UBS AG Group or the Group
contained in this document are made on the basis of the opinion of UBS AG or the Group.

34 Recent Developments
3.4.1 UBS AG consolidated key figures

UBS AG derived the selected consolidated financial information included in the table below for the
years ended 31 December 2021, 2020 and 2019 from the Annual Report 2021, except where noted.
The selected consolidated financial information included in the table below for the quarter ended 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 was derived from the UBS AG First Quarter 2022 Report.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Information for the years ended 31 December 2021, 2020 and 2019 which is indicated as being
unaudited in the table below was included in the Annual Report 2021, but has not been audited on the
basis that the respective disclosures are not required under IFRS, and therefore are not part of the
audited financial statements. Prospective investors should read the whole of this document, the
Annual Report 2021 and the UBS AG First Quarter 2022 Report and should not rely solely on the
summarized information set out below.

As of or for the

quarter ended As of or for the year ended

USD million, except where indicated 31.3.22  31.3.21 | 31.12.21 31.12.20 31.12.19
unaudited audited, except where indicated

Results

Income statement

Operating income 9,475 8,836 35,976 32,780 29,307

Net interest income 1,746 1,589 6,605 5,788 4,415

Net fee and commission income 5,384 5,719 22,438 19,207 17,460




Credit loss (expense) / release (18) 28 148 (695) (78)
Other net income from financial mst_ruments 2225 1,314 5.844 6.930 6.833
measured at fair value through profit or loss
Operating expenses 6,916 6,684 27,012 25,081 24,138
Operating profit / (loss) before tax 2,559 2,151 8,964 7,699 5,169
Net profit / (loss) attributable to shareholders 2,004 1,710 7,032 6,196 3,965
Balance sheet '
Total assets 1,139,876 111612 112592 971,927
;;:Iﬂnamumlmbnmesrnea&ﬂedatamodzed 749,052 744762 732,364 617,429
of which: customer deposits 542,984 544,834 . 527,929 450,591
of _ which: debt issued measured at 75.013 82.432 85.351 62,835
amortized cost
of which: subordinated debt 5,056 5,163 7,744 7,431
Total flnanm_al liabilities measured at fair value 322,941 300,916 325,080 291,452
through profit or loss
Valsg which: debt issued designated at fair 69,421 71.460 59 868 66,592
Loans and advances to customers 393,960 398,693 380,977 327,992
Total equity 58,319 58,442 58,073 53,896
Equity attributable to shareholders 57,962 58,102 57,754 53,722
Profitability and growth
Return on equity (%) 2 13.8 11.9 12.3* 10.9* 7.4%
Return on tangible equity (%) 3 15.5 13.4 13.9* 12.4* 8.5*
Return on common equity tier 1 capital (%) * 19.3 17.8 17.6* 16.6* 11.3*
Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) 5 12.5 12.3 12.3* 11.9* 11.2*
(FEZ;L;T on leverage ratio denominator, gross 35 34 3.4* 3.4* 3.0
Cost / income ratio (%) & 72.8 75.9 75.4* 74.9* 82.1*
Net profit growth (%) © 17.2 20.3 13.5* 56.3* (3.4)
Resources
Common equity tier 1 capital ° 41,577 38,826 41,594 38,181 35,233*
. ~ . 10 * *
Risk-weighted assets 309,374 285,119 299,005 286,743 257,831
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio (%) '° 134 13.6 13.9* 13.3* 13.7*
Going concern capital ratio (%) 1° 18.1 18.7 18.5* 18.3* 18.3*
Total loss-absorbing capacity ratio (%) 1° 33.1 34.2 33.3* 34.2* 33.9*
i i 6,10 *
Leverage ratio denominator 1,072,766 1,039,72 1,067,%Z 1,036,717* 911,228
Common equity tier 1 leverage ratio (%) & 10 3.88 3.73 3.90* 3.68* 3.87*
Going concern leverage ratio (%) 8 10 5.2 5.1 5.2* 5.1* 5.2*
;I;zt)a:oloss-absorbing capacity leverage ratio 96 94 0.3* 95 96
Other
Invested assets (USD billion) " 4,380 4,306 4,596 4,187 3,607
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 47,139 47,592 47,067*: 47,546* 47,005*

* unaudited



1 Except for Total assets, Total equity and Equity attributable to shareholders, balance sheet information
for year ended 31 December 2019 is derived from the Annual Report 2020.

2 Calculated as annualized net profit attributable to shareholders divided by average equity attributable
to shareholders. This measure provides information about the profitability of the business in relation to
equity.

3 Calculated as annualized net profit attributable to shareholders divided by average equity attributable
to shareholders less average goodwill and intangible assets. This measure provides information about
the profitability of the business in relation to tangible equity.

4 Calculated as annualized net profit attributable to shareholders divided by average common equity tier
1 capital. This measure provides information about the profitability of the business in relation to common
equity tier 1 capital.

5 Calculated as annualized operating income before credit loss expense or release divided by average
risk-weighted assets. This measure provides information about the revenues of the business in relation
to risk-weighted assets.

6 Leverage ratio denominators and leverage ratios for year 2020 do not reflect the effects of the
temporary exemption that applied from 25 March 2020 until 1 January 2021 and was granted by FINMA
in connection with COVID-19.

7 Calculated as annualized operating income before credit loss expense or release divided by average
leverage ratio denominator. This measure provides information about the revenues of the business in
relation to leverage ratio denominator.

8 Calculated as operating expenses divided by operating income before credit loss expense or release
(annualized as applicable). This measure provides information about the efficiency of the business by
comparing operating expenses with gross income.

% Calculated as the change in net profit attributable to shareholders from continuing operations between
current and comparison periods divided by net profit attributable to shareholders from continuing
operations of the comparison period. This measure provides information about profit growth in
comparison with the prior period.

19Based on the applicable Swiss systemically relevant bank framework as of 1 January 2020.

1 Consists of invested assets for Global Wealth Management, Asset Management and Personal &
Corporate Banking. Calculated as the sum of managed fund assets, managed institutional assets,
discretionary and advisory wealth management portfolios, fiduciary deposits, time deposits, savings
accounts, and wealth management securities or brokerage accounts. This measure provides
information about the volume of client assets managed by or deposited with UBS for investment
purposes.

3.4.2 Regulatory, legal and other developments

Refer to “Recent developments” in the UBS Group First Quarter 2022 Report, as well as to “Our
environment” and "Regulatory and legal developments" in the Annual Report 2021, for further
information on key regulatory, legal and other developments.

3.5 Trend Information

For information on trends, refer to “Outlook” under “Group performance” and to “Country risk” under
“Risk management and control’ in the UBS Group First Quarter 2022 Report, as well as to the “Our
environment” section, and to “Top and emerging risks” and “Country risk” in the “Risk management
and control’ section of the Annual Report 2021. In addition, please refer to the "Risk factors" and the
“Recent Developments” sections of this document for more information.

4. Administrative, Management and Supervisory Bodies of the Issuer

UBS AG complies with all relevant Swiss legal and regulatory corporate governance requirements. As
a foreign private issuer with debt securities listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), UBS
AG also complies with the relevant NYSE corporate governance standards applicable to foreign
private issuers.

UBS AG operates under a strict dual board structure, as mandated by Swiss banking law. The Board
of Directors (“BoD”) exercises the ultimate supervision over management, whereas the Executive
Board (“EB”), headed by the President of the Executive Board (“President of the EB”), has executive



management responsibility. The functions of Chairman of the BoD and President of the EB are
assigned to two different people, ensuring a separation of power. This structure establishes checks
and balances and preserves the institutional independence of the BoD from the executive
management of UBS AG Group, for which responsibility is delegated to the EB under the leadership
of the President of the EB. No member of one board may simultaneously be a member of the other.

Supervision and control of the EB remain with the BoD. The authorities and responsibilities of the two
bodies are governed by the Articles of Association and the Organization Regulations of UBS AG.

4.1 Board of Directors

The BoD consists of between 5 and 12 members. All the members of the BoD are elected individually
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for a term of office of one year, which
expires after the completion of the next AGM. Shareholders also elect the Chairman upon proposal of
the BoD.

The BoD meets as often as business requires, and at least six times a year.
4.1.1  Members of the Board of Directors

The current members of the BoD are listed below.

T f
Member Title o?f:cme ° Current principal activities outside UBS AG

Colm Kelleher Chairman of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
member of the board of Norfolk Southern Corporation
(chair of the risk and finance committee); member of
the Board of Directors of the Bretton Woods
Committee; member of the board of Americans for
Oxford; member of the Oxford Chancellor's Court of
Benefactors; and member of the Advisory Council of
the British Museum.

Chairman 2023

Lukas Gahwiler Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of UBS Group
AG; member of the Board of Directors of Pilatus
Aircraft Ltd; member of the Board of Directors of
Ringier AG; member of the Board of Directors of
Opernhaus Zirich AG; chairman of the Employers
Association of Banks in Switzerland; member of the
Board of Directors of the Swiss Employers Association;
member of the Board of economiesuisse; chairman of
the Foundation Board of the UBS Pension Fund;
member of the Foundation Council of the UBS Center
for Economics in Society; and member of the board of
the Swiss Finance Council.

Member 2023

Jeremy Anderson Senior Independent Director of the Board of Directors
of UBS Group AG; board member of Prudential plc;
trustee of the UK's Productivity Leadership Group;
trustee of Kingham Hill Trust; trustee of St. Helen
Bishopsgate.

Member 2023

Claudia Bockstiegel  Member 2023 Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;




General Counsel and member of the Enlarged
Executive Committee of Roche Holding AG.

William C. Dudley

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
member of the board of Treliant LLC; senior advisor to
the Griswold Center for Economic Policy Studies at
Princeton University; member of the Group of Thirty;
member of the Council on Foreign Relations; chair of
the Bretton Woods Committee board of directors;
member of the board of the Council for Economic
Education.

Patrick Firmenich

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
chairman of the board of Firmenich International SA;
member of the board of Jacobs Holding AG; member
of the Board of INSEAD and INSEAD World
Foundation; member of the Advisory Council of the
Swiss Board Institute.

Fred Hu

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
non-executive chairman of the board of Yum China
Holdings (chair of the nomination and governance
committee); board member of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China; chairman of Primavera
Capital Ltd and of Primavera Capital Group; member of
the Board of Ant Group; board member of Minsheng
Financial Leasing Co.; trustee of the China Medical
Board; Governor of the Chinese International School in
Hong Kong; co-chairman of the Nature Conservancy
Asia Pacific Council; member of the Board of Trustees
of the Institute for Advanced Studies (IAS).

Mark Hughes

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
chair of the Board of Directors of the Global Risk
Institute; visiting lecturer at the University of Leeds;
senior advisor to McKinsey & Company.

Nathalie Rachou

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
member of the board of Euronext N.V. (chair of the
remuneration committee); member of the board of
Veolia Environnement SA (chair of the audit
committee); member of the board of the African
Financial Institutions Investment Platform.

Julie G. Richardson

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
member of the board of Yext (chair of the audit
committee); member of the board of Datalog (chair of
the audit committee).

Dieter Wemmer

Member

2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
board member of Qrsted A/S (chair of the audit and
risk committee); chairman of Marco Capital Holdings
Limited and Marco Insurance, Malta; member of the




Berlin Center of Corporate Governance.

Jeanette Wong

Member 2023

Member of the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG;
member of the board of Prudential plc; member of the
board of Singapore Airlines Limited; member of the
Board Risk Committee of GIC Pte Ltd; board member
of Jurong Town Corporation; board member of PSA
International; chairman of the CareShield Life Council;
member of the Securities Industry Council; member of
the Board of Trustees of the National University of
Singapore.

4.2 Executive Board (“EB”)

Under the leadership of the President of the EB, the EB has executive management responsibility for
UBS AG and its business. All EB members (with the exception of the President of the EB) are
proposed by the President of the EB. The appointments are made by the BoD.

4.2.1

Members of the Executive Board

The current members of the EB are listed below. In addition, Sarah Youngwood joined the GEB at the
beginning of March 2022, and will take over as Group Chief Financial Officer from 16 May 2022
succeeding Kirt Gardner, who will retire from the firm.

Member and
business address

Function

Current principal activities outside UBS AG

Ralph Hamers

UBS AG,
Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

President of the
Executive Board

Member of the Group Executive Board and Group
Chief Executive Officer of UBS Group AG;
member of the Board of the Swiss-American
Chamber of Commerce; member of the Institut
International D'Etudes Bancaires; member of the
IMD Foundation Board; member of the McKinsey
Advisory Council; member of the World Economic
Forum International Business Council; Governor
of the World Economic Forum (Financial
Services).

Christian Bluhm

UBS AG,
Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

Chief Risk Officer

Member of the Group Executive Board and Group
Chief Risk Officer of UBS Group AG; board
member of UBS Switzerland AG; member of the
Foundation Board of the UBS Pension Fund;
member of the Foundation Board — International
Financial Risk Institute.

Mike Dargan

UBS AG,
Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

Chief Digital and
Information Officer

Member of the Group Executive Board and Chief
Digital and Information Officer of UBS Group AG;
President of the Executive Board and board
member of UBS Business Solutions AG; member
of the Board of Directors of Done Next Holdings
AG; member of the Board of Trustees of the Inter-
Community School Zurich.




Kirt Gardner

UBS AG,
Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

Chief Financial Officer

Member of the Group Executive Board and Group
Chief Financial Officer of UBS Group AG; board
member of UBS Business Solutions AG.

Suni Harford

UBS AG, 1285
Avenue of the
Americas, New
York, NY 10019
USA

President Asset
Management

Member of the Executive Board and President
Asset Management of UBS Group AG; chairman
of the Board of Directors of UBS Asset
Management AG; chair of the Board of UBS
Optimus Foundation; member of the Leadership
Council of the Bob Woodruff Foundation.

Robert Karofsky

UBS AG, 1285
Avenue of the
Americas, New
York, NY 10019,
USA

President Investment
Bank

Member of the Group Executive Board and
President Investment Bank of UBS Group AG;
president of UBS Securities LLC; member of the
board of UBS Americas Holding LLC; member of
the board of UBS Optimus Foundation; trustee of
the UBS Americas Inc. Political Action
Committee.

Igbal Khan

UBS AG,
Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

Co-President Global
Wealth Management and
President UBS Europe,
Middle East and Africa

Member of the Executive Board, co-President
Global Wealth Management and President UBS
Europe, Middle East and Africa of UBS Group
AG; member of the Supervisory Board of UBS
Europe SE; member of the board of UBS Optimus
Foundation; board member of Room to Read
Switzerland.

Edmund Koh

UBS AG, One
Raffles Quay North
Tower, Singapore
048583

President UBS Asia
Pacific

Member of the Group Executive Board and
President UBS Asia Pacific of UBS Group AG;
member of a sub-committee of the Singapore
Ministry of Finance's Committee on the Future
Economy; member of the Financial Centre
Advisory Panel of the Monetary Authority of
Singapore; council member of the Asian Bureau
of Finance and Economic Research; member of
the Board of Trustees of the Wealth Management
Institute, Singapore; board member of Next50
Limited, Singapore; board member of Medico
Suites (S) Pte Ltd; Council member of the
KidSTART program of the Early Childhood
Development Agency Singapore; trustee of the
Cultural Matching Fund, Singapore; member of
University of Toronto's International Leadership
Council for Asia.

Barbara Levi

UBS AG,

General Counsel

Member of the Group Executive Board and Group
General Counsel of UBS Group AG; member of
the Employers’ Board of the Global Institute for
Women’s Leadership, King’s College London;




Bahnhofstrasse 45, member of the Board of Directors of the European

CH-8001 Zurich General Counsel Association.

Tom Naratil Co-President Global Member of the Group Executive Board and co-
Wealth Management and | President Global Wealth Management and

UBS AG. 1285 President UBS Americas = President UBS Americas of UBS Group AG; CEO

and board member of UBS Americas Holding
LLC; board member of the American Swiss

Avenue of the
Americas, New

York, NY 10019 Foundation.

USA

Markus Ronner Chief Compliance and Member of the Group Executive Board and Group
Governance Officer Chief Compliance and Governance Officer of

UBS AG, UBS Group AG.

Bahnhofstrasse 45,
CH-8001 Zurich

Sarah Youngwood | Designated Chief Member of the Group Executive Board of UBS

Financial Officer as of 16 = Group AG, and Designated Group Chief Financial
UBS AG May 2022 Officer as of May 2022; Advisory Board Member —
Bahnhofstrasse 45, Wall Street Women'’s Alliance.

CH-8001 Zurich

4.3 Potential Conflicts of Interest

Members of the BoD and the EB may act as directors or executive officers of other companies (for
current principal positions outside UBS AG, if any, of BoD and EB members, please see sections
4.1.1 and 4.2.1 above, respectively) and may have economic or other private interests that differ from
those of UBS AG. Conflicts of interest may potentially arise from these positions or interests. For
example, it cannot be excluded that a member of the BoD or EB has or will have a function within a
company, the shares of which are or will be traded by UBS AG or which has or will have a business
relationship with UBS AG. UBS AG is confident that its internal corporate governance practices and
its compliance with relevant legal and regulatory provisions reasonably ensure that any conflicts of
interest of the type described above are appropriately managed, including through disclosure when
appropriate.

Other than as indicated above, UBS is not aware of potential conflicts of interests between any duties
to the Issuer of the members of the BoD and the EB and their private interests or other duties.

5. Auditors

Based on article 31 of the Articles of Association, UBS AG shareholders elect the auditors for a term
of office of one year. At the AGMs of 27 April 2020, 7 April 2021 and 5 April 2022, Ernst & Young Ltd.,
Aeschengraben 27, 4051 Basel, Switzerland ("Ernst & Young") was elected as auditor for the
consolidated and standalone financial statements of UBS AG for a one-year term.

Ernst & Young is a member of EXPERTsuisse, the Swiss Expert Association for Audit, Tax and
Fiduciary. Ernst & Young is also registered with the Swiss Federal Audit Oversight Authority, which is
responsible for the licensing and supervision of audit firms and individuals that provide audit services
in Switzerland.



6. Major Shareholders of the Issuer

UBS Group AG owns 100% of the outstanding shares of UBS AG. UBS AG is a wholly owned
subsidiary of UBS Group AG. While UBS has no specific corporate measures intended to prevent
abuse of control to the detriment of minority shareholders, UBS has adopted a comprehensive and
integrated governance framework which takes into account the specific requirements of each relevant
jurisdiction. This governance framework includes separate articles of association and organizational
regulations for UBS Group AG and UBS AG. In addition, as UBS AG is regulated as a bank in
Switzerland, it is subject to capital regulation and close supervisory oversight. This includes the
general requirement under Swiss law that contracts of UBS AG with affiliates are subject to an arm's
length principle of negotiation.

7. Financial Information concerning the Issuer’s Assets and Liabilities, Financial Position
and Profits and Losses

71 Historical Annual Financial Information

Detailed information about UBS AG consolidated and UBS AG assets and liabilities, financial position
and profits and losses for financial year 2021 is available in the section "UBS AG consolidated
financial statements" of the Annual Report 2021 and in the UBS AG's standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "Standalone Financial Statements 2021"), respectively;
and for financial year 2020 it is available in the "UBS AG consolidated financial statements" section of
the UBS Group AG and UBS AG annual report 2020, published on 5 March 2021 ("Annual Report
2020") and in the UBS AG's standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
published on 5 March 2021 (the "Standalone Financial Statements 2020"). The consolidated and
standalone financial accounts are closed on 31 December of each year.

The annual financial reports form an essential part of UBS AG’s reporting. They include the audited
consolidated financial statements of UBS AG, prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The annual reports
also include discussions and analysis of the consolidated financial and business results of UBS, its
business divisions and Group Functions. In addition, UBS AG prepares and publishes standalone
financial statements in accordance with Swiss GAAP, as well as certain additional disclosures
required under US Securities and Exchange Commission regulations.

7.2 Auditing of Historical Annual Financial Information

The consolidated financial statements and the standalone financial statements of UBS AG for the
financial years 2021 and 2020 were audited by Ernst & Young. The reports of the auditors on the
consolidated financial statements can be found on pages 422-428 (inclusive) of the Annual Report
2021 and on pages 417-428 (inclusive) of the Annual Report 2020. The reports of the auditors on the
standalone financial statements of UBS AG can be found on pages 37-42 (inclusive) of the
Standalone Financial Statements 2021 and on pages 34-39 (inclusive) of the Standalone Financial
Statements 2020.

There are no qualifications in the auditors' reports on the consolidated financial statements of UBS
AG and the standalone financial statements of UBS AG for the years ended on 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.

7.3 Interim Financial Information

Reference is also made to the UBS Group AG first quarter 2022 report published on 26 April 2022
("UBS Group First Quarter 2022 Report"), and the UBS AG first quarter 2022 report published on 29
April 2022 ("UBS AG First Quarter 2022 Report"), which contain information on the financial
condition and results of operations, including the interim financial statements, of UBS Group AG



consolidated and UBS AG consolidated, respectively, as of and for the period ended 31 March 2022.
The interim consolidated financial statements are not audited.

7.4 Litigation, Regulatory and Similar Matters

UBS operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to significant litigation and similar
risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. As a result, UBS is involved in various
disputes and legal proceedings, including litigation, arbitration, and regulatory and criminal
investigations. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome and the timing of
resolution are often difficult to predict, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. The uncertainties
inherent in all such matters affect the amount and timing of any potential outflows for both matters
with respect to which provisions have been established and other contingent liabilities. Litigation,
regulatory and similar matters may also result in non-monetary penalties and consequences. A guilty
plea to, or conviction of, a crime could have material consequences for UBS. Resolution of regulatory
proceedings may require UBS to obtain waivers of regulatory disqualifications to maintain certain
operations, may entitle regulatory authorities to limit, suspend or terminate licenses and regulatory
authorizations and may permit financial market utilities to limit, suspend or terminate UBS’s
participation in such utilities. Failure to obtain such waivers, or any limitation, suspension or
termination of licenses, authorizations or participations, could have material consequences for UBS.

Specific litigation, regulatory and other matters, including all such matters that management considers
to be material and others that management believes to be of significance due to potential financial,
reputational and other effects, are described in "Note 15 Provisions and contingent liabilities" to the
UBS AG unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in the UBS AG First Quarter
2022 Report. The amount of damages claimed, the size of a transaction or other information is
provided where available and appropriate in order to assist users in considering the magnitude of
potential exposures.

7.5 Material Contracts

Except as otherwise disclosed in this document (including the documents incorporated herein by
reference), no material contracts have been entered into outside of the ordinary course of UBS AG’s
or UBS AG Group’s business which could result in any member of the UBS AG Group being under an
obligation or entitlement that is material to UBS AG’s ability to meet its obligations to the investors in
relation to the issued securities.

7.6 Significant Changes in the Financial Position and Performance; Material Adverse
Change in Prospects

Except as otherwise indicated in this document (including the documents incorporated herein by
reference), no material changes have occurred in UBS AG's assets and liabilities, financial position or
profits and losses since 31 March 2022.

8. Share Capital

As reflected in the Articles of Association most recently registered with the Commercial Register of the
Canton of Zurich and the Commercial Register of Basel-City, UBS AG has (i) fully paid and issued
share capital of CHF 385,840,846.60, divided into 3,858,408,466 registered shares with a par value of
CHF 0.10 each (article 4), and (ii) conditional capital in the amount of CHF 38,000,000, comprising
380,000,000 registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.10 each that can be issued upon the
voluntary or mandatory exercise of conversion rights and/or warrants (article 4a).

9. Documents Available

The most recent Articles of Association of UBS AG are available on UBS's Corporate Governance



website, at www.ubs.com/governance. Save as otherwise indicated herein, information on or
accessible through the Group’s corporate website, www.ubs.com, does not form part of and is not
incorporated into this document.


http://www.ubs.com/governance

APPENDIX Il

EXTRACT OF
THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
UBS AG AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE FIRST QUARTER ENDED 31 MARCH 2022



UBS AG interim consolidated
financial statements (unaudited)

Income statement

For the quarter ended

USD million Note 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Interest income from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through

other comprehensive income 3214 2152 2,098
L e S e e )
“Net interest income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profitor loss 3 410 388 351
Netinterestincome 3 1,746 1746 1,589
ik et ncome rom fnancil st messred a o vl o o oss S ST
Creditloss (expense) / release 8 (18) 27 28
Feeand commissionincome 45,868 _______________ 6,054 6197
‘Fee and commission expense 4 (485) (513) (478)
Netfee and commissionincome 45,384 _______________ 5541 5719
Otherincome 139 169 185
Total operating income 9,475 8,846 8,836
Personnel expenses 5 4,233 3,552 4,086
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of non-financial assets 449 511 457
Total operating expenses 6,916 7,227 6,684
Operating profit / (loss) before tax e 2 N 1619 2151
Taxerpense / (benefi) 7 547 353 439
Net profit / (loss) 2,012 1,266 1,713
Net profit / (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 8 "o 3
‘Netprofit/ (loss) attributable to shareholders 2,004 1,255 1,710
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UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Statement of comprehensive income

For the quarter ended
USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21

Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders
Net profit / (loss) 2,004 1,255 1,710
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to the income statement

Foreign currency translation

Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments designated as net investment hedges reclassified to

R INCOME STATBMENT | eeeeeeeeeeesseeecesesese s sssseeesses st ses s ss s ssnneee 0 ereeeeeeesns =, 9.
Income tax relating to foreign currency translations, including the impact of net investment hedges 2 (24) 10
Subtotal foreign currency translation, net of tax (251) 91 (691)

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

“Income tax relat g to net u galns/(iasses) 112 13 35

Subtotal financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of tax (327) (37) (102)

Income tax relating to cash flow hedges 518 98 266
Subtotal cash flow hedges, net of tax (2,184) (421) (1,160)
Cost of hedging

< ostofhedglng L s ( o ) ...................... (6)
Incometaxrelatlngtocostofhedglng ................................................................................................................................................... G G 5
Subtotal cost of hedging, net of tax 77 (8) 6)
Total other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to the income statement, net of tax (2,685) (375) (1,958)

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement

Defined benefit plans

-Income tax relat g tod benefit plans (17) "(.26) 3 .
Subtotal defined benefit plans, net of tax 110 127 (32)
Own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value2

P (Iosses) e gnated L G s (29)
Incometaxrelatlngtoowncredltonﬂnanmal T |gnatedat L o G -
Subtotal own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value, net of tax 423 55 (29)
Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement, net of tax 533 182 (61)
Total other comprehensive income (2,152) (194) (2,019)
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders (148) 1,062 (309)

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Net profit / (loss) 8 1 3
Total other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the income statement, net of tax 18 (4) (12)
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 26 7 9)

Total comprehensive income

Net profit / (loss) 2,012 1,266 1,713
Other comprehensive income (2,134) (197) (2,032)
..... ofW/”Cﬁomefmmpm/mwemmmema[mawemdamﬁwwmemmmeﬁmme”[(2685)(375)(]958}
..... O/W/”d]amefmmpm/mﬂ%’mmmema[W///nwbefec/amﬁwmmemwmemtemeﬂ[557778(73}
Total comprehensive income (121) 1,069 (319)

1 Mainly reflects net unrealized losses on US dollar hedging derivatives resulting from significant increases in the relevant US dollar long-term interest rates. 2 Refer to Note 9 for more information.
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Balance sheet

USD million Note 31.3.22 31.12.21
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 206,773

Loans and advanc

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost " 28,766 26,236
Total financial assets measured at amortized cost 755,987 738,632
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 9 114,995 131,033
..... ofwﬁ/c/zassetsp/edgedasco//az‘era/matmaybeso/o’offep/edgeo’bycounterpafnes4027743397
L 9101403 e 118145
Brokeragerecelvables ........................................................................................................................................................................ g 2076221839
e uenotheldfortradmg .................................................................................................................................... g 60575 ................ : 9642
Total financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 336,643 330,659
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 9 9,093 8,844
Investments in associates 1,150 1,243

11,712

10,158 9.836
Total assets 1,139,876 1,116,145

Liabilities
Amounts due to

Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 1" 10,167 9,765
Total financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 749,052 744,762
Financial liabilities at fair value held for trading 9 34,687 31,688

Other financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,1 32,374

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 322,941

Provisions 15 3,413
L s ; 152 ..........................
Total liabilities 1,081,558

Equity

Share capital

Other comprehensive income recognized directly in equity, net of tax 2,514 5,200
Equity attributable to shareholders 57,962 58,102
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 356 340
Total equity 58,319 58,442
Total liabilities and equity 1,139,876 1,116,145
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UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Statement of changes in equity

Share Share Retained
USD million capital premium earnings
Balance as of 1 January 2021 338 24,580 25,251

of which: OC|, net of tax 61)
Balance as of 31 March 2021 338 24,579 26,926
Balance as of 1 January 2022 338 24,653 27,912

T :

of which.: OCl, net of tax 533

Balance as of 31 March 2022 338 24,660 30,450
1 Excludes other comprehensive income related to defined benefit plans and own credit that is recorded directly in Retained earnings.
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Other comprehensive of which:
Income recognized of which: financial assets Total equity
directly in equity, foreign currency  measured at fair value of which: of which: attributable to Non-controlling Total
net of tax’ translation through OCl  cash flow hedges cost of hedging shareholders interests equity
7,585 5126 151 2321 (13) 57,754 319 58,073
1 1
0 €)} 3)
(23) 0 (23) 0 0 0
2 2
M 0 (1)
(1,958) (6971) (102) (1,160) (6) (309) 9) (319)
1,710 3 1,713
(7,958) (691) (102) (7,160) (6) (2,019 (12) (2,032)
5,603 4436 49 1,138 (19) 57,446 307 57,753
5,200 4617 7) 628 (39) 58,102 340 58,442
3 3
0 @) €}
(1 0 (1) 0 0 0
0 0
5 @) €}
(2,685) (251) (327) (2,184) 77 (148) 26 (121)
2,004 8 2012
(2,685) 251) (327) (2,184) 77 (2,152) 8 2,134)
2,514 4,366 (334) (1,556) 38 57,962 356 58,319
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UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Statement of cash flows

Year-to-date
USD million 31.3.22 31.3.21
Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities
Net profit / (loss) 2,012 1,713

Income taxes paid, net of refunds (644) (201)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 24,899 (1,322)

Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

Purchase of subsidiaries, associates and intangible assets 0 1
Purchaseofpropertyequlpmentandsoftware(371)(368)
e falrvaluethroughother comprehenswe L ( 1 645) ................... ( 13 76)
oS el
"Net (purchase) / redemption of debt securities measured at am(;r.tized cost (2,547) 4 .

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (3,472) (329)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Year-to-date

USD million 31.3.22 31.3.21
Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities

Net short-term debt issued / (repaid) (5,188) 1,054
Issuanceofdebtde5|gnatedatfalrvalueandIongtermdebtmeasuredatamortlzedcost‘24824 ................... ; 6336
- epayment ofdebtde5|g s wvalueandlongterm e e ( 21 201) ................. (22 5 65)
Netcashﬂowsfromotherfmancmgactwmes(219)(150)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (1,784) 14,275
Total cash flow

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 207,755 173,430
- etcashﬂowfrom/(usedm) operat |ng|nvest| ngandfmanclngactlwtles ................................................................................................................. g 9644 ................... 12624
Effectsofexchange R cashandcasheq L ( 2 729) ................... ( 7 2 83)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period? 224,669 178,071

of which: cash and balances at central banks> 206,666 158,769

e 7648577050
s afw/z/c/zmoneymar/(ez‘papﬁ .......................................................................................................................................................................... 75/82252
Additional information

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities includes:
L 28892758
Interestpaldlncash1428 ..................... : 679
TSP g T

Dividends on equity investments, investment funds and associates received in cash

1 Includes funding from UBS Group AG measured at amortized cost (recognized in Funding from UBS Group AG on the balance sheet) and measured at fair value (recognized in Other financial liabilities designated at

fair value on the balance sheet). 2 USD 4,359 million and USD 4,064 million of cash and cash equivalents (mainly reflected in Loans and advances to banks) were restricted as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
3 Includes only balances with an

respectively. Refer to “Note 23 Restricted and transferred financial assets” in the “Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual Report 2021 for more information.

original maturity of three months or less.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Notes to the UBS AG interim
consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 1 Basis of accounting

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements (the financial statements)
of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (together, UBS AG) are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the IASB), and are presented in US dollars (USD). These interim
financial statements are prepared in accordance with IAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting.

In preparing these interim financial statements, the same
accounting policies and methods of computation have been
applied as in the UBSAG consolidated annual financial
statements for the period ended 31 December 2021. These
interim financial statements are unaudited and should be read in
conjunction with UBS AG's audited consolidated financial
statements in the Annual Report 2021. In the opinion of

22

management, all necessary adjustments have been made for a fair
presentation of UBS AG’s financial position, results of operations
and cash flows.

Preparation of these interim financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates
and assumptions are based on the best available information.
Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and
differences may be material to the financial statements. Revisions
to estimates, based on regular reviews, are recognized in the
period in which they occur. For more information about areas of
estimation uncertainty that are considered to require critical
judgment, refer to “Note 1a Material accounting policies” in the
“Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual Report
2021.



Note 2 Segment reporting

UBS AG'’s businesses are organized globally into four business
divisions: Global Wealth Management, Personal & Corporate
Banking, Asset Management and the Investment Bank. All four
business divisions are supported by Group Functions and qualify
as reportable segments for the purpose of segment reporting.
Together with Group Functions they reflect the management
structure of UBS AG.
» Refer to “Note 2 Segment reporting” in the “Consolidated
financial statements” section of the Annual Report 2021 for
more information about UBS AG's reporting segments

Personal &
Global Wealth Corporate Asset Investment Group
USD million Management Banking Management Bank Functions UBS AG

For the quarter ended 31 March 2022
Net interest income

Credit loss (expense) / release
Total operating income

Total operating expenses
Operating profit

Tax expense / (ben

Net profit / (loss)

As of 31 March 2022
Totalassets” T ag,861 231,993 259 381574 95869 1,139,876

Personal &
Global Wealth Corporate Asset Investment Group

USD million Management Banking Management Bank Functions UBS AG
For the quarter ended 31 March 2021

Net interest income 997 513 (4) 114 (31) 1,589
Non-interestincome 7 3888 500 64l 261 68 7218
Income 4,845 1,013 637 2,274 37 8,807
Creditloss (expense) / release Ty o T o 28
Total operating income 4,848 1,037 637 2,276 37 8,836
Total operating expenses 3,457 647 410 1,882 288 6,684
Operating profit / (loss) before tax 1,391 390 227 394 (251) 2,151
Taxexpense / (benefit) 139
Net profit / {loss) 1,713

As of 31 December 2021

Total assets 395,235 225,425 25,202 346,641 123,641 1,116,145

1 In the first quarter of 2022, UBS AG refined the methodology applied to allocate balance sheet resources from Group Functions to the business divisions, with prospective effect. If the new methodology had been
applied as of 31 December 2021, balance sheet assets allocated to business divisions would have been USD 17 billion higher, of which USD 14 billion related to the Investment Bank.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 3 Net interest income

For the quarter ended
USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Net interest income from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income

Interest income from loans and deposits' 1,661 1,647 1,586

Interest income from derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 253 284 268
Total interest income from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive

income 2,145 2,152 2,098
Interest expense on loans and deposits? 429 393 439

Interest exp
Total interest expense from financial instruments measured at amortized cost
Total net interest income from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive

income 1,336 1,358 1,239
Net interest income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 410 388 351
Total net interest income 1,746 1,746 1,589

1 Consists of interest income from cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and customers, and cash collateral receivables on derivative instruments, as well as negative interest on amounts
due to banks, customer deposits, and cash collateral payables on derivative instruments. 2 Includes interest income on receivables from securities financing transactions and negative interest, including fees, on
payables from securities financing transactions. 3 Consists of interest expense on amounts due to banks, cash collateral payables on derivative instruments, customer deposits, and funding from UBS Group AG, as
well as negative interest on cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks, and cash collateral receivables on derivative instruments. 4 Includes interest expense on payables from securities
financing transactions and negative interest, including fees, on receivables from securities financing transactions.

Note 4 Net fee and commission income

For the quarter ended
USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Underwriting fees 203 346 420

of which: performance-based 19 99 94
Fee and commission expense 485 513 478
Net fee and commission income 5,384 5,541 5719

1 Reflects third-party fee and commission income for the first quarter of 2022 of USD 3,637 million for Global Wealth Management (fourth quarter of 2021: USD 3,624 million; first quarter of 2021: USD 3,673 million),
USD 447 million for Personal & Corporate Banking (fourth quarter of 2021: USD 427 million; first quarter of 2021: USD 389 million), USD 762 million for Asset Management (fourth quarter of 2021: USD 902 million;
first quarter of 2021: USD 815 million), USD 1,018 million for the Investment Bank (fourth quarter of 2021: USD 1,095 million; first quarter of 2021: USD 1,305 million) and USD 4 million for Group Functions (fourth
quarter of 2021: USD 6 million; first quarter of 2021: USD 15 million).

Note 5 Personnel expenses

For the quarter ended

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Salaries and variable compensation 2,465 1,822 2,370
Fmanmaladwsorcompensauon‘1220 .................. 12691170
L st St o
Soqalsecunty .................................................................................................................................................................................. e g S
Postemploymentbeneﬂtplans ........................................................................................................................................................... e s o
Otherpersonnelexpenses .................................................................................................................................................................. o T R o
Total personnel expenses 4,233 3,552 4,086

1 Financial advisor compensation consists of formulaic compensation based directly on compensable revenues generated by financial advisors and supplemental compensation calculated on the basis of financial
advisor productivity, firm tenure, new assets and other variables. It also includes expenses related to compensation commitments with financial advisors entered into at the time of recruitment that are subject to
vesting requirements.
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Note 6 General and administrative expenses

For the quarter ended

USD million

31.3.22 31.12.21 31321

Outsourcing costs

of which. UK and German bank levies

106 130 89

Total general and administrative expenses

1 Reflects the net increase in provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters recognized in the income statement. Refer to Note 15b for more information.

Note 7 Income taxes

Income tax expenses of USD 547 million were recognized for the
first quarter of 2022, representing an effective tax rate of 21.4%,
compared with USD 439 million for the first quarter of 2021 and
an effective tax rate of 20.4%.

Current tax expenses were USD 335 million, compared with
USD 377 million, and related to taxable profits of UBS Switzerland
AG and other entities.

Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement

Net deferred tax expenses were USD 212 million, compared
with USD 61 million, and primarily related to the amortization of
deferred tax assets that were previously recognized in relation to
tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences
of UBS Americas Inc.

a) Credit loss expense / release

Total net credit loss expenses in the first quarter of 2022 were
USD 18 million, reflecting USD 11 million net credit loss expenses
related to stage 1 and 2 positions and USD 7 million net credit
loss expenses related to stage 3 positions.

Stage 1 and 2 net expenses included scenario-related net
expenses of USD 18 million, model change-related net releases of

Credit loss (expense) / release

USD 14 million, and net expenses of USD 7 million including
additional effects from book quality and size changes.

Stage 3 net credit loss expenses were USD 7 million, including
USD 10 million net expenses in Personal & Corporate Banking,
across various corporate lending positions.

Global Personal &

Wealth Corporate Asset Investment Group
USD million Management Banking Management Bank Functions Total
For the quarter ended 31.3.22
Stages1and2 .................................................................................................. s ( 13)0 ........................ (3) ....................... r— ( 11)
Stage3 ............................................................................................................. s ( 10)00 ......................... 0(7)
Total credit loss (expense) / release 7 (23) 0 (4) 0 (18)
For the quarter ended 31.12.21
Stages1and2 .................................................................................................. o ( 4)0 ......................... g ; (1)
Stage3 ............................................................................................................. e p— ( 1) ...................... R G
Total credit loss (expense) / release 2 10 (1) 16 0 27
For the quarter ended 31.3.21
Stages1and24 ....................... e s s
Stage3 ............................................................................................................ (2) ........................ o (4) ....................... s o
Total credit loss (expense) / release 3 23 0 2 0 28
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

b) Changes to ECL models, scenarios, scenario weights and post-model adjustments

Scenarios

The expected credit loss (ECL) scenarios, along with the related
macroeconomic factors, were reviewed in light of the economic
and political conditions prevailing in the first quarter of 2022
through a series of governance meetings, with input and
feedback from UBS Risk and Finance experts across the business
divisions and regions.

As a response to inflationary developments and Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine, UBS AG has replaced the mild global interest
rate steepening scenario with a severe global interest rate
steepening scenario, applied more adverse weightings and
reflected updated scenario data as of the end of the first quarter
of 2022 in the calculations.

The baseline scenario assumptions on a calendar-year basis are
included in the table below and imply a weaker economic forecast
for 2022 compared with 2021.

The shocks in the newly adopted severe global interest rate
steepening scenario are more severe compared with the
previously applied mild global interest rate steepening scenario;
for example, inflation and interest rates are higher and GDP
growth substantially lower.

The global crisis scenario remains materially unchanged.

Comparison on shock factors

Scenario weights and post-model adjustments

In response to recent developments, UBS AG changed the
scenario weights for the first quarter of 2022: upside at 0%
(31 December 2021: 5%), baseline at 55% (unchanged), severe
global interest rate steepening scenario at 25% (31 December
2021: mild global interest rate steepening scenario 10%) and the
global crisis scenario at 20% (31 December 2021: 30%).

The post-model adjustment amounted to USD 204 million as
of 31 March 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 224 million) and
includes effects from the uncertainty caused by the continued
COVID-19 pandemic and heightened geopolitical tensions, which
cannot be fully and reliably modeled due to a lack of sufficiently
supportable data. The post-model adjustment was reduced
during the first quarter of 2022 following the scenario
substitution and weighting changes noted above, which resulted
in higher modeled ECL and addressed some of the uncertainties
that had not been reflected in the modeling approach in prior
periods.

Baseline

Key parameters

2022

Real GDP growth (annual percentage change)

Switzerland
B LR e
..... D SIS eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeennennenenne s D e D e D,
..... BT OZ0mE e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e eee s eee e neseeeeeeseeeeeneseneneeneennnenenseneenennennennnnnennnnnnnnene e O e 8D,

Switzerland 3.0 2.3 2.1
Rl ot (A Ial PO CRItag CaNgE, Q) o eeeeeeeeeesssseeseseeeseseeseseses s e se st
..... T SIS o eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeeeeseeeseeeeesseeseeeeeseeesesesseseeseneseneesesseenesseeneeneenennenennnnnnennnnnnenneneenennennennennennnnnenne O 2 e
..... DU OZ0M oot e e eeeeeee e eee e eeeeneseseeeeeeeeseseseeseeeseseeeeseeseseeeeseeeesseeesseed D20 e 1T

Switzerland 6.0 3.0 0.0

Economic scenarios and weights applied

Assigned weights in %

ECL scenario 31.12.21

Global crisis
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Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

¢) ECL-relevant balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions including ECL allowances and provisions

The following tables provide information about financial
instruments and certain non-financial instruments that are subject
to ECL requirements. For amortized-cost instruments, the carrying
amount represents the maximum exposure to credit risk, taking
into account the allowance for credit losses. Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) are also subject to ECL; however, unlike amortized-cost
instruments, the allowance for credit losses for FVOCI instruments

does not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets.
Instead, the carrying amount of financial assets measured at
FVOCI represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

In addition to recognized financial assets, certain off-balance
sheet financial instruments and other credit lines are also subject
to ECL. The maximum exposure to credit risk for off-balance sheet
financial instruments is calculated based on the maximum
contractual amounts.

USD million 31.3.22

Carrying amount! / Total expasure ECL allowances / provisions
Financial instruments measured at amortized cost Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage3 Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage3
Cash and balances at central banks 206,773 206,728 46 0 (6) 0) (6) 0

15,925
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 9,093 9,093 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total on-balance sheet financial assets in scope of ECL requirements 765,080 747,509 15,925 1,646 (928) (158) (170) (600)
Off-balance sheet (in scope of ECL)
Guarantees 21,264 1,072 159 (66) (17) (10) (39)

Irrevocable committed prolongation of existing loans 5,355 5,342 12 2 (2) (2) (0) 0
Total off-balance sheet financial instruments and other credit lines 114,625 108,389 5,922 314 (221) (117) (64) (39)
Total allowances and provisions (1,148) (275) (234) (639)

1 The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost represents the total gross exposure net of the respective ECL allowances.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

USD million 31.12.21

Carrying amount' / Total exposure ECL allowances / provisions
Financial instruments measured at amortized cost Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3 Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3
Cash and balances at central banks 192,817 192,817 0 0 0 0 0 0

of which. Loans to financial advisors

Total financial assets measured at amortized cost 738,632 720,917 15,948 1,767 (969) (161) (160) (647)
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 8,844 8,844 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total on-balance sheet financial assets in scope of ECL requirements 747,477 729,762 15,948 1,767 (969) (161) (160) (647)

Off-balance sheet (in scope of ECL)

20,972 19,695 1,127 150 (41) (18) 8) (15).

Irrevocable committed prolongation of existing loans 5611 5,527 36 43 (3) (3) 0 0
Total off-balance sheet financial instruments and other credit lines 109,878 103,565 6,006 307 (196) (121) (60) (15)
Total allowances and provisions (1,165) (282) (220) (662)

1 The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost represents the total gross exposure net of the respective ECL allowances.
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Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

The table below provides information about the ECL gross
exposure and the ECL coverage ratio for UBS AG’s core loan
portfolios (i.e., Loans and advances to customers and Loans to
financial advisors) and relevant off-balance sheet exposures. Cash
and balances at central banks, Loans and advances to banks,
Receivables from securities financing transactions, Cash collateral
receivables on derivative instruments and Financial assets

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not included in the table below, due to their lower sensitivity to
ECL.

ECL coverage ratios are calculated by dividing ECL allowances
and provisions by the gross carrying amount of the related
exposures.

Coverage ratios for core loan portfolio 31.3.22
Gross carrying amount (USD million) ECL coverage (bps)
On-balance sheet Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3 Total Stage1  Stage 2 Stage 1&2  Stage 3
Private clients with mortgages 153,771 145,299 7,773 699 8 2 91 6 403

Total other lending 171,742 169,949 1,325 468 18 3 95 4 4,986
Total' 397,235 379,274 15,757 2,204 22 4 100 8 2,667
Gross exposure (USD million) ECL coverage (bps)
Off-balance sheet Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3 Total Stage1  Stage2 Stage 1&2  Stage 3
Private cli ith mortgages 7,972 7,733 236 3 3 3 7 3 241 )

'

Total other lending 50,148

48,825

1,315 8 7 5 58 7 0

Total? 108,193

101,956

5,922 314 20 11 108 17 1,255

1 Includes Loans and advances to customers of USD 394,761 million and Loans to financial advisors of USD 2,473 million, which are presented on the balance sheet line Other assets measured at amortized cost.

2 Excludes Forward starting reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 8 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Coverage ratios for core loan portfolio 31.12.21
Gross carrying amount (USD million) ECL coverage (bps)
On-balance sheet Total  Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3 Total  Stage1  Stage 2 Stage 1&2  Stage 3
Private clients with mortgages 152,610 143,533 8,333 744 9 2 85 6 446

Total other lending 177,043 175,049 1,477 517 18 3 93 4 4,718
Total' 402,081 383,825 15,882 2,374 23 4 98 8 2,673
Gross exposure (USD million) ECL coverage (bps)
Off-balance sheet Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage 3 Total  Stage 1  Stage2 Stage 1&2  Stage 3
Private clients with mortgages 9,123 8,798 276 49 3 3 9 3 15

Total other lending

49,720

48,585

Total? 108,434

102,121

6,006 307 18 12 100 17 436

1 Includes Loans and advances to customers of USD 399,543 million and Loans to financial advisors of USD 2,539 million, which are presented on the balance sheet line Other assets measured at amortized cost.

2 Excludes Forward starting reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements.

Note 9 Fair value measurement

This Note provides fair value measurement information for both
financial and non-financial instruments and should be read in
conjunction with “Note 21 Fair value measurement” in the
“Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual Report
2021, which provides more information about valuation
principles, valuation governance, fair value hierarchy
classification, valuation adjustments, valuation techniques and
inputs, sensitivity of fair value measurements, and methods
applied to calculate fair values for financial instruments not
measured at fair value.

30

All financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured or
disclosed at fair value are categorized into one of three fair value
hierarchy levels. When the inputs used to measure fair value may
fall within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in
the hierarchy within which each instrument is classified in its
entirety is based on the lowest-level input that is significant to the
position’s fair value measurement:

— Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

— Level 2 — valuation techniques for which all significant inputs
are, or are based on, observable market data; or

— Level 3 — valuation techniques for which significant inputs are
not based on observable market data.



Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

a) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy classification of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value is summarized in the
table below.

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques’

31.3.22 31.12.21
USD million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value ON @ TRCUIING DASIS | e
Financial assets at fair value held for trading 97,077 15,296 2,623 114,995 113,722 15,012 2,299 131,033

of which.

Derivative financial instruments 1,512 137,116 1,683 140,311 522 116,482 1,140 118,145
of which.

Brokerage receivables 0 20,762 0 20,762 0 21,839 0 21,839
Financial assets at fair value not held for trading 25,704 30,838 4,033 60,575 27,278 28,185 4,180 59,642

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income 2,341 6,751 0 9,093 2,704 6,140 0 8,844

Other non-financial assets? 0 0 24 24 0 0 26 26

Total assets measured at fair value 131,260 210,763 8,363 350,386 149,484 187,658 7,645 344,787
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques (continued)’

31.3.22 31.12.21
USD million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Finandial liabilities measured at fair value OM @ TeCUIIiNg Dasls e
Financial liabilities at fair value held for trading 26,770 7,841 76 34,687 25,413 6,170 105 31,688
_____ _0_1_’_1{1//7/'(/7:
Fquity instruments 19,390 328 67 19778 18328 573 83 18,924

Brokerage payables designated at fair value 0 48,015 1] 48,015 0 44,045 0 44,045

Debt issued designated at fair value 0 58,643 10,778 69,421 0 59,606 11,854 71,460

Other financial liabilities designated at fair value 0 29,500 2,874 32,374 0 29,258 3,156 32,414
of which.

Over-the-counter debt instruments 0 1,299 970 2269 0 7,334 794 2128
Total liabilities measured at fair value 28,275 279,067 15,598 322,941 25,922 257,637 17,357 300,916

1 Bifurcated embedded derivatives are presented on the same balance sheet lines as their host contracts and are not included in this table. The fair value of these derivatives was not material for the periods
presented. 2 Other non-financial assets primarily consist of properties and other non-current assets held for sale, which are measured at the lower of their net carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

b) Valuation adjustments

The table below summarizes the valuation adjustment reserves recognized on the balance sheet. Details about each category are
provided further below.

Valuation adjustment reserves on the balance sheet

As of
Life-to-date gain / (loss), USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves 425 418
Own credit adjustments on financial liabiites designated at fair value 14 (15
(CVAs, FVAs, DVAs and other valuation adjustments 99 | (1,004
Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves Deferred day-1 profit or loss is generally released into Other net
The table below summarizes the changes in deferred day-1 profit  income from financial instruments measured at fair value through
or loss reserves during the relevant period. profit or loss when pricing of equivalent products or the

underlying parameters become observable or when the
transaction is closed out.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves

For the quarter ended

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Reserve balance at the beginning of the perfod e DB 429 269
Profit ] (10ss) deferred O oW NS COnS et 75 e 78 181
(Profit) / loss recognized in the income statement (69) (88) (63)
Foreign currency translation o T o Ty
Reserve balance at the end of the period 425 418 387
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Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

Own credit

The valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value
requires consideration of the own credit component of fair value.
Own credit risk is reflected in the valuation of UBS AG's fair value
option liabilities where this component is considered relevant for
valuation purposes by UBS AG's counterparties and other market
participants. However, own credit risk is not reflected in the
valuation of UBS AG's liabilities that are fully collateralized or for
other obligations for which it is established market practice to not
include an own credit component.

Own credit adjustments on financial liabilities designated at fair value

A description of UBS AG's methodology to estimate own credit
and the related accounting principles is included in “Note 21 Fair
value measurement” in the “Consolidated financial statements”
section of the Annual Report 2021.

In the first quarter of 2022, other comprehensive income
related to own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value
was positive USD 423 million, primarily due to a widening of
UBS's credit spreads.

Included in Other comprehensive income

For the quarter ended

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Recognized during the period:
e gam/ . (Ioss) .......................................................................................................................................................................... ( 7) ....................... o ( 6) .
o galn ; ( Ioss) .................................................................................................................................................................... e e (23) .
Total gain / (loss), before tax 423 55 (29)
As of
USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
Recognized on the balance sheet as of the end of the period:
e fetodatega - ( I oss) .................................................................................................................................................... R ( = 5) .................. (400) .

Credit, funding, debit and other valuation adjustments

A description of UBS AG’s methodology for estimating credit
valuation adjustments (CVAs), funding valuation adjustments
(FVAs), debit valuation adjustments (DVAs) and other valuation

Valuation adjustments on financial instruments

adjustments is included in “Note 21 Fair value measurement” in
the “Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual
Report 2021.

As of

Life-to-date gain / (loss), USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Credit valuation adjustments! (45) (44)
Funding valuation adjustments (41) (49)
Debit valuation adjustments 4 2

Other valuation adjustments (887) (913)
...... afwﬁ/c/z//qz//(//zj/(343)(347)
...... afWﬁ/c/zmode/unceffa/m‘y(544)(577)

1 Amounts do not include reserves against defaulted counterparties.

¢) Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

Assets and liabilities that were held for the entire reporting period and transferred from Level 2 to level 1 or from Level 1 to Level 2

during the first quarter of 2022 were not material.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

d) Level 3 instruments: valuation techniques and inputs

The table below presents material Level 3 assets and liabilities,
together with the valuation technigues used to measure fair value,
the inputs used in a given valuation technique that are considered
significant as of 31 March 2022 and unobservable, and a range
of values for those unobservable inputs.

The range of values represents the highest- and lowest-level
inputs used in the valuation techniques. Therefore the range does
not reflect the level of uncertainty regarding a particular input or an
assessment of the reasonableness of UBS AG's estimates and
assumptions, but rather the different underlying characteristics of

sheet date. Furthermore, the ranges of unobservable inputs may
differ across other financial institutions, reflecting the diversity of
the products in each firm’s inventory.

The significant unobservable inputs disclosed in the table
below are consistent with those included in “Note 21 Fair value
measurement” in the “Consolidated financial statements”
section of the Annual Report 2021. A description of the potential
effect that a change in each unobservable input in isolation may
have on a fair value measurement, including information to
facilitate an understanding of factors that give rise to the input

the relevant assets and liabilities held by UBS AG. The ranges will ranges shown, is also provided in “Note 21 Fair value
therefore vary from period to period and parameter to parameter measurement” in the *“Consolidated financial statements”
based on characteristics of the instruments held at each balance section of the Annual Report 2021.
Valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets and liabilities
Fair value Range of inputs
Assets Liabilities 31.3.22 31.12.21
Valuation Significant unobservable weighted weighted
USD billion 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.22 31.12.21 technique(s) input(s)' low high  average? low high average? unit’
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading and Financial assets at fair value not held fortrading
Corporate and municipal Relative value to
bonds 09 0.9 0.0 0.0 market comparable  Bond price equivalent 13 102 93 16 143 98  points

Discounted expected

cash flows

Traded loans, loans

measured at fair value,
Joan commitments and Relative value to
quarantees 2.8 28 0.0 0.0 market comparable

Discounted expected

Relative value to

Equity instruments® 1.0 0.8 0.1 0.7 market comparable  Price

Debt issued designated at

fair value? 10.8 11.9

Other financial liabilities Discounted expected basis
2.9 3.2 cash flows 24 175 points

Discounted expected

cash flows

sis
points

Volatility of equity
stocks, equity and other

OSSO UROL L<- OR U A 43 ...
et LQUIYTOFX COMTElation  (26) 84 2976 %...
Equity-to-equity
correlation (25) 100 (25) 100 %

1 The ranges of significant unobservable inputs are represented in points, percentages and basis points. Points are a percentage of par (e.g., 100 points would be 100% of par). 2 Weighted averages are provided
for most non-derivative financial instruments and were calculated by weighting inputs based on the fair values of the respective instruments. Weighted averages are not provided for inputs related to Other financial
liabilities designated at fair value and Derivative financial instruments, as this would not be meaningful. 3 The range of inputs is not disclosed, as there is a dispersion of values given the diverse nature of the
investments. 4 Debt issued designated at fair value primarily consists of UBS structured notes, which include variable maturity notes with various equity and foreign exchange underlying risks, rates-linked and credit-
linked notes, all of which have embedded derivative parameters that are considered to be unobservable. The equivalent derivative instrument parameters are presented in the respective derivative financial instruments
lines in this table.
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Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

e) Level 3 instruments: sensitivity to changes in unobservable input assumptions

The table below summarizes those financial assets and liabilities
classified as Level 3 for which a change in one or more of the
unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible alternative
assumptions would change fair value significantly, and the
estimated effect thereof. The table presents the favorable and
unfavorable effects for each class of financial assets and liabilities
for which the potential change in fair value is considered
significant. The sensitivity of fair value measurements for debt
issued designated at fair value and over-the-counter debt
instruments designated at fair value is reported together with the
equivalent derivative or securities financing instrument.

The sensitivity data shown below presents an estimation of
valuation uncertainty based on reasonably possible alternative
values for Level 3 inputs at the balance sheet date and does not
represent the estimated effect of stress scenarios. Typically, these
financial assets and liabilities are sensitive to a combination of
inputs from Levels 1-3. Although well-defined interdepend-
encies may exist between Level 1/2 parameters and Level 3
parameters (e.g., between interest rates, which are generally
Level 1 or Level 2, and prepayments, which are generally Level 3),
these have not been incorporated in the table. Furthermore, direct
interrelationships between the Level 3 parameters are not a
significant element of the valuation uncertainty.

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable input assumptions’

31.3.22 31.12.21
Favorable  Unfavorable Favorable  Unfavorable
USD million changes changes changes changes
Traded loans, loans designated at fair value, loan commitments and guarantees 15 (20) 19 (13)

Total

1 Sensitivity of issued and over-the-counter debt instruments is reported with the equivalent derivative or securities financing instrument.

f) Level 3 instruments: movements during the period

Significant changes in Level 3 instruments

The table on the following pages presents additional information
about material Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis. Level 3 assets and liabilities may be hedged
with instruments classified as Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy and, as a result, realized and unrealized gains and losses
included in the table may not include the effect of related hedging

activity. Furthermore, the realized and unrealized gains and losses
presented in the table are not limited solely to those arising from
Level 3 inputs, as valuations are generally derived from both
observable and unobservable parameters.

Assets and liabilities transferred into or out of Level 3 are
presented as if those assets or liabilities had been transferred at
the beginning of the year.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

Movements of Level 3 instruments

Total gains / losses

included in
comprehensive income

of which:

related to

Level 3

Instruments
Balance Netgains/ held at the Balance
as of losses  end of the Transfers  Transfers Foreign as of
31 December included in  reporting into out of currency 31 March
USD billion 2020  income’ period  Purchases Sales Issuances Settlements  Level 3 Level 3 translation 2021

Financial assets at fair value held for
trading

Derivative financial instruments —
assets 1.8 (0.1) 0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.4 (0.4) 0.0 (0.1) 0.0 1.6
of which:

Financial assets at fair value not held
for trading
of whic

Derivative financial instruments —
liabilities

Debt issued designated at fair value 9.6 0.2 o1 0.0 0.0 3.2 (1.8) 0.1 (0.3) (0.2) 10.7

Other financial liabilities designated
at fair value 2.1 (0.1) .1) 0.0 0.0 0.7 (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4

1 Net gains / losses included in comprehensive income are composed of Net interest income, Other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss and Other income. 2 Total Level
3 assets as of 31 March 2022 were USD 8.4 billion (31 December 2021: USD 7.6 billion). Total Level 3 liabilities as of 31 March 2022 were USD 15.6 billion (31 December 2021: USD 17.4 billion).
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Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

Total gains / losses

included in
comprehensive income

of which:

related to

Level 3

Instruments
Balance  Netgains/  held at the Balance
as of losses  end of the Transfers Transfers Foreign as of
31 December  included in reporting into out of currency 31 March
20212 income' period Purchases Sales Issuances  Settlements Level 3 Level 3 translation 20222

23 0.0 0.0 0.2 (0.8) 1.0 0.0 0.2 (03) 0.0 2.6

3.2 (0.4) 0.4) 0.0 0.0 0.4 (0.2) 0.0 (0.1) 0.0 2.9
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 9 Fair value measurement (continued)

g) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below reflects the estimated fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

31.3.22 31.12.21
Carrying Carrying
USD billion amount Fair value amount Fair value

Assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost 28.8 28.3 26.2 26.5

Liabilities

es measured at amortized cost! 6.9 6.9
1 Excludes lease liabilities.

"(-)ther financia

The fair values included in the table above have been calculated different methods and assumptions for their fair value estimation,
for disclosure purposes only. The valuation techniques and and therefore such fair value disclosures cannot necessarily be
assumptions relate only to UBS AG's financial instruments not compared from one financial institution to another.

otherwise measured at fair value. Other institutions may use
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Note 10 Derivative instruments

a) Derivative instruments

Derivative Notional values Derivative Notional values Other
financial related to derivative financial related to derivative notional
As 0of 31.3.22, USD billion assets financial assets' liabilities financial liabilities’ values?

Deriva instrum

Unsettled sales of non-derivative financial instruments?
Total derivative financial instruments, based on IFRS netting*
_Further netting potential no ized on th et®

Total derivative financial instruments, after consideration of further
netting potential 13.7 17.0

Asof 31.12.21, USD billion
Derivative financial instruments

Unsettled sales of non-derivative financial instruments3 . 18 . 9
Total derivative financial instruments, based on IFRS netting* . 4,614 . 4,617 8,771
Further netting potential not recognized on the balance sheet®

of which. netting with collateral received / pledged

Total derivative financial instruments, after consideration of further

netting potential 10.7 14.3

1 In cases where derivative financial instruments are presented on a net basis on the balance sheet, the respective notional values of the netted derivative financial instruments are still presented on a gross basis.
Notional amounts of client-cleared ETD and OTC transactions through central clearing counterparties are not disclosed, as they have a significantly different risk profile. 2 Other notional values relate to derivatives
that are cleared through either a central counterparty or an exchange. The fair value of these derivatives is presented on the balance sheet net of the corresponding cash margin under Cash collateral receivables on
derivative instruments and Cash collateral payables on derivative instruments and was not material for all periods presented. 3 Changes in the fair value of purchased and sold non-derivative financial instruments
between trade date and settlement date are recognized as derivative financial instruments. 4 Financial assets and liabilities are presented net on the balance sheet if UBS AG has the unconditional and legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, bankruptcy or insolvency of UBS AG or its counterparties, and intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 5 Reflects the netting potential in accordance with enforceable master netting and similar arrangements where not all criteria for a net presentation
on the balance sheet have been met. Refer to “Note 22 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities” in the “Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual Report 2021 for more information.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 10 Derivative instruments (continued)

b) Cash collateral on derivative instruments

Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
USD billion 31.3.22 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.12.21

Cash collateral on

of which: netting with collateral received / pledged
Cash collateral on derivative instruments, after consideration of further netting potential
1 Financial assets and liabilities are presented net on the balance sheet if UBS AG has the unconditional and legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, both in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, bankruptcy or insolvency of UBS AG or its counterparties, and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 2 Reflects the netting potential
in accordance with enforceable master netting and similar arrangements where not all criteria for a net presentation on the balance sheet have been met. Refer to “Note 22 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities” in the “Consolidated financial statements” section of the Annual Report 2021 for more information.

Note 11 Other assets and liabilities

a) Other financial assets measured at amortized cost
USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21

Debt securities 21,192 18,858

Total other financial assets measured at amortized cost 28,766 26,236

b) Other non-financial assets

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
5,258

Total other non-financial assets
1 Refer to Note 15 for more information.

c) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Other accrued expenses 1,561 1,64?___

Total other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
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Note 11 Other assets and liabilities (continued)

d) Other financial liabilities designated at fair value

UsD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Financial liabiliti it-li 18,661 21,466

ed investment contracts

of which: life-to-date own crediit (gain) / loss 27) 172

e) Other non-financial liabilities

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Compensation-relatg(_i liabilities 2,925 4,795

D

C
v
D

Total other non-financial liabilities 6,152 8,572
1 Includes liabilities for payroll taxes and untaken vacation.

Note 12 Debt issued designated at fair value

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Issued debt instruments

of which: life-to-date own crediit (gain) / loss (87) 144

1 Includes investment fund unit-linked instruments issued.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 13 Debt issued measured at amortized cost

USD million

31.12.21

Certificates of deposit and commercial paper

Short-term debt’

Senior unsecured debt

Long-term debt?

Total debt issued measured at amortized cost?

75,013 82,432

1 Debt with an original contractual maturity of less than one year.
not consider any early redemption features.

Note 14 Interest rate benchmark reform

2 Debt with an original contractual maturity greater than or equal to one year. The classification of debt issued into short-term and long-term does
3 Net of bifurcated embedded derivatives, the fair value of which was not material for the periods presented.

During the first quarter of 2022, UBS AG continued to manage
the transition to alternative reference rates (ARRs) under the
oversight of the dedicated Group-wide forum, with an increased
US regional focus. The transition of non-USD interbank offered
rates (IBORs) is largely complete, with efforts now focused on
managing the transition of remaining USD LIBOR exposures.

On 15 March 2022, the US enacted federal legislation, the
“Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act,” which is substantially
based on, and supersedes, the New York State London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) legislation. The Adjustable Interest Rate
(LIBOR) Act provides a legislative solution for legacy products
governed by any US state law should such products fail to
transition prior to the USD LIBOR cessation date of 30 June 2023.

Non-derivative instruments

During the first quarter of 2022, most of the USD 21 billion
mortgages linked to CHF LIBOR that were outstanding as of
31 December 2021 were automatically transitioned to Swiss
Average Rate Overnight (SARON), with only an insignificant
amount remaining, which will transition later in 2022, on their
next roll date.
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Substantially all of the US securities-based lending outstanding
as of 31 December 2021 was transitioned to Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR) during the first quarter of 2022, with
transition of the remaining USD 2 billion currently in progress.

In January 2022, UBS AG completed the transition of USD
LIBOR-linked non-derivative balances related to brokerage
accounts to SOFR. No other material transitions of USD LIBOR-
linked contracts occurred in the first quarter of 2022. UBS AG
plans to transition USD 10 billion of US mortgages linked to USD
LIBOR to SOFR in 2022 and 2023.

Derivative instruments

UBS AG successfully transitioned the remaining non-USD IBOR
derivatives not transacted through clearing houses or exchanges,
which ensured an orderly transition when converting high
volumes of transactions at the time of rate cessation. No material
USD LIBOR-linked derivatives transitioned in the first quarter of
2022.



Note 15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions

The table below presents an overview of total provisions.

USD million 31.3.22 31.12.21
Provisions other than provisions for expected creditlosses | e 3192 ....3:2%
Provisions for expected credit losses' 221 196
Total provisions 3,413 3,452
1 Refer to Note 8c for more information.
The following table presents additional information for provisions other than provisions for expected credit losses.
Litigation,
regulatory and
USD million similar matters’ Restructuring Other3 Total
Balance as of 31 December 2021 2,798 137 321 3,256

uF-i)reign currency translation / unwind of discount

Balance as of 31 March 2022

2,758 1252 310 3,192

1 Consists of provisions for losses resulting from legal, liability and compliance risks.

operational risks.

Restructuring provisions primarily relate to personnel-related
provisions and onerous contracts. Personnel-related restructuring
provisions are used within a short period of time but potential
changes in amount may be triggered when natural staff attrition
reduces the number of people affected by a restructuring event
and therefore the estimated costs. Onerous contracts for property
are recognized when UBS AG is committed to pay for non-lease

b) Litigation, regulatory and similar matters

2 Primarily consists of personnel-related restructuring provisions of USD 80 million as of 31 March 2022 (31 December 2021:
USD 90 million) and provisions for onerous contracts of USD 45 million as of 31 March 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 47 million).

3 Mainly includes provisions related to real estate, employee benefits and

components, such as utilities, service charges, taxes and
maintenance, when a property is vacated or not fully recovered
from sub-tenants.

Information about provisions and contingent liabilities in
respect of litigation, regulatory and similar matters, as a class, is
included in Note 15b. There are no material contingent liabilities
associated with the other classes of provisions.

UBS operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes
it to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes
and regulatory proceedings. As a result, UBS (which for purposes
of this Note may refer to UBS AG and/or one or more of its
subsidiaries, as applicable) is involved in various disputes and legal
proceedings, including litigation, arbitration, and regulatory and
criminal investigations.

Such matters are subject to many uncertainties, and the
outcome and the timing of resolution are often difficult to predict,
particularly in the earlier stages of a case. There are also situations
where UBS may enter into a settlement agreement. This may
occur in order to avoid the expense, management distraction or
reputational implications of continuing to contest liability, even
for those matters for which UBS believes it should be exonerated.
The uncertainties inherent in all such matters affect the amount
and timing of any potential outflows for both matters with respect
to which provisions have been established and other contingent
liabilities. UBS makes provisions for such matters brought against
it when, in the opinion of management after seeking legal advice,
it is more likely than not that UBS has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required, and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Where these factors are otherwise satisfied,
a provision may be established for claims that have not yet been
asserted against UBS, but are nevertheless expected to be, based
on UBS's experience with similar asserted claims. If any of those
conditions is not met, such matters result in contingent liabilities.
If the amount of an obligation cannot be reliably estimated, a
liability exists that is not recognized even if an outflow of
resources is probable. Accordingly, no provision is established
even if the potential outflow of resources with respect to such
matters could be significant. Developments relating to a matter
that occur after the relevant reporting period, but prior to the
issuance of financial statements, which affect management’s
assessment of the provision for such matter (because, for
example, the developments provide evidence of conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period), are adjusting events
after the reporting period under IAS 10 and must be recognized
in the financial statements for the reporting period.
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Notes to the UBS AG interim consolidated financial statements (unaudited)

Note 15 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Specific litigation, regulatory and other matters are described
below, including all such matters that management considers to
be material and others that management believes to be of
significance due to potential financial, reputational and other
effects. The amount of damages claimed, the size of a transaction
or other information is provided where available and appropriate
in order to assist users in considering the magnitude of potential
exposures.

In the case of certain matters below, we state that we have
established a provision, and for the other matters, we make no
such statement. When we make this statement and we expect
disclosure of the amount of a provision to prejudice seriously our
position with other parties in the matter because it would reveal
what UBS believes to be the probable and reliably estimable
outflow, we do not disclose that amount. In some cases we are
subject to confidentiality obligations that preclude such
disclosure. With respect to the matters for which we do not state
whether we have established a provision, either: (a) we have not
established a provision, in which case the matter is treated as a
contingent liability under the applicable accounting standard; or
(b) we have established a provision but expect disclosure of that
fact to prejudice seriously our position with other parties in the
matter because it would reveal the fact that UBS believes an
outflow of resources to be probable and reliably estimable.

With respect to certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters
for which we have established provisions, we are able to estimate
the expected timing of outflows. However, the aggregate amount
of the expected outflows for those matters for which we are able
to estimate expected timing is immaterial relative to our current
and expected levels of liquidity over the relevant time periods.

The aggregate amount provisioned for litigation, regulatory
and similar matters as a class is disclosed in the “Provisions” table
in Note 15a above. It is not practicable to provide an aggregate
estimate of liability for our litigation, regulatory and similar
matters as a class of contingent liabilities. Doing so would require
UBS to provide speculative legal assessments as to claims and
proceedings that involve unique fact patterns or novel legal
theories, that have not yet been initiated or are at early stages of
adjudication, or as to which alleged damages have not been
quantified by the claimants. Although UBS therefore cannot
provide a numerical estimate of the future losses that could arise
from litigation, regulatory and similar matters, UBS believes that
the aggregate amount of possible future losses from this class that
are more than remote substantially exceeds the level of current
provisions.

Litigation, regulatory and similar matters may also result in
non-monetary penalties and consequences. A guilty plea to, or
conviction of, a crime could have material consequences for UBS.
Resolution of regulatory proceedings may require UBS to obtain
waivers of regulatory disqualifications to maintain certain
operations, may entitle regulatory authorities to limit, suspend or
terminate licenses and regulatory authorizations, and may permit
financial market utilities to limit, suspend or terminate UBS's
participation in such utilities. Failure to obtain such waivers, or any
limitation, suspension or termination of licenses, authorizations or
participations, could have material consequences for UBS.

The risk of loss associated with litigation, regulatory and similar
matters is a component of operational risk for purposes of
determining capital requirements. Information concerning our
capital requirements and the calculation of operational risk for this
purpose is included in the “Capital management” section of the
UBS Group first quarter 2022 report.

Provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters by business division and in Group Functions’

Global Wealth  Personal & Asset
Manage- Corporate Manage-  Investment Group
USD million ment Banking ment Bank  Functions Total
Balance as of 31 December 2021 1,338 181 8 310 962 2,798
Increase in provisions recognized in the income statement 54 0 0 4 58

Foreign currency translation / unwind of discount

Balance as of 31 March 2022

0
1,309 176 8 307 958 2,758

1 Provisions, if any, for the matters described in items 3 and 4 of this Note are recorded in Global Wealth Management, and provisions, if any, for the matters described in item 2 are recorded in Group Functions.
Provisions, if any, for the matters described in items 1 and 6 of this Note are allocated between Global Wealth Management and Personal & Corporate Banking, and provisions, if any, for the matters described in item

5 are allocated between the Investment Bank and Group Functions.
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Note 15 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

1. Inquiries regarding cross-border wealth management
businesses

Tax and regulatory authorities in a number of countries have
made inquiries, served requests for information or examined
employees located in their respective jurisdictions relating to the
cross-border wealth management services provided by UBS and
other financial institutions. It is possible that the implementation
of automatic tax information exchange and other measures
relating to cross-border provision of financial services could give
rise to further inquiries in the future. UBS has received disclosure
orders from the Swiss Federal Tax Administration (FTA) to transfer
information based on requests for international administrative
assistance in tax matters. The requests concern a number of UBS
account numbers pertaining to current and former clients and are
based on data from 2006 and 2008. UBS has taken steps to
inform affected clients about the administrative assistance
proceedings and their procedural rights, including the right to
appeal. The requests are based on data received from the German
authorities, who seized certain data related to UBS clients booked
in Switzerland during their investigations and have apparently
shared this data with other European countries. UBS expects
additional countries to file similar requests.

Since 2013, UBS (France) S.A., UBS AG and certain former
employees have been under investigation in France in relation to
UBS's cross-border business with French clients. In connection
with this investigation, the investigating judges ordered UBS AG
to provide bail (“caution™”) of EUR 1.1 billion.

On 20 February 2019, the court of first instance returned a
verdict finding UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation of clients on
French territory and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax
fraud, and UBS (France) S.A. guilty of aiding and abetting
unlawful solicitation and of laundering the proceeds of tax fraud.
The court imposed fines aggregating EUR 3.7 billion on UBS AG
and UBS (France) S.A. and awarded EUR 800 million of civil
damages to the French state. A trial in the French Court of Appeal
took place in March 2021. On 13 December 2021, the Court of
Appeal found UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation and
aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud. The court
ordered a fine of EUR 3.75 million, the confiscation of EUR 1
billion, and awarded civil damages to the French state of EUR 800
million. The court also found UBS (France) SA guilty of the aiding
and abetting of unlawful solicitation and ordered it to pay a fine
of EUR 1.875 million. UBS AG has filed an appeal with the French
Supreme Court to preserve its rights. The notice of appeal enables
UBS AG to thoroughly assess the verdict of the Court of Appeal
and to determine next steps in the best interest of its stakeholders.
The fine and confiscation imposed by the Court of Appeal are
suspended during the appeal. The civil damages award has been
paid to the French state (EUR 99 million of which was deducted
from the bail), subject to the result of UBS’s appeal.

Our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected provisions with
respect to this matter in an amount of EUR 1.1 billion (USD 1.2
billion at 31 March 2022). The wide range of possible outcomes
in this case contributes to a high degree of estimation uncertainty
and the provision reflects our best estimate of possible financial
implications, although actual penalties and civil damages could
exceed (or may be less than) the provision amount.

Our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected provisions with
respect to matters described in this item 1 in an amount that UBS
believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting
standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have
established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect
of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on
currently available information and accordingly may ultimately
prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the
provision that we have recognized.

2. Claims related to sales of residential mortgage-backed
securities and mortgages

From 2002 through 2007, prior to the crisis in the US residential
loan market, UBS was a substantial issuer and underwriter of US
residential mortgage-backed securities (RMBS) and was a
purchaser and seller of US residential mortgages.

In November 2018, the DOJ filed a civil complaint in the District
Court for the Eastern District of New York. The complaint seeks
unspecified civil monetary penalties under the Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989
related to UBS’s issuance, underwriting and sale of 40 RMBS
transactions in 2006 and 2007. UBS moved to dismiss the civil
complaint on 6 February 2019. On 10 December 2019, the
district court denied UBS’s motion to dismiss.

Our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected a provision with
respect to matters described in this item 2 in an amount that UBS
believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting
standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have
established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect
of this matter cannot be determined with certainty based on
currently available information and accordingly may ultimately
prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the
provision that we have recognized.
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3. Madoff

In relation to the Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC
(BMIS) investment fraud, UBS AG, UBS (Luxembourg) S.A. (now
UBS Europe SE, Luxembourg branch) and certain other UBS
subsidiaries have been subject to inquiries by a number of
regulators, including the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA) and the Luxembourg Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier. Those inquiries concerned two
third-party funds established under Luxembourg law, substantially
all assets of which were with BMIS, as well as certain funds
established in offshore jurisdictions with either direct or indirect
exposure to BMIS. These funds faced severe losses, and the
Luxembourg funds are in liquidation. The documentation
establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles,
including custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and
promoter, and indicates that UBS employees serve as board
members.

In 2009 and 2010, the liquidators of the two Luxembourg
funds filed claims against UBS entities, non-UBS entities and
certain individuals, including current and former UBS employees,
seeking amounts totaling approximately EUR 2.1 billion, which
includes amounts that the funds may be held liable to pay the
trustee for the liquidation of BMIS (BMIS Trustee).

A large number of alleged beneficiaries have filed claims
against UBS entities (and non-UBS entities) for purported losses
relating to the Madoff fraud. The majority of these cases have
been filed in Luxembourg, where decisions that the claims in eight
test cases were inadmissible have been affirmed by the
Luxembourg Court of Appeal, and the Luxembourg Supreme
Court has dismissed a further appeal in one of the test cases.

In the US, the BMIS Trustee filed claims against UBS entities,
among others, in relation to the two Luxembourg funds and one
of the offshore funds. The total amount claimed against all
defendants in these actions was not less than USD 2 billion. In
2014, the US Supreme Court rejected the BMIS Trustee’s motion
for leave to appeal decisions dismissing all claims except those for
the recovery of approximately USD 125 million of payments
alleged to be fraudulent conveyances and preference payments.
In 2016, the bankruptcy court dismissed these claims against the
UBS entities. In February 2019, the Court of Appeals reversed the
dismissal of the BMIS Trustee’s remaining claims, and the US
Supreme Court subsequently denied a petition seeking review of
the Court of Appeals’ decision. The case has been remanded to
the Bankruptcy Court for further proceedings.

4. Puerto Rico

Declines since 2013 in the market prices of Puerto Rico municipal
bonds and of closed-end funds (funds) that are sole-managed and
co-managed by UBS Trust Company of Puerto Rico and
distributed by UBS Financial Services Incorporated of Puerto Rico
(UBS PR) led to multiple regulatory inquiries, which in 2014 and
2015, led to settlements with the Office of the Commissioner of
Financial Institutions for the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the
US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Financial
Industry Regulatory Authority.
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Since then, UBS clients in Puerto Rico who own the funds or
Puerto Rico municipal bonds and/or who used their UBS account
assets as collateral for UBS non-purpose loans filed customer
complaints and arbitration demands seeking aggregate damages
of USD 3.4 billion, of which USD 3.1 billion have been resolved
through settlements, arbitration or withdrawal of claims.
Allegations include fraud, misrepresentation and unsuitability of
the funds and of the loans.

A shareholder derivative action was filed in 2014 against
various UBS entities and current and certain former directors of
the funds, alleging hundreds of millions of US dollars in losses in
the funds. In 2021, the parties reached an agreement to settle this
matter for USD 15 million, subject to court approval.

In 2011, a purported derivative action was filed on behalf of
the Employee Retirement System of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico (System) against over 40 defendants, including UBS PR,
which was named in connection with its underwriting and
consulting services. Plaintiffs alleged that defendants violated
their purported fiduciary duties and contractual obligations in
connection with the issuance and underwriting of USD 3 billion
of bonds by the System in 2008 and sought damages of over
USD 800 million. In 2016, the court granted the System’s request
to join the action as a plaintiff. In 2017, the court denied
defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint. In 2020, the court
denied plaintiffs” motion for summary judgment.

Beginning in 2015, certain agencies and public corporations of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Commonwealth) defaulted
on certain interest payments on Puerto Rico bonds. In 2016, US
federal legislation created an oversight board with power to
oversee Puerto Rico’s finances and to restructure its debt. The
oversight board has imposed a stay on the exercise of certain
creditors’ rights. In 2017, the oversight board placed certain of
the bonds into a bankruptcy-like proceeding under the
supervision of a Federal District Judge.

In May 2019, the oversight board filed complaints in Puerto
Rico federal district court bringing claims against financial, legal
and accounting firms that had participated in Puerto Rico
municipal bond offerings, including UBS, seeking a return of
underwriting and swap fees paid in connection with those
offerings. UBS estimates that it received approximately USD 125
million in fees in the relevant offerings.

In August 2019, and February and November 2020, four US
insurance companies that insured issues of Puerto Rico municipal
bonds sued UBS and several other underwriters of Puerto Rico
municipal bonds in three separate cases. The actions collectively
seek recovery of an aggregate of USD 955 million in damages
from the defendants. The plaintiffs in these cases claim that
defendants failed to reasonably investigate financial statements in
the offering materials for the insured Puerto Rico bonds issued
between 2002 and 2007, which plaintiffs argue they relied upon
in agreeing to insure the bonds notwithstanding that they had no
contractual relationship with the underwriters. Defendants’
motions to dismiss were granted in two of the cases; those
decisions are being appealed by the plaintiffs. In the third case,
defendants’ motion to dismiss was denied, but on appeal that
ruling was reversed and the motion to dismiss was granted.



Note 15 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected provisions with
respect to matters described in this item 4 in amounts that UBS
believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting
standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have
established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect
of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on
currently available information and accordingly may ultimately
prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the
provisions that we have recognized.

5. Foreign exchange, LIBOR and benchmark rates, and other
trading practices

Foreign exchange-related requlatory matters: Beginning in 2013,
numerous authorities commenced investigations concerning
possible manipulation of foreign exchange markets and precious
metals prices. As a result of these investigations, UBS entered into
resolutions with Swiss, US and United Kingdom regulators and
the European Commission. UBS was granted conditional
immunity by the Antitrust Division of the DOJ and by authorities
in other jurisdictions in connection with potential competition law
violations relating to foreign exchange and precious metals
businesses.

Foreign exchange-related civil litigation: Putative class actions
have been filed since 2013 in US federal courts and in other
jurisdictions against UBS and other banks on behalf of putative
classes of persons who engaged in foreign currency transactions
with any of the defendant banks. UBS has resolved US federal
court class actions relating to foreign currency transactions with
the defendant banks and persons who transacted in foreign
exchange futures contracts and options on such futures under a
settlement agreement that provides for UBS to pay an aggregate
of USD 141 million and provide cooperation to the settlement
classes. Certain class members have excluded themselves from
that settlement and have filed individual actions in US and English
courts against UBS and other banks, alleging violations of US and
European competition laws and unjust enrichment.

In 2015, a putative class action was filed in federal court
against UBS and numerous other banks on behalf of persons and
businesses in the US who directly purchased foreign currency from
the defendants and alleged co-conspirators for their own end use.
In March 2017, the court granted UBS's (and the other banks’)
motions to dismiss the complaint. The plaintiffs filed an amended
complaint in August 2017. In March 2018, the court denied the
defendants’ motions to dismiss the amended complaint. In March
2022, the court denied plaintiffs’ motion for class certification.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related regulatory matters:
Numerous government agencies conducted investigations
regarding potential improper attempts by UBS, among others, to
manipulate LIBOR and other benchmark rates at certain times.
UBS reached settlements or otherwise concluded investigations
relating to benchmark interest rates with the investigating
authorities. UBS was granted conditional leniency or conditional
immunity from authorities in certain jurisdictions, including the
Antitrust Division of the DOJ and the Swiss Competition
Commission (WEKO), in connection with potential antitrust or
competition law violations related to certain rates. However, UBS

has not reached a final settlement with WEKO, as the Secretariat
of WEKO has asserted that UBS does not qualify for full immunity.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related civil litigation: A number
of putative class actions and other actions are pending in the
federal courts in New York against UBS and numerous other
banks on behalf of parties who transacted in certain interest rate
benchmark-based derivatives. Also pending in the US and in other
jurisdictions are a number of other actions asserting losses related
to various products whose interest rates were linked to LIBOR and
other benchmarks, including adjustable rate mortgages, preferred
and debt securities, bonds pledged as collateral, loans, depository
accounts, investments and other interest-bearing instruments.
The complaints allege manipulation, through various means, of
certain benchmark interest rates, including USD LIBOR, Euroyen
TIBOR, Yen LIBOR, EURIBOR, CHF LIBOR, GBP LIBOR, SGD SIBOR
and SOR and Australian BBSW, and seek unspecified
compensatory and other damages under varying legal theories.
USD LIBOR class and individual actions in the US: In 2013 and
2015, the district court in the USD LIBOR actions dismissed, in
whole or in part, certain plaintiffs’ antitrust claims, federal
racketeering claims, CEA claims, and state common law claims,
and again dismissed the antitrust claims in 2016 following an
appeal. In December 2021, the Second Circuit affirmed the district
court’s dismissal in part and reversed in part and remanded to the
district court for further proceedings. The Second Circuit, among
other things, held that there was personal jurisdiction over UBS
and other foreign defendants based on allegations that at least
one alleged co-conspirator undertook an overt act in the United
States. Separately, in 2018, the Second Circuit reversed in part the
district court's 2015 decision dismissing certain individual
plaintiffs’ claims and certain of these actions are now proceeding.
In 2018, the district court denied plaintiffs’ motions for class
certification in the USD class actions for claims pending against
UBS, and plaintiffs sought permission to appeal that ruling to the
Second Circuit. In July 2018, the Second Circuit denied the
petition to appeal of the class of USD lenders and in November
2018 denied the petition of the USD exchange class. In January
2019, a putative class action was filed in the District Court for the
Southern District of New York against UBS and numerous other
banks on behalf of US residents who, since 1 February 2014,
directly transacted with a defendant bank in USD LIBOR
instruments. The complaint asserts antitrust claims. The
defendants moved to dismiss the complaint in August 2019. On
26 March 2020 the court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss
the complaint in its entirety. Plaintiffs have appealed the dismissal.
On 7 March 2022, the Second Circuit dismissed the appeal
because appellants, who had been substituted in to replace the
original plaintiffs who had withdrawn, lacked standing to pursue
the appeal. In August 2020, an individual action was filed in the
Northern District of California against UBS and numerous other
banks alleging that the defendants conspired to fix the interest
rate used as the basis for loans to consumers by jointly setting the
USD LIBOR rate and monopolized the market for LIBOR-based
consumer loans and credit cards. Defendants moved to dismiss
the complaint in September 2021.
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Other benchmark class actions in the US:

Yen LIBOR / Euroyen TIBOR —In 2014, 2015 and 2017, the court
in one of the Yen LIBOR / Euroyen TIBOR lawsuits dismissed
certain of the plaintiffs’ claims, including the plaintiffs’ federal
antitrust and racketeering claims. In August 2020, the court
granted defendants’ motion for judgment on the pleadings and
dismissed the lone remaining claim in the action as impermissibly
extraterritorial. Plaintiffs have appealed. In 2017, the court
dismissed the other Yen LIBOR / Euroyen TIBOR action in its
entirety on standing grounds. In April 2020, the appeals court
reversed the dismissal and in August 2020 plaintiffs in that action
filed an amended complaint focused on Yen LIBOR. The court
granted in part and denied in part defendants’ motion to dismiss
the amended complaint in September 2021 and plaintiffs and the
remaining defendants have moved for reconsideration.

CHF LIBOR —1n 2017, the court dismissed the CHF LIBOR action
on standing grounds and failure to state a claim. Plaintiffs filed an
amended complaint, and the court granted a renewed motion to
dismiss in September 2019. Plaintiffs appealed. In September
2021, the Second Circuit granted the parties’ joint motion to
vacate the dismissal and remand the case for further proceedings.

EURIBOR —1n 2017, the court in the EURIBOR lawsuit dismissed
the case as to UBS and certain other foreign defendants for lack
of personal jurisdiction. Plaintiffs have appealed.

SIBOR / SOR — In October 2018, the court in the SIBOR / SOR
action dismissed all but one of plaintiffs’ claims against UBS.
Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint, and the court granted a
renewed motion to dismiss in July 2019. Plaintiffs appealed. In
March 2021, the Second Circuit reversed the dismissal. Plaintiffs
filed an amended complaint in October 2021, which defendants
have moved to dismiss.

BBSW — In November 2018, the court dismissed the BBSW
lawsuit as to UBS and certain other foreign defendants for lack of
personal jurisdiction. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint in April
2019, which UBS and other defendants moved to dismiss. In
February 2020, the court granted in part and denied in part
defendants’ motions to dismiss the amended complaint. In
August 2020, UBS and other BBSW defendants joined a motion
for judgment on the pleadings, which the court denied in May
2021.

GBP LIBOR — The court dismissed the GBP LIBOR action in
August 2019. Plaintiffs have appealed.

Government bonds: Putative class actions have been filed since
2015 in US federal courts against UBS and other banks on behalf
of persons who participated in markets for US Treasury securities
since 2007. A consolidated complaint was filed in 2017 in the US
District Court for the Southern District of New York alleging that
the banks colluded with respect to, and manipulated prices of, US
Treasury securities sold at auction and in the secondary market and
asserting claims under the antitrust laws and for unjust enrichment.
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Defendants’ motions to dismiss the consolidated complaint was
granted in March 2021. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint,
which defendants moved to dismiss in June 2021. In March 2022,
the court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss that complaint.
Similar class actions have been filed concerning European
government bonds and other government bonds.

In May 2021, the European Commission issued a decision
finding that UBS and six other banks breached European Union
antitrust rules in 2007-2011 relating to European government
bonds. The European Commission fined UBS EUR 172 million. UBS
is appealing the amount of the fine.

With respect to additional matters and jurisdictions not
encompassed by the settlements and orders referred to above,
our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected a provision in an
amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under the applicable
accounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which
we have established provisions, the future outflow of resources in
respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty
based on currently available information and accordingly may
ultimately prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than
the provision that we have recognized.

6. Swiss retrocessions

The Federal Supreme Court of Switzerland ruled in 2012, in a test
case against UBS, that distribution fees paid to a firm for
distributing third-party and intra-group investment funds and
structured products must be disclosed and surrendered to clients
who have entered into a discretionary mandate agreement with
the firm, absent a valid waiver. FINMA issued a supervisory note
to all Swiss banks in response to the Supreme Court decision. UBS
has met the FINMA requirements and has notified all potentially
affected clients.

The Supreme Court decision has resulted, and continues to
result, in a number of client requests for UBS to disclose and
potentially surrender retrocessions. Client requests are assessed
on a case-by-case basis. Considerations taken into account when
assessing these cases include, among other things, the existence
of a discretionary mandate and whether or not the client
documentation contained a valid waiver with respect to
distribution fees.

Our balance sheet at 31 March 2022 reflected a provision with
respect to matters described in this item 6 in an amount that UBS
believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting
standard. The ultimate exposure will depend on client requests
and the resolution thereof, factors that are difficult to predict and
assess. Hence, as in the case of other matters for which we have
established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect
of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on
currently available information and accordingly may ultimately
prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the
provision that we have recognized.



Note 16 Currency translation rates

The following table shows the rates of the main currencies used to translate the financial information of UBS AG'’s operations with a
functional currency other than the US dollar into US dollars.

Closing exchange rate Average rate'
As of For the quarter ended
313.22 31.12.21 31.3.21 31.3.22 31.12.21 31.3.21
1 CHF 1.08 1.10 1.06 1.08 1.09 1.09
T i i e e e
L e e e e e
T S s S o

1 Monthly income statement items of operations with a functional currency other than the US dollar are translated into US dollars using month-end rates. Disclosed average rates for a quarter represent an average of
three month-end rates, weighted according to the income and expense volumes of all operations of UBS AG with the same functional currency for each month. Weighted average rates for individual business divisions
may deviate from the weighted average rates for UBS AG.

Note 17 Events after the reporting period

In March 2022, UBS signed an agreement to sell its investment in the Japanese real estate joint venture Mitsubishi Corp.-UBS Realty
Inc. to KKR & Co. Inc. UBS's asset management, wealth management and investment banking businesses operating in Japan are not
affected by the sale. The transaction closed on 28 April 2022 and UBS will record a gain in Asset Management and an increase in
CET1 capital related to the sale of approximately USD 0.9 billion in the second quarter of 2022.
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